


Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Group”; SEHK stock code: 1929) was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011. The Group’s vision is to become the
most trusted jewellery group in the world.

Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand “CHOW TAI FOOK" is widely recognised for its
trustworthiness and authenticity, and is renowned for its product design, quality and value. A long-
standing commitment to innovation and craftsmanship has contributed to the Group's success, along
with that of its iconic retail brand, and has been embodied in its rich 90 year heritage. Underpinning this
success are our long held core values of “Sincerity e Eternity”.

The Group's multi-brand strategy comprises the CHOW TAI FOOK core brand with its offerings of
different retail experiences including ARTRIUM, JEWELRIA, Experience Shop and CTF WATCH,
in addition to other brands including HEARTS ON FIRE, T MARK, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE
to address the diversifying needs of our customers.

The Group’s commitment to sustainable growth is anchored in its customer-centric focus and strategies,
which are in place to promote long term innovation in the business, in people and in culture. Another
asset underpinning sustainable growth is a sophisticated and agile business model. This supports the
Group by fostering excellence and extending opportunities along the entire value chain to communities
and industry partners across the world.

With an extensive retail network in Greater China, Japan, Korea, Southeast Asia and the United States,
and a fast-growing e-commerce business, the Group is implementing effective online-to-offline (*020")

strategies to succeed in today’s omni-channel retail environment.
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BUSINESS MODEL INNOVATION
e EWIE

To cater for the evolving customer expectations, we reposition our business around
the customer needs and refine our existing business model to continually create,
deliver and capture value.
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i?; Value
<§§> Proposition
{8 {6 3= 5
To deliver exceptional
customer experience
that creates long-term

differentiation and
customer loyalty

Resources Rt S MR R
< ¢l R MBS

BEILHE

+

Key resources that our value proposition requires
BMEEERAFEHNHAREIR
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Chow Tai Fook Strong

heritage and culture cash flows
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Intellectual Product Brand

\ capital development reputation
NS ENAE ERRE RhREE
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Revenue Model
B B

Revenue streams on how we extract value

ERPEREENRANR

Design and
production

R REE

OEM
R 2 rT s
ODM
[ 5wt e
C2M
BRI

Sales channels

HERE

HEETER
Franchised POS
INEATER
E-commerce
BFE%

Retail partners
TEBM

Strategic
investments

RESIERE

Process Model
VW g

Self-operated POS

Multi-brands

%

In-house collections

BREmRS

Licensed products Brands and

REE products
R E &

Brand collaborations

mig A 1F

(

(o]
Experience Self-service New retail
shop experience concepts
BESRIE corner BT &=
Pop-up store EHERE
B B R B CloudSales 365
Social =365
shopping Livestreaming
HRZEE REEER
Cloud kiosk

ZiEa

Key processes that help create and deliver value
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Internet Blockchain Automation
of Things application of production
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ANNUAL RESULTS AT A GLANCE

SR AT SR

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BZE2020F3A31BLFE

Revenue Core operating profit ("
e TEEEHBAO

HK$ million B&E#E T HK$ million B&#E T

56,751 5,687

v 14.90/0 v 18.40/0

Earnings per share

FREF

HKS$ BT

0.29

w 36.6%

YoY change Ett#1{t YoY change Etb#1t YoY change [Eltb#1t
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Net gearing ratio As at 31 March Dividend per share for the year @
FEXARELE MN3B318 BREERE?
2020 2019 HKS 7T 90%
% 0.24
O, °
57.4 O 33-2 /0 ° 80% 78.5V
@
Net assets per share  As at 31 March Full year dividend payout ratio 0% 66.0 0//
BREEFH MN3B318 2ERBE °
60%
54.4% /
HKS 87T e
50%
2020 2019 52.3%
(0] 40%
. 3] . (0] 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

(1) Core operating profit, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other income,
less selling and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses and unrealised loss
(gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding
of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses

(2)  Included the proposed final dividend of HK$0.12 per share which is subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting

Overview
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Note: Special dividend excluded Hf& : TRIEH B &
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As at 31 March 2020
72020%3A31H

Retail network and performance

TERERRR
Mainland China Hong Kong and Macau
o Ay it EHERIRM
l@ 3 69 POS V/ ’I 05 POS
ZEH ZEH
A/ / A/
Net i @) Net openings
a1l smpa Al mmE
FY2020 FY2020
SSSG SSSG

v 15.1% mpreess / w 38.7% mrwess

4 E-commerce /

EFHE Z

\ FY2020
RSV

. . TEE Other markets
A 3.4% Rems

P e YoY change EEE# 1t

of respective RSV -, 4 6 POS
52% temess A\ / ey

o of respective retail sales volume Net opening
14.4% wmmus Al sms

Chow Tai Fook employees Chow Tai Fook membership programme
AX#EET AXEES:E

29,700+ G| 3,670,000

;)tla;é\;ﬁ(mber of employees =S = g;‘%‘;ﬂmber of members
Number of employees by reportable segment Members’ repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV
RU 2R SMESHETHE EEFHEGEFATEEZE ML
FY2020

Mainland China Mainland China

78.3%  smn 24.9%  wame

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets Hong Kong and Macau
21.7% =% mrputess 35.5%  =weran

(3) 623 CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS included (3) BE6EEANERETE

Annual Report 2020 Annual Results at a Glance
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

S 55 e 5 A7 B

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March BEIAZMALFEE BHEABT BHEBT BHEBT BHEBT BEBT
Revenue = 56,592 51,246 59,156 66,661 56,751
Gross profit EH 15,641 14,963 16,213 18,602 16,096
Core operating profit™® FEEERFO 5,050 4,649 5,606 6,972 5,687
Profit for the year FEEA 2,979 3,151 4,203 4,684 2,983
Profit attributable to shareholders AR F R AR T
of the Company 2,941 3,055 4,095 4,577 2,901
Earnings per share (HK$) BRAEF (ET) 0.29 0.31 0.41 0.46 0.29
Dividend per share (HK$) RS (BIT)
Full year dividend (HKS$) 2FRE (BT 0.16 0.16 0.27 0.35 0.24
Special dividend (HK$) R E (BIT) 0.64 0.35 0.30 0.30 -
Gross profit margin SRS 27.6% 29.2% 27.4% 27.9% 28.4%
Adjusted gross profit margin®? KRARENENK 28.9% 28.5% 27.2% 27.9% 29.6%
Core operating profit margin® FELLRFIRO 8.9% 9.1% 9.5% 10.5% 10.0%
Net profit margin Fm A & 5.3% 6.1% 7.1% 7.0% 5.3%
Full year dividend payout ratio® PEFIREES 54.4% 52.3% 66.0% 76.5% 82.7%
(1) Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of (1) FELEEFRBEZNE (ERERVBREELE) - BEHARE
adjusted gross profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and HEMREMBROE  AEERDERKAUNR —RRITBAX - AR
administrative expenses, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete AR EHEEBENEER T BMEALERA KO EBNERBY
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses
(2)  Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on (2) EEBEOHEANE GHRERFHRELEAGHE) NIRRT ESEENHER
gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its FHREBRE)NTE  ARREGHEBREDHESHBTHREALERAR
operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses ESCEoN {5k
(3)  Special dividend excluded 3 TEREFIKRE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March R3A31H BERT BEBT BERT BEET BHEET
Non-current assets FERBEE 6,670 7133 8,258 8,459 10,038
Current assets MEVEE 49,005 42,269 49,312 53,778 55,205
Current liabilities mEBE 18,764 15,788 20,719 27471 35,627
Net current assets MENE BT 30,241 26,480 28,593 26,307 19,579
Non-current liabilities ERBARE 1,162 1,112 2,753 3,363 2,626
Net assets BEFHR 35,750 32,502 34,098 31,403 26,991
Total assets BEMRE 55,675 49,402 57570 62,237 65,243
Inventories FE 31,377 29,259 34,929 39,486 42,538
Cash and cash equivalents® Re KB EEYY 13,001 7943 7944 7641 7219
Bank borrowings RITER 7920 6,793 7923 10,057 11,431
Gold loans BEfEE 6,513 3,216 5,335 8,012 11,280
Net debt® BEIH F 5 1,432 2,066 5,314 10,428 15,492
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEFE(ET) 3.6 3.3 3.4 3.1 2.7
Net gearing ratio® FEARAEL O 4.0% 6.4% 15.6% 33.2% 57.4%
Inventory turnover period (day)” FEREH(RE)" 279 294 296 299 381
Return on equity® e NEEE 8.3% 9.7% 12.3% 14.9% 1.1%
(4)  Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits included (4) BPEBITEBKASRBERRITER
(6)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents (65) RITEFRLKESEEZ2HBHRBESLREZEY)
(6)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents, divided by total equity 6) RITERRESEEZLBHNRBESLBSEY BRIARRLERE
(7)  Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided (7) HREMRGFEEH(TREREWE)BRAFAHERA - HEIU365
by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366 5366
(8)  Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year (8)  FRmAIBRAF RS

Overview
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million

For the year ended 31 March BE3ANALEE BEART BEART BEAT BEAT BESBT
Operating cash flows before LBEEHRI 2 KE
movements in working capital Behs 5,787 5,702 6,879 7,774 8,385
Net cash from (used in) LEEBFATE (FTA)
operating activities e 55 13,897 6,252 2,851 8,431 8,364
Net cash from (used in) wEERBME (FTA)
investing activities ReFHE (1,045) (1,147) (1,577) (1,222) (1,025)
Net cash from (used in) REEBFTTS (FTA)
financing activities e FE (8,008) (9,771) (1,753) (7,212) (7,653)
Net increase (decrease) ReRBEEY
in cash and cash equivalents O ) F5 4,845 (4,667) (479) (3) (314)
Capital expenditure B (1,046) (862) (1,084) (1,392) (973)
Pro forma free cash flows® HEBHRBESR 10,690 1,989 3,019 4,100 5,208
(99 Net cash from (used in) operating activities less leases paid, purchase of jewellery collectibles, 9 KEFHAGFABRLFERCHHE BERBELHE  E4ARAXK
capital expenditure and net movements for gold loans HeEEFEY
For the year ended 31 March BE3ANALEE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Mainland China AR EI A i
SSSG R SRR 9.6%  (6.2)% 8.0% 3.4% (15.1)%
SSS volume growth F/EHEEE (8.4)% (15.8)% 1.2% (3.3)% (24.0)%
Hong Kong and Macau BB RIEM
SSSG REHEEE (21.7)% (12.4)% 10.2% 8.7% (38.7)%
SSS volume growth FEH=ER (23.9)% (18.8)% 6.1% 1.3% (43.5)%
Retail sales volume (unit) SHE (2D
Mainland China B A 13,280,000 12,004,000 13,416,000 14,518,000 12,699,000
Hong Kong, Macau and A BMR
other markets s 3,971,000 3,152,000 3,169,000 3,390,000 2,392,000
As at 31 March M3A31H 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
POS distribution'® ZEHHMHO
Mainland China R A 2,179 2,246 2,449 2,988 3,701
Hong Kong, China B 89 83 80 82 87
Macau, China BB P 20 19 19 19 18
Taiwan, China PRSI 23 22 22 22 18
Cambodia SRR - - - 1 1
Japan A - - 2 3 3
Korea B2 4 5 7 9 9
Malaysia BRAEE 1 2 2 4 4
Philippines JEEE - - - - 1
Singapore Frns 1 1 1 2 4
Thailand ZREl - - - - 1
United States =35 2 3 3 3 2
Vietnam fiog=] - - - 1 1
Total st 2,319 2,381 2,585 3,134 3,850
(10) SIS and CIS excluded (100  NRIEEFREREREE
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences M BN EE R ARUER
Annual Report 2020 Financial and Operational Highlights 7
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MAJOR AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

T BT R s AF

I

Governance Hif

Corporate Governance Asia

DME¥ES

9t Asian Excellence Award 2019

e Asia's Best CEO (Investor Relations) — Kent Wong

* Asia's Best CFO (Investor Relations) — Hamilton Cheng
e Best Investor Relations Company (Hong Kong)

* Best Investor Relations Professional — Danita On

SNEDMEBAEE 2019

o TMRETRER(BREERR) —B8RE

o TMREERMEAE(REERE) — BRK
o RERBEBERLE(FE)

o RERBEMERIR — RBR

MerComm, Inc. HERA
ARC Awards 2019 ARC A2 2019 Hong Kong Environmental,
e Silver Award o (R#F Social and Governance Reporting
(Interior Design: Jewellery) GCEEGEE -9 Awards 2019
e Commendation
Galaxy Awards 2019 Galaxy A% 2019 (Best ESG Report — Large Cap)
¢ Bronze Award o iRHE e Commendation
(Design — Annual Reports: Traditional — Asia/Pacific) (&5t — AR EFSFR) (Excellence in
* Honors Award o LAERAF Environmental Disclosure)
(Design — Covers: Annual Reports — Foils) (&5t — F®Em) EBIEE e REARE
iNOVA Awards 2019 iNOVA K #£ 2019 A %019
o Bronze Award o iME ° HITHE(FHIEESGHELE —
NEEED)

(Redesign/Relaunch: Stakeholder Communications) (BT EFHEL  HHOBER) o Eitim (IR )

Hong Kong Academy of Interactive DESIGNSORI
Economic Journal and Visual Arts CO., LTD

R ey 14" Annual W? Awards K — Design Award 2019
Listed Company e Silver Award K — $®EHAHE 2019
Awards of Excellence 2019 (Website Features:

e Main Board (Large-Cap) Visual Appeal — Aesthetics)

e Silver Award

tﬁi@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi 2019 (Online Video: Documentary
° EIR(KME) — Short Form)
B4 EWIEE RS

o RE(RULINEE : BEXR)
o REBRLEFR  LLBER)

8 ‘ Overview Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
mE AXRBHEEERRAA



Bloomberg

Businessweek
82 W 3808 T /v SR

Listed Enterprises

oftheYear 201 9

Institutional Investor

2019 All-Asia (ex-Japan) Executive Team

¢ Developed Markets — Small & Midcap:
Best Corporate Governance — 3" place

¢ Developed Markets — Small & Midcap:
Best ESG/SRI Metrics — 3" place

2019 4 £ All-Asia Executive Team

(T ERERR)BETE

o BEBRMG(P/AME) — HELEE

o BEERMS(F/IAME)— &EF
BHIEE — BABRE=S

EERE=FA

IR Magazine

IR Magazine Awards Greater China 2019
e Certificate for Excellence in Investor Relations

IR Magazine X#& — K 22019
o REEHERSMRBFS

Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

FRRATMRGE

5™ Investor Relations Awards 2019
e Certificate of Excellence

2019F EREREEMEANE
o SR

Annual Report 2020
2020 5%

Bloomberg Businessweek/Chinese Edition

BHEEERAT /PR

Listed Enterprises of the Year 2019

e Listed Enterprises of the Year

e Performance Award — Best Investor Relations

e Performance Award — Best Corporate Social Responsibility

FELMWEE 2019
o FE LM
o RIVFEIA —
o REPMEA — mED

REREERE
heRER

BEST ANNUAL REPORTS

 AWARDS 2019 .

v

RERSE Zi”‘\&”é/ /HEEERE

The Hong Kong Management Association

FHETHEEERE

HKMA 2019 Best Annual Reports Awards
* Bronze Award (General Category)

Hong Kong Sustainability Award 2018/19
e Certificate of Excellence (Large-sized Organisations)

EREEHEERE 2019 FREFRLE
o IME(IEMER)

FEARHEEREE 2018/19
o SFMIRCRAEE)

China Tonghai IR
hEE SR EEMZ

Quam IR Awards 2018 — Main Board
EEEWIRAEREKRE 2018 — 1R

Major Awards and Recognitions

TERAREN
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HEEE

J‘lj}_ '
"> a &
201 S NEREAR201 SRR BB RIES
g. @: a7 i

m Netwarking Party

BRERMAL

Asian Licensing Association
SRMNIREEGE

Hong Kong Licensing Awards 2019
¢ Gold Award — Best Licensee

BEBRREZEKRE 2019
o i — RERKES

Hong Kong Tourism Board
EERBERS

Outstanding Quality Tourism Service Merchant & Service Staff Awards 2019
QTS Merchant Award — Merit (Retail Category)

Jewellery & Watches Category
e Silver Award — Supervisory —Wong Kin-On, Kenneth
e Silver Award - Front-line staff — Yeung Wai-Kit

BHELEEFE &8 TR 2019
BHETEFE — EEK8(TEHER)

R MBI IE
e RE—TEMET —HRL
o R —FIRET —HER

Overview
B

Hurun Report

2020 tAEZE®ER
o KERMERFHE

2020 Hurun Best of the Best
e Jewelry Star Performer

Forbes
EmAr

Forbes 2019 Global 2000 World’s Largest
Public Companies
2019 @ MmET 23k EHh A F] 2000 &

The World Brands Foundation

The BrandLaureate Best Brands Awards

2018-2019

e Brands of the Year — Lifestyle —
Premium Jewellery

The BrandLaureate
i K 2% 2018-2019
o FEMBAE — SHKER

Influential Brands®
BEH SRR

2019 Asia’s Top Influential Brands
* Most Trustworthy Brand —
Premium Jewellery

2019 FEMEEFZET Mg
o BMKREE — RESGEHERE

World Brand Lab
57 REERE

Five Star Diamond Brand 2019 — Luxury
2019 EEMITH¥DE#AE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARBRHREEEBRAR
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EQ1 DS Tg INNOV,

Y OR¥a " ¥ INSTITUTION

Mall China
oh g Bgt

Mall China 2019 Commercial Brands
¢ OQutstanding Leadership Award — Kent Wong
e Qutstanding Young Brands — SOINLOVE

FREEEE 2019 FRIE MR
o FHMMER —FHAHE
o FEARE S — SOINLOVE

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 5

International Entrepreneurs,
Creatives & Innovators Association

ERESFEXRHRiGE

2019 Entrepreneurship, Creativity & Innovation Awards
e |nnovative Influentials of the Year — Kent Wong

Grading Reports via Blockchain

2019 V&

o HEIANME —ERE

o &8 — EmAIKTE — T MARK x GIA
EREHIEENEEEE

Disney Consumer Products
The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong) Limited
EgatR(FE)ERATELIREERL

Best Marketing Licensee of The Year 2018
SETISHERERER AL 2018

Next Magazine
=ET

Top Service Awards 2019
e Jewellery Chain Store Category

PR ES A 2019
o EHRERAER

Hong Kong Management Association
EEEHEXRE

51st Distinguished Salesperson Award

e Distinguished Salesperson Award — Leung Kwan-Min, Lo Cheuk-Ming,

Mak Ka-Lun, Tang Wai-Tung
e Qutstanding Young Salesperson Award — Ko Chi-Hung

SR+ —ERDEHEE R
o MHEHER —REY - BIER R HER
o MHEFHHER — 8%

Major Awards and Recognitions
F 2 HIE N FEAT

° Gold ECI - Product Innovation — T MARK x GIA Digital Diamond
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Informa Markets

JNA Awards 2019 — Manufacturer of the Year — Jewellery
INA K58 2019 — FEREF AL — 5

Hong Kong Productivity Council
EEEENRERS

2019 Hong Kong Awards for Industries:
Smart Productivity Award
2019 HEAETHERE : EREENR

Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China
PEGKEELEMITERS

2" China Jewellery Design Tian Gong Award
e Best Design Award
e Certificate of Recognition

BT ERR AR R TR
o BRI

. BAEERE

Bazaar Jewelry
ETKE
Bazaar Jewelry: The Ring of True Love

e (Classic Award — SOINLOVE: Meet Collection

ESIRE AR IERAR
o LHEEHE — SOINLOVE : D& H7k

Overview
B

Hong Kong Retail Technology Industry Association
EETENRGE

Hong Kong Retail Innovation Award 2019

e Best Retail Innovation (Application) Award — Use of Technology

BT ERHRAIFTAL 2019
o RETEANER(RHER)AE

China National Light Industry Council
hEE T XSS

China Skills Competition 2019 — National Professional Skills
Competition of Gemstone Test and Production

e Enterprise Award (Outstanding Staff Development)

e Silver Award — Bruce Liu

e Merit Award — Sydnie Lei

2019 B ABEAE - 2RKE T AMAIRIERERERE
o BREEIIEBREE

o REE— ZRF

o BEREE —FEE

WorldSkills International

45" WorldSkills Competition
¢ Jewellery — Silver Medal — Chen Qi-Liang
¢ Jewellery — Medallion for Excellence — Chan Wing-Long

FABEH A KEEAE
o KREHEE—RE —REF=
o RESUE — ERE — KRB

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARBRHREEEBRAR
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HONG KONG GREEN AWARDS 2019

INY

/.

Social Welfare Department
HEEANE

Gold Award for Volunteer Service (Organisation)
Bk — BB LIEZA(EE)

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
EFERERER

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency — CSR Index Plus
BEERERER — B THERIEH

Hong Kong Productivity Council
EEEENRERS

10" Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award
e Merit Award (Enterprise Category)

ETEFEBRHOCEARE
o ERBJ(DEAR)

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

FEUEREHE

Caring Company

e Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited — 10 Years+

e Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited — 5 Years+

Annual Report 2020
2020 5%

Green Council

RRRES

Hong Kong Green Awards 2019
e Corporate Green Governance Award — Grand Award
e Green Management Award — Corporate
(Large Corporation) — Silver
e Green Purchaswi$e Award (Large Corporation) — Bronze
e Environmental, Health and Safety Award
(Large Corporate) — Bronze

BB EMLFERNE 2019

o EEBERE — K&

o EHRRERE — PE(REDE) —RHE
o PERRRBE(REDLE) —#HH%

o HBERRLEEE(RELE)— FHHE

BUSINESS .
e CORFEC ATESUSTE (BILITY SUMMIT ©

WWF Hong Kong

HRER (FE) E2§

Low Carbon Manufacturing Programme
e Gold Label

IRAR B E T 2

e BERH

.
ringcompany
HREmRE
o AABEHKEST — EHEIOFIMAL
o AAREHKEEE — EHESERU L

Major Awards and Recognitions
F 2 HIE N FEAT
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Chow Tai Fook experienced many ups and downs of the markets
in the past. Every time we came out safe and unscathed, and
grew stronger as we have always been well-prepared for the
opportunities. We strongly believe our persistent innovative spirit
will continue to steer us through turbulent times towards a
brighter future.

MIEAEE - JE KA AT IR AR BB AE 1T 3 ke A R v 22 SR B it - i L A
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FY2020 was a volatile and challenging year. The Group had a fairly
stable performance in THFY2020, while 2HFY2020 was
overshadowed by macro uncertainties and the evolving situation on
COVID-19, which took a toll on the already cautious consumer sentiment.

During FY2020, the Group's revenue decreased by 14.9% year-on-
year to HK$56,751 million. Core operating profit dropped 18.4%.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company declined 36.6%
to HK$2,901 million, with earnings per share of HK$0.29. The
Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.12 per share. Full year
payout ratio approximated 82.7% in FY2020.

Over the past nine decades, Chow Tai Fook have grown to become
the market leader in the jewellery industry. We have experienced
both good and bad times, and weathered through numerous
economic cycles. Yet every time we were able to overcome the
challenges due primarily to our persistent innovative spirit and the
wholehearted support from our fellow colleagues over the years.

The retail landscape continues to evolve and our future success
very much hinges on our ability to service multi-market segments
and divergent customer needs. Geographically, we will continue to
deepen our network, particularly in lower tier and county level
cities in Mainland China. We will also explore additional
opportunities in overseas markets that will drive future growth and
market share gain for the Group.

We are also pleased that our “Smart+ 2020" three-year strategic
framework initiated in FY2018 has made excellent progress, laying
a solid foundation for enhancing our customer experience through
a multi-brand strategy and a diversified retail experience. Today,
Chow Tai Fook successfully operates numerous brands that serve
multiple customer segments with tailored experiences. Our
continual innovation has yielded initiatives such as cloud kiosks,
D-ONE platforms and our latest online-to-offline (“020") sales
channel “CloudSales 365", all of which are in place to deliver exciting
experiences for our customers. In addition, we have also empowered
our own people to promote and sell products via social networks.

Annual Report 2020
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In the years ahead, more comprehensive strategies will be
formulated and executed, to further our fruitful journey towards
sustainability. We will introduce novel ideas and promote inquisitive
minds that deliver customer-centric solutions, enhance the Group's
value creation capability and help realise our vision to become the
most trusted jewellery group in the world.

As a visionary jewellery leader, we also have a clear mission to
build a global jewellery ecosystem, by leveraging our agile business
model that is unmatched in the industry. This inclusive jewellery
ecosystem can service the needs and demands of modern-day
consumers including, but not limited to, our franchisees, business
partners, wholesalers, as well as our peers, offering them
comprehensive omni-channel solutions such as products, services
and know-how.

With this vision and mission in mind, we shall continually invest in our
intellectual capital, products and technology and empower our people
to be “Intrapreneurs” so that the service we deliver is exemplar. In
times of turbulence, we need to stay vigilant and apply wise strategy
and rigorous risk management measures in discerning the best course
of action. | am confident that we can once again turn adversity into
opportunity by embracing changes and being open to exploring new
avenues of growth. We will definitely continue to stand as the market
leader, epitomising our Centennial Commitment and generating
sustainable returns to our shareholders.

In closing, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to my
fellow Board members for their strategic guidance, our
shareholders, business partners, customers and, not least, our
staff for their salutary dedication and commitment. As always in
Chow Tai Fook’s culture, we will move as one and continue daring
to innovate and contribute more.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 11 June 2020
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and loyalty.
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The erratic global economy and headwinds in FY2020 posed
considerable risks and challenges.
uncertainties, we stay vigilant and ensure prudent business
planning and risk management. We embrace change to turn
challenges into opportunities, which enable us to further

In view of these macro

strengthen our leading market position and support our vision of
becoming the most trusted jewellery group in the world.

Thanks to our “Smart+ 2020" strategic framework launched since
FY2018, this three-year strategic plan enabled us to focus on
enhancing our customer experience. In reviewing our businesses
and geographies today, we are delighted to see our achievements
over the past three years. With this solid foundation, we are well
positioned for a next chapter of growth and continue to deliver
exceptional customer experience that creates long-term
differentiation and loyalty.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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In reviewing our businesses and geographies today, we are
delighted to see our achievements over the past three years.
With this solid foundation, we are well positioned for a next
chapter of growth and continue to deliver exceptional
customer experience that creates long-term differentiation
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Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent =B& %4
Managing Director % 5 48 4%32
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
B3R

Mainland China 1 M Hb

Retail network

TE@E

As at 31 March 2020
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CHOW TAI FOOK brands

X
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POS POS
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CTF WATCH

BXEES

1 1 POS

TEY

*

Other brands

HipRe
HEARTS ON FIRE
s 1845 enen
T MARK
wex 80D Ghsa
ENZO SOINLOVE MONOLOGUE

Chinese consumers demonstrated resilience with their spending
power despite the macro-economic headwinds in Mainland China.

Current economic trends and demographic data indicate that lower
tier cities, such as county level cities, have a stronger rate of
consumption growth as compared to those in Tier | cities and the
household income gap between the lower tier cities and Tier |
cities has been narrowing. With relatively lower living costs and
improving infrastructural connectivity, Mainland China’s lower tier
cities are expected to be the new driver of consumption growth.

While we are observing a consumption upgrade in lower tier cities,
we also see that consumers have greater preference for value and
utility as they become more educated about the products they buy
and consumers are also increasingly focused on personalised
products and exclusive experiences. Therefore, to succeed in this
changing market, a customer-centric approach is necessary to
better serve each unique consumer segment, which drives us to
refine our strategy in the Mainland China market.

Annual Report 2020
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Retail network

We adopted a two-pronged strategy for Mainland China’s retail
network development.

Firstly, we improved the customer experience through
upgrading our stores and introducing ARTRIUM and JEWELRIA
to our CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY retail network, primarily
located in Tier | and Il cities, targeting customers who seek for
unique experience.

Secondly, in recent years, we have expanded our presence in
lower tier and county level cities through the franchise model to
capture the growth potential emanating from their consumption
upgrade. We leveraged the local knowledge and access from
our franchise partners to achieve this goal.

As at 31 March 2020, our number of CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
POS in Tier lll and lower tier cities already accounted for 45.7%
of our total POS in Mainland China from 33.3% as at 31 March 2017.

Our multi-brand strategy continues to succeed in Mainland China,
allowing us to diversify our product portfolio and tap into different
market segments, which helps expand our market share.

In the past three years, we continued our rollout of HEARTS ON FIRE,
a premium diamond brand with delicate cutting and polishing
skills, and T MARK, our proprietary diamond brand with a unique
traceability feature. We also introduced the two other brands,
SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE, primarily targeting younger
customers in FY2018.

We continue to pursue new business opportunities such as
brand acquisitions to further expand our footprint. In FY2020,
we acquired ENZO, enabling us to further venture into the
coloured gemstone market.

Omni-channel retailing

Apart from physical store expansion, we understand customers
now value seamless shopping experience that centre around
the integration of online and offline channels.

We have therefore placed much emphasis on channel
integration in order to acquire and cultivate brand awareness
amongst new younger customers and enhance the overall
shopping experience.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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Hong Kong, Macau and Other Markets ik, " Kz oAt ifi B

Retail network

TE@E

As at 31 March 2020
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Hong Kong and Macau are relatively mature markets. As shown in BEERRFIRBEHRANTS - BITEHBET
the industry data, both retail sales performance of jewellery EAUREXTEREEEAYRTBEAMMITBEAZRE
industry™ and Mainland Chinese visitations? in Hong Kong 20200 B FE B KGR L - I8R5 H040% MY K 1E o
recorded an approximately 40% decline year-on-year in FY2020. BMRBETBRRER - mBNEFTmkE -

We believe that the markets will remain challenging in the

foreseeable future.

(1) Value of retail sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts in Hong Kong according (1) B ERLLEERNEBNTEELHEEE  FAFBENITR
to the Census and Statistics Department of the HKSAR Government & BT st
(2)  Source: Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of the HKSAR Government (20 BHFR: EEFITRERMEERCBEERR
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In the Asian market, particularly ASEAN countries, we expect to
see good growth potentials when the market recovers as the
impact of COVID-19 fades away. Key economic indicators also
show that ASEAN countries are on a growth trajectory. With the
rising middle income class and a growing spending capacity in
these countries, we believe that there will be a higher demand for
quality products and services. Apart from local economic growth,
Chinese outbound tourism is growing fast. According to the data
from China Tourism Academy, Chinese tourists made 149 million
overseas trips, increased by 14.7% year-on-year in 2018 and some
ASEAN countries are one of their favourite destinations. These
growth opportunities could be captured through expansion into
these markets.

As for the US market, demand for diamond jewellery continued to
capture around 50% of the total global diamond demand and the
US demand increased by 5% to US$36 billion in 2018®. Yet the
pandemic caused additional challenges to the market.

Retail network

Hong Kong and Macau

* We remain selective in POS openings while POS consolidation
continues, especially in the touristic areas. Improving store
productivity is our priority.

* Yet, we believe that building unique customer experience plays
an important role in meeting different customer expectations.
Hence we introduced ARTRIUM, targeting high-end customers,
and SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE to attract younger customers.

* We have also refurbished and upgraded our store design and
introduced experience shops to create a better and more
comfortable shopping experience.

(3)  Source: The Diamond Insight Report 2019 by De Beers Group

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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Asia

To capture the growth opportunities in the Asian market, we
have placed much effort in expanding our presence through
partnering with local retailers through franchise model,
leveraging on their local knowledge and expertise to co-create
greater value.

As at 31 March 2020, we had 44 POS in total, with a net
addition of 14 POS in the Asian market compared to that of
three years ago, which included Cambodia, Japan, Korea,
Malaysia, the Philippines, Singapore, Thailand, Vietnam, etc.

We will further explore opportunities in Southeast Asia,
specifically countries with high growth potentials that benefit
from Chinese outbound tourism and rising local middle-class.
We will bring regionally exclusive products with locality features
that create unique product differentiation.

North America

We established Chow Tai Fook North America (“CTFNA")
business hub in Boston, the United States, which is positioned
to become a leading, single source wholesaler in the market.
We aim to achieve this by delivering products, services and
know-how, with a focus on technological innovations that help
drive profitability and strengthen jewellery retail businesses in
the North American market.

CTFNA offers customised, specialty collections in the diamond
and fine jewellery segments, as well as private label offerings,
to address the evolving needs of jewellery consumers.

The Group's know-how and scale, combined with the deep local
knowledge and experience of our North American team allow us
to deliver greater value to the retail jewellers in North America.

Annual Report 2020
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“SMART+ 2020” STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK
[SMART+ 2020 | 5% W% HE 22

Our “Smart+ 2020” strategic framework is a three-year strategic work plan supported by our dedicated Smart
working teams, which are tasked with the delivery of each strategy from conception through to execution. In
reviewing our businesses and geographies today, we are delighted to see our achievements over the past three years.
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Brands and Products il

HEARTS ON FIRE
US premium diamond
brand with exquisite
cutting craftsmanship

=20
FE o

A ARTRIUM

AXxEaz

Chow Tai Fook’s exclusive high-jewellery
experience that melds contemporary
design with a classic spirit
AXRERGEEERR  SRBATE
XLRHHBRERERSREKERS

JEWELRIA
AXEEE

Chow Tai Fook's
diversified retail
experience which
offers international
jewellery product

FEHYE TEH offerings
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TERR TXESE
BBR TR @ hE

CHOWTAI FOOK
JEWELLERY
BAXEH%E

Iconic brand

with classic
product offerings
RO HE DAY

F It ke

ENZO

Creative and
contemporary
coloured gem
jewellery brand

AAIE REMRE
MY EEOmE

T MARK

In pursuit of true
diamond authenticity
and traceability

BPELAERNER

SOINLOVE

Jewellery gifting brand
for romantic ladies
BEMEERLENKE
XiEmhg

Stylish fashion jewellery
for young generation
FR-RBEE
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26 ‘ Managing Director's Strategic Report Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ERBLERRRE AXRBHEEERRAA



Multi-brand strategy

Rising middle income class and changing consumption structure
continuously drive demand for more personalised products and
services, which goes beyond the conventional shopping
experience. To meet today’s ever-changing customer expectations,
we have adopted multi-brand strategy which we believe is
necessary to better serve each unique consumer segment and
enable us to create long-term differentiation and loyalty.

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY and endorsed brands

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY

e Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand “CHOW TAI FOOK" has
been widely recognised for its trustworthiness and authenticity,
and is renowned for its product design, quality and value.

e CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY continues to invest and innovate
in product offerings and features. One of the most remarkable
achievements is our renowned jewellery collection, CTF ® HUA
Collection that emphasises on a natural balance between
cultural, heritage and modern aesthetics and contributed 32.2%
of our gold product retail sales value in FY2020 of our Mainland
China market. Its another design, Imperial Jade ® HUA
Collection, crafted in pure gold with precious jade also
demonstrates exquisite craftsmanship and deep affiliation with
ancient Chinese culture.

e Qur 17916 Collection in 22 Karat gold was also introduced as a
response to the evolving demand from customers for seeking
diversity in jewellery products.

e Experience shops introduced in Hong Kong since FY2018 have
been gaining traction, with their rejuvenated shopping
experiences and elegant shop ambience widely embraced by
our customers. On the back of this success, a gradual rollout
of experience shops in Mainland China is on track. As at 31
March 2020, we had 5 POS in Hong Kong and Macau and 6
POS in Mainland China, respectively among the total POS of
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY.

CTF e HUA Collection
BAREEERT

17916 Collection
17916 %%
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ARTRIUM

Building upon its 90 years of history, Chow Tai Fook offers
exclusive high jewellery experience and the next level of luxury
to its customers through ARTRIUM. Inspired by 5,000 years of
Chinese art and culture, ARTRIUM brings a sense of wonder
and appreciation to each piece, reimagining the craft of
storytelling through high jewellery.

JEWELRIA

JEWELRIA is a designers’ hub of international jewellery product
offerings catering for the demand of increasingly sophisticated
customers. It offers an eclectic mix of oriental-designed,
western-styled to international branded jewellery.

Annoushka and Kagayoi are two international brands that have
joined the JEWELRIA family last year. They provide a sense of
delightful novelty to our sophisticated customers.

Annoushka is a brand established by the renowned designer
Annoushka Ducas MBE. It displays playfulness, wearability and
daily glamour through the bold colour combinations.

Kagayoi, a jewellery brand from Japan founded in 1861, that
embodies Kyoto's unique aesthetic sense and deep heritage.

Beauty Art High Jewellery Collection
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e - TRBMIEFTE -

Annoushka & Z &R AR F R B Z A E L6
Annoushka Ducas Bl Z & & - U AKEHAENE
TR BREIUK - SFEB U4 B PEREENA
5% 77 -

JRB BZAH) Kagayoi migia 8I17A 1861 4  §EIE m&B
B ERAIRERN X LEL -

Products of Kagayoi (above) and Annoushka (below)
Kagayoi () #1 Annoushka (F) %k B & &
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Guardian of Life Collection
SFE—E RS

T MARK

Our T MARK diamond brand was launched in 2016 to
revolutionise the century-old diamond authentication process
with our pioneering “4Ts"” concept — Traceable, Transparent,
Truthful and Thoughtful.

We collaborated with Gemological Institute of America,
leveraging blockchain technology, to deliver secure and digital
diamond grading reports to our customers and to offer additional
assurance on the quality of a T MARK diamond.

We also collaborated with key insurance providers to provide
customers with a value-added protection on selective T MARK
diamond products in FY2020. These initiatives further earn our
customers'’ trust, as well as setting a new standard for the industry.

In FY2020, T MARK products accounted for 19.3% and 27.8%
of the RSV of our diamond products in Mainland China and
Hong Kong and Macau, respectively.

RSV dropped 9.2% and 41.0% year-on-year in Mainland China
and Hong Kong and Macau, respectively.

HEARTS ON FIRE

HEARTS ON FIRE is the world's first diamond brand revered for
its diamond cutting perfection. HEARTS ON FIRE strictly selects
the purest rough diamonds and entrusts them to the hands of
master craftsmen.

In FY2020, the brand was delighted to introduce a new jewellery
collection designed by Hayley Paige, one of the most sought-
after bridal dress designers from the United States. The new
Hayley Paige for HEARTS ON FIRE Collection, combined the
whimsical and modern aesthetics of Paige’s dresses that
translated into a unique and captivating bridal jewellery line, was
unveiled in October 2019.

In FY2020, HEARTS ON FIRE accounted for 1.4% and 3.6% of
the RSV of our diamond products in Mainland China and Hong
Kong and Macau, respectively.

RSV dropped 34.8% and 53.3% year-on-year in Mainland China
and Hong Kong and Macau, respectively. The HEARTS ON FIRE
retail network in Mainland China has undergone restructure during
the year and will continue to target sophisticated customers and
penetrate into the high-end market through SIS and CIS.

Annual Report 2020
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T MARK Touch Collectic
T MARK [#48] #£6 25|

T MARK
HMR2016FHEEARET MARK - L&

By [4Ts| Bi2 (AT =~ A4 -
HRFARNELREBIE

A {5 & AT UK Bt

BMEXEEAARLEAE  MARBERM - @
BERAZEMNBBEAETES - BT MARKE
AME R RMUERIMRE ©

FWTEE\X%%AATAVF R2020 0 RFE A
BERIRESET MARKEAERIZERRE - 8§
—PREERNET  TATTESIN THIRE -

12020 ﬁ?fLBZEV T MARKE&E?%F?EEF Rt A
LEBNRPIEONERTEEDR19.3% % 27.8% °

PEAMAREENMRFATEED M TE.2%
}41.0% -

HEARTS ON FIRE

HEARTS ON FIREZ 2 HE —AEKETEET
EETEW?EW%E’J%E%HE‘E HEARTS ON FIRE

Tﬂﬁt ERAFEIRMEAEL - AR ARMHEL
T3

R2020 BN FE - RIEMABBERARIEBY &
FT Bl Hayley Paige &2 st 87 ¥ ELE 2% - 1 20194F
10 A# 2% 1 HEARTS ON FIRE x Hayley Paige
B2 2% - B Paige i 5T A IE Y RME — IR A AGE #T
FTABHTEMRARESR @ ABR/MERANE
IRERE RS o

2020 Bf Bt 5 Z - HEARTS ON FIRE 5% f97E
BEAMAREERBIEAERSZEESF1.4%
$3.6% o

RN R TS RRPITEED B T3 34.8% &
53.3% > HEARTS ON FIRER A B N ih 59 Z & 48
BRFRNETER  THEEREARKNEER
NIEFRERENERLERIHEMS ©

Hayley Paige for HEARTS ON FIRE Collection
HEARTS ON FIRE x Hayley Paige i+ %75
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Ocean Collection
EEEF R

ENZO ENZO

¢ InFY2020, we were pleased to have ENZO joining our Chow Tai Fook o R2020BFE - HZMEREEENZOMA T AKRE
family. Founded in 2004, ENZO is distinguished by exquisite FIRZKEE » R 2004 F L HWENZO B E R T &
craftsmanship and creativity and will maintain its niche position as MAIZRE  BEEERALERMOBETISE
a natural coloured gem specialist to complement the Group's multi- i EESENZLERE  CRME-—FPHEY
brand strategy, enabling us to further venture into the coloured EEENTS -

gemstone market.

* As at 31 March 2020, ENZO had 59 POS in Mainland China, e 202043 A31H ENZOE F B A #b B 591#

primarily located in Tier | and Il cities. TEHR TEUR—BRRIEHT -

SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE SOINLOVE % MONOLOGUE

* We have been ambitious in exploring innovative promotional o BMUERRAIFAHEREREE  ESOINLOVE R
channels to connect SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE with MONOLOGUE B4 AR 2 B & o

younger customers.

e Within just two years since the launch of these two new brands, they e MENMEHLEEMNFAEESFEERN
have already gained much attention from the younger customers and BT ERERIERKETEHBMEE -
achieved growth in both brand recognition and revenue.

e We raised our brand awareness and influence through brands o HMBAEEAMS KNMENT] A a] LK% EED)

collaborations, such as Coca-Cola and Game of Thrones; ZEE RRABTRERMNERTZE N  RARKRE
innovative and playful in product development, such as the use BIEFMIRMAERALE  NERAELES P
of vintage gold and pink coloured gold; as well as promoting BEE - AREBIRFFREIE Rt SR THEE -

through pop-up stores and social media.

‘ Monogold Collection e P
HeER R

Gold Sweeties Pink Collection
EHe R

fp=o
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Retail Experience

Omni-channel retailing

To cope with the changing environment, the integration of
digital technologies is the key to removing consumer pain points
and creating a seamless shopping experience.

In view of this, we have focused on developing our omni-
channel capabilities in the past three years. Our strategy has
been proven right when the COVID-19 pandemic accelerated
the pace of digitalisation globally at all levels which
fundamentally altered customers’ buying habits. During the
epidemic outbreak in Mainland China, while practicing social
distancing, we managed to keep our customers closer by
leveraging “CloudSales 365" and livestreaming.

"CloudSales 365" is a mini-programme built upon WeChat Work
platform that connects to our eShop and equips our staff with
easier customer management tools. It provides our customers
and staff a one-stop experience anytime and anywhere on their
mobile devices.

Livestreaming is booming in Mainland China. We leverage this
to drive real-time customer interactions, enabling them to share
immediate feedback.

We collaborated with Austin Li, a renowned key opinion leader
("KOL") in Mainland China, for a charity livestreaming event in
March 2020 with overwhelming results. Around 5,000 pieces of
jewellery products were immediately sold within 30 seconds.

Cloud kiosk is another example of our relentless innovation. It is
an 020 hub linking online orders at physical locations to our
e-commerce platform where customers can experience a
shorter transaction time and wider product selection anytime
and anywhere. Thanks to this flexible setup, there were over
700 spots, primarily at our POS in Mainland China, as at 31
March 2020.

To increase our brand visibility and awareness, themed pop-up
stores that infused with technology were introduced in
numerous cities across Mainland China, and they delivered
novel and engaging customer experiences.

Charity livestreaming event featuring
renowned KOL Austin Li

P EANE@AFERERNARERE

Annual Report 2020
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PEBEZBY - AL RIS EREE -

[EF365] BRERMEME LN/ NMEF - EBEE

BPIERERE  RETRHEGINETERE
TH ZETNETIAABEREN HEEBTH
FAE-UAHAER -

R EEBERBE A AITEE - I A R
PHETZNEFN  FUMNFRAEESR -

H IR 20204 3 H E A E R WA FERAENZE
ENBEREHRERR A0V REL T H
5,000 K& -

EWABERENRLIEELEZTERHTE B8
ERTRERANS A8  AREMEEEEE 1
20203 A318 - © A iB700 85K & H 5 ot
KE FESEhEPEANM  FBLEEXSHERE -
AR BB R REE R AT EZNERER -

AR DB A ERBAE - HMAEFEAMHSE
MK TEEENRERAE - I & ER R
TR REEERGTNESER -

CloudSales 365
E7365

“Smart+ 2020" Strategic Framework
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Customer relationship management

We are dedicated to enhancing our membership programme in
order to retain the loyalty of our customers. Since April 2018,
members in Mainland China could earn points upon purchases.
The digitalisation of our customer relationship programme
allows for members’ privileges to be consolidated and managed
under one account with all brands under the Group.

As more business partners have been joining this programme
since its launch, more lifestyle rewards and privileges are made
available for redemptions via WeChat mobile app. Such
redemption increases the attractiveness of our customer
relationship programme.

CHOW TAI FOOK membership programme
AXEES:tE

As at 31 March 2020
7A2020%F3A31H

Mainland China

BRERREE

BMHBNELGEFE - NEBRBETNILRE -
520184 A - B A B 58 Y A BREUE
DeoEEGEABNBL  SEAEEE T E M
EOHEZREBTFAN —ERFEANERER -

B ARE S EEG R ZEME 28K
MEFHREARN  IREZAERKRBEHEES
238 - BEERE LB FIHEE T EETHER BN
U EIPR

As at 31 March 2020

hE M

()
g _

FY2020

24.9%

Members' repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV

EEBHELERTEEZESL

2,490,000

Number of members
EE#E

FY2020

7202063H31H

35.5%

Members’ repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV
EEEHBNERTEEZESL

Hong Kong and Macau
EERIRM

()
e _

1,180,000

Number of members

FEHE

NS

Customisation

We adopted a more customer-driven approach in our production

and operations in order to drive excellence in the customer experience.

Production framework

In order to deliver a personalised shopping experience for our
customers, we developed our production framework in FY2018
which was characterised by four key principles: Standardisation,
Automation, Digitalisation and Intelligence.

Since standardising and streamlining procedures, we have been
increasingly focused on automation to enhance our production
efficiency and reliability. For instance, Phase Il of our Logistics
and Distribution Centre in Shunde began operations in August
2018, which doubled our daily inventory distribution capacity,
providing sufficient support to our operations.

Managing Director's Strategic Report
EEERERERE
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BMMEEREERDNBEIENTR @ HBERHN
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HEER
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Digitalisation and intelligence drive reliability and consistency
along the key areas of our supply chain. Our RFID technology
has already been deployed in our three major production hubs,
including Wuhan, Shenzhen and Shunde, to monitor the
production status and speed up the order tracking process.
Intelligent equipment monitoring system was also installed in
selected production lines to monitor the efficiency of machinery
in real time.

A more flexible manufacturing process allows us to engage our
customers along the supply chain from product design,
manufacturing and logistics to distribution.

With these solid foundations, we are well equipped to complete
our Customer to Manufactory (“C2M") journey.

C2Mm

As a pilot, we introduced a jewellery customisation online platform
named D-ONE in Mainland China in 2017. It offers our customers a
unigue experience in creating their own jewellery by choosing the
diamonds and settings according to their own preferences.

To further enhance our customer experience, C2M experience
centre in Shenzhen was established to provide our customers a
more tailored services during the D-ONE experience.

Backed by our strong production base, we are able to make a
customised product available and ready for delivery, within 24
hours from customer order.

D-ONE customisation procedures
D-ONE E#IEF

y W

Jewellery setting Product Online payment
and diamond personalisation @ F& 4
selection Bt E§

BERERAER

Annual Report 2020
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o HWBRBEBDRHMFMEEETZELNA
FUER—BIERE - BRIAHRBMD REE -
RYIRIEE=AEEREBEA - BERAEEN R R
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o FEAMBREBIEARMEMER L ERE
HERMRAZEDH BRI ER

Tim = E makaT
EREEH o

B E

e EEEBEERL BAMERHERBETHIRHR
(FC2M ) E BB o

C2M
. ﬁ1F33@2017¢E¢Wiﬂ%ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁj%?%FD—ONEJ
KEERR LTS BEFREAZSHFREEAD
m‘t EZEAREEMHNBERER -

o RARYIRIC2ZMEBERELH L EETHRIER
D-ONE ZEHIBRT « E— HIRRAFERER

o BHEANBAEEES EHEQUABEE T
STER 24 NS PEBRA -

e b

Production Delivery
ETRF within 24 hours
24INEF P R4
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Insights

Customers

* We further enhanced the features of Smart Tray to optimise
customer satisfaction. This included enabling members’ check-
in through Smart Trays at certain selected POS in Mainland
China, which helps us to identify loyal members and provide
relevant products and services that help facilitate product design
and assortment strategies.

Operations

¢ Ongoing efforts in the use of big data analytics enables us to
evaluate customer satisfaction on products and services in order
to generate useful insights for enhancing staff training and
product quality, as well as optimising inventory replenishment.

Culture

We believe that culture is the key enabler behind continued
innovation and our ability to attract and retain talent to contribute to
the sustainable development of the Group and the jewellery
industry as a whole.

Internal incubators to support innovation

Setup of Sustainability and Innovation Centre (“Sl Centre”)

e We are committed to uplifting our customer experience by
harnessing innovation and technology across our core operations.

e To facilitate the more effective allocation of resources, and to
support our conventional jewellery retail business, we set up a
SI Centre in April 2018, comprising of three key focus areas —
culture and art, craftsmanship and creativity.

e A designated management team is responsible for the
investment in innovation, brand management, culture and art,
craftsmanship, technology and data applications to underpin the
sustainable growth of the Group.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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Innovator development: putting intrapreneurship into practice

Despite the COVID-19 outbreak resulting in the temporary POS
closure, we onboarded our frontline and back office employees
to refer customers to our mobile shopping platform in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau. We equipped all employees with
this platform to keep connecting with customers and share our
best offers via social media. Not only did we open up new
revenue stream, what was the most valuable was the good vibe
generated in everyone's personalised message to friends and
family using this platform.

Unbounded working environment

The "“Slash” co-working space in our offices promote agile and
autonomous way to work. Less the limit of department and
function, teams collaborated seamlessly in a diverse array of
projects. The flow and exchange of ideas energised the young
generation to develop into a T-shaped talent. We also adopted
user-centric employee experience such as flexible work
arrangement and experiential learning, resulting in better
engagement and collaboration.

Our group-wide annual summit this year was unprecedentedly
conducted online, connecting our management and over 10,000
employees to learn about our latest strategies and roadmap.

Loupe Jewellery Academy

As part of our relentless efforts to incubate potential talents, the
Group was honoured to partner with the Haute Ecole de Joaillerie
in 2019, one of the world's most prestigious jewellery
institutions to set up the Loupe Jewellery Academy.

BIMAASER - EBRAEEREH

L]

BE2019FBRAERBETEHLEEEX B
BMBETHRLREHET - EhERNM - FEKR
BEMBEESISIHMANFERBY TS - BTEE
Fe TEBHRKBEHETIEER  HERIE
MEFENEMRE - T A TMEARMFAAIK
ARR - EREMRAEALFaRRAEEEA
{ERIRILE ©

EHRI TERE

[Slash] KE THEZ=MARMNBLAEHEREA
T TERN AT EFI BB AR - 5 E
AT B R A9 IR B R AR 5 1F o BB B S M ) E
FE-RFRATEAT - A RARKARS
A B TR PIMEHENE TERIEMNERS
B HEIERATLE  NRWGE-

SEEENFEREENAS ERENET  RAN
EEEHEBBI10,0002ETEHSE  THREMANSEH
REEFNEEREEA o

Loupe Bk E 2Pk

SEAEEASTERN  FEELFER2019F Bt
R B % B 207 Haute Ecole de Joaillerie & 1 -
AL Loupe BRE W26k o

“Slash” co-working space
[Slash] = T2

91t Anniversary Online Summit

N AFHLEE
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External innovative incubators

Loupe

e A design incubation space was established in December 2017
to foster creativity and to provide an engagement platform for
local and international talent in the jewellery sector.

e \We aim to nurture young jewellery talent in engaging ways such
as offering co-working space where they can share design
ideas, acquire craftsmanship techniques and participate in
workshops led by industry professionals.

C* Creative Park

e Echoing the spirit of innovation and entrepreneurship advocated
by the Chinese government, the C* Creative Park at our
Jewellery Park in Wuhan, Mainland China, aims to promote our
entrepreneurial culture through supporting entrepreneurs and
assists them to address common challenges and obstacles
faced by many business start-ups.

Loupe co-working space for designers
Loupe A& =T AMIR M H = TIFZEMH
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Loupe

e R2017F12 RBIMAZRAEEER  BEE
BRAINE - AERMMEBEIRIREE AL REZIRES ©

o BMEAERUHFTTHEREEHHTAEFFEK
BEAT  2EEFEADZRAME - ERTERM
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C:RIEE
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Loupe promotional poster
Loupe E1&/5 %
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OPERATIONS SUPPORT
B SR

The transformation journey continues with our three major
corporate functions, namely intellectual capital, finance and
information technology. Through strengthening our digital
competence, refining operation structure and enhancing operational
efficiency, we continuously identify and pursue value-added
opportunities that support the Group's strategic development.

Intellectual Capital
Our employees
HMWET

As at 31 March 2020
7A202063H31H

BPM=ZKEEDE : BHEXR  MBEERBRZ
EERREL RMAEEZE A FOBINEN R
EERBIRALERE  BEBBANRRALA AR
EEEBE I ERNIGERS

g
=
I
>

Total number of employees * Number of employees by reportable segment
ETHH RO 255 EREI B S T4
29,700+
I —————
/

Mainland China

Hong Kong, Macau

Number of employees FE R and other markets
BTEA B8 RPIR TS
Number of employees by function
REREE B THY
62.5% 16.3% 21.2%
e I —
Sales Production  General and
SHE EE administration

—RRATH

e The transformation of the Human Resources function into a
Global Intellectual Capital Hub is our response to the
continuously evolving new retail ecosystem. To keep up with
our customers who are way more informative nowadays, we
aim to unleash collective brainpower of our global workforce, to
elevate their world view and strengthen our overall capabilities.

e We open opportunities for all employees to ignite more
innovation. A disrupted approach is adopted to encourage new
ideas worldwide through our debut Global Innovation Award and
Snowball Product Incubation Campaign for process and product
innovation respectively.

e At Chow Tai Fook, we offer opportunities for all employees to
become their best self. Living our notion of “Heritage ®
Innovation e Sharing” coined in the 90" Anniversary last year,
our people never stop learning and exploring ways to keep
ourselves curious and creative.

Annual Report 2020
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e In FY2020, through an experiential learning approach, we o R2020MENFE  BMAARREEN A &

recorded over 1,920,000 training hours in total, with over 50% HEp8 111,920,000 EF I/ - BEHF A B
conducted online, leveraging our home-grown mobile FHRENFHEAEANGGSETLERE LET -

applications and video conferencing platforms.

=

Intellectual Intrapreneur Management Trainee 2019
BEANCEREBEIREIIEFE12019

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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We are continuing our efforts to refine our IT Governance
Framework to improve strategic alignment, IT resources &
performance management, and IT risk management. A number of
initiatives were introduced during FY2020:

e Enhancement on the IT project management tool and
refinement on the Software Development Life Cycle (“SDLC")
processes for better IT operating efficiency and effectiveness;

e Adoption of IT services recharge and service level agreement
mechanism to improve IT demand management;

* Revision of the enterprise cloud strategy to identify
opportunities to improve system scalability and flexibility;

e Formation of enterprise project management office for better
alignment of the Group's business and IT strategies, and
management of strategic project portfolio; and

e Enhancement of solution architecture and information security capabilities.

We are focused on helping the Group achieve its business
objectives by streamlining and automating business processes and
maintaining a competitive edge in the market.

Annual Report 2020
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FY2020 was a challenging year for us, especially in 4QFY2020. In
this unprecedented period, we upheld our values of People First
and continue our focus on the talent development and unleash the
potential capabilities of our employees. We also treat this time as
an opportunity for us to be more creative and continue to explore
ways to reimage our business model and prepare for a stronger
business rebound as markets recover. With a solid foundation built
over the years, we are well positioned for our next chapter of growth.

Although our Mainland China operations severely suffered in
4QFY2020 due to the pandemic, we have seen signs of recovery as
the business in Mainland China resumes. Government policies and
measures have been released to support businesses and resumption
of production. We are cautiously optimistic about the short-term
business outlook. We shall continue our market expansion strategy
through franchise model as the situation stabilises and the online-
offline channel integrations to take advantage of the digital trends.
Also, we shall continue our multi-brand strategy to better serve each
unique customer segment. Despite the recent headwinds, we remain
optimistic about the mid-to long-term prospects of the jewellery
market in Mainland China.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the market will remain challenging in the
foreseeable future. As the customer base has been reshaped, we
shall continue to consolidate our retail network, rationalise cost
structure and refine our business strategies. Apart from focusing
on store efficiency, we also place an emphasis on transforming our
current business model through innovation and technology in order
to enhance retail experience, improve operational efficiency and
strengthen our market leadership position.

Going forward, we shall continue to implement our customer-
centric strategy with the vision of achieving our four long-term goals
to: 1) be the market leader through further market penetration, 2)
develop a comprehensive jewellery ecosystem, 3) be a tech-savvy
jewellery company through harnessing innovation and technology,
4) improve operational efficiency through digital transformation. The
tasks will center on improving business model agility and
organisational structure through technology and employee
empowerment, which will allow us to respond rapidly to market
changes, strengthen supply-chain capabilities through streamlining
the processes, automation and data analytics and enhance our
competitive edge to achieve long-term sustainable growth.

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
Managing Director
Hong Kong, 11 June 2020
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW
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The Group had a stable performance in 1HFY2020 as supported by a steady growth in Mainland China, while it was
overshadowed by macro uncertainties and COVID-19 epidemic in 2HFY2020.

AR [ (1 R M SRS AEAD E R 0 2 20200 BUAEBE BCE AR REG R BIASE o MEZZIBLAS W I PR 2 1 2021956 AR 27 2 175
PRAERBURARA R -

+
Overview 1t s
Revenue B
Revenue by reportable segment {ZT 2RSS EEEE
For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE
(HK$ million B&EB7T)
YoY ch
70,000 66,661 HEETL
60,000 56,592 59,156 56,751 v 14.9%
51,246
50,000
63.7%
5 62.2%
40,000 59.5% 60.5% 71.8% v 3.9%
I
30,000 Mainland China
REI A ity
20,000
I
40.5% % 37.8% 36.3% Hong Kong, Macau and
10,000 39.5% 28.2% v 34.0% other markets
BB BFRAEMTS
0 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
MIBFE MIFE
LY T
Revenue (HK$ million) HEE(EEBT) 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 THFY2020 2HFY2020 E1:4 114 [@ Lt {t
Mainland China R A 3 18,022 24,410 20,224 20,539 a 12.2% v 15.9%
Hong Kong, Macau and BE BRMREMTS
other markets 11,681 12,548 9,309 6,679 v 20.3% v 46.8%
Overall =g 29,703 36,958 29,533 27,218 w 0.6% w 26.4%

* The Group's revenue declined by 14.9% to HK$56,751 million in °
FY2020, mainly attributable to the COVID-19 epidemic in
4QFY2020, a surge in international gold price that dampened

the retail demand for gold products, and a weak performance in

Hong Kong.

Management Discussion and Analysis

EIRETHEDT

20200 MEEAKBENEEETR149% =
56,751 BB BT - TE2HMN 2020 REEEMZE
EHBR2019TMRHmFRIE - BB ELNT
BREMNOTEFR  URBBORBRBAE -
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Revenue from Mainland China was down slightly by 3.9% in
FY2020. Our store expansion strategy and steady SSSG there
supported a decent revenue growth of 12.2% during THFY2020,
which buffered a 15.9% decline in 2HFY2020 in the backdrop of
the epidemic. Its contribution to the Group's revenue was lifted
to 71.8% in FY2020.

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, revenue dropped by
34.0% during FY2020. Revenue decline accelerated to 46.8%
year-on-year in 2HFY2020 due to the virus outbreak.

o RE AU N2020 K FEMEXEBEEMT R
39% - EHMERRBMBENREHELRSD

3 52 2020 B IR AR 2
122% )& - &M T
B % 15 T 8515 15.9 % B & &

¥ FHEXEERS
2020 EFE T F
FE - N2020 BF

E - BB AR R B S R R E AN T ET1.8% o

o FHB  RPFINEMTISN 2020 FE R 2 X H
TI234.0% - SARBRBOTE 2020 HFE

THFNEERRF 46

Revenue by product (excluding jewellery trading and service income from franchisees)
RERESHEEE (TLEKREE S RMAFHHRBFIN)
For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 BILFE

(HK$ million & &)

8% °

YoY change
70,000 65,966 %24
60,000 56,126 57,892 22.8% 56,250 v 14.7%
50,821 .
50,000 26.8% 23.7% 22.0% v 17.5%
25.3% ——
40,000 Gem-set jewellery BRI &2 & &f
61.1% P
30,000 . 640, S 59.9% v 16.3% Gold products E®E R
o 57.4% —
20,000 Platinum/Karat gold products
e KEER

10,000 5 o o -

' 12.4% 11.5% 10.9% 10.6% 12.0% v 3.9%

| 5.0% 1 5.7% [l 6.0% I 5.5% 6.1% v 6.4% Watches
0 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

% of Revenue EEBEL 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 1HFY2020 2HFY2020
Gem-set jewellery IREE R B 23.4% 22.2% 23.3% 20.6%
Gold products ELEM 60.5% 61.5% 58.9% 61.1%
Platinum/Karat gold products HEKEED 10.5% 10.7% 11.4% 12.6%
Watches $Eik 5.6% 5.5% 6.4% 5.7%

Revenue of gold products declined by 16.3% in FY2020 as a
result of high comparison base and gold price volatility. Gold
products’ contribution to the Group's revenue was reduced by
120 basis points year-on-year to 59.9%.

Revenue of gem-set jewellery also fell 17.5% during the
financial year due to challenging macros.

On the other hand, platinum/karat gold products demonstrated
a relatively better performance, backed by the successful launch
of more contemporary collections and fixed-price gold jewellery
in FY2020.

Annual Report 2020
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° BLEMMN202000 BFEEMNEEETFE16.3% -
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o TREREEERE B EUFE B S KRR R ) R
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SSSG
SSSG by major market BREEHIZENWEAEHEER

26.0% 23.0%
o,

9.1% 10.5%

79 %
38% _ 57% —6.0%. .ys% 23t
. :
\5 0 %\\10_9% —
o,

74%
\ -35.0%
P

FIESHEER

e
-423% 49-5% Mainland China
Rl A it
. —e—
-65.0% Hong Kong and Macau
BEKREM
10 20 30 40 10 20 30 4Q
FY2019 FY2020
FY2019 FY2020

SSS volume
SSSG SSSG growth
FENEEE FEMEEE REHEYER
Mainland China B A a34% w15.1% v 24.0%
Hong Kong and Macau BERIEM a87% w387% w435%

* The epidemic and volatile macro environment inevitably affected

both the businesses in Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau,
in particular during 4QFY2020. This led to a significant volume
decline in both Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau.

In Mainland China, SSSG in the first nine months of FY2020
stayed positive at 2.0% while it plummeted to negative 49.5%
in 4QFY2020. As a result, SSS in Mainland China dropped by
15.1% during FY2020. Yet, Same Store ASP stayed on a
favourable trend with 11.7% increment in FY2020. Including
e-commerce business, our Mainland China SSS dropped
approximately by 14.0%, with SSS volume declined by 21.0%.

In FY2020, the performance of Hong Kong and Macau was
further shadowed by the sluggish business environment in
Hong Kong, resulting in a decrease of 38.7% in SSS during the
financial year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

RELTROZBELEREHCEZEPTEAUIN
REEFBMNER - LERZ2020 M REREFENE
[E o BEERBEP B A IARES RRFIH H 2 B
fRERE

R2020 R FEENMEA - A EAHEE EHE
RFFIEHER2.0% - 112020 9 BFEEMEE =
KERAIEKA9.5% o Htt - § B A #2020 8 B F
E2FHREHEE TMHE15.1% A - 2020 1 B
FENRETFHEEFBERNTLERI1.7% - &5
ABEFEE BMANPEAMBEHEE TR
14.0% @ RIEHE AR 4921.0% -

2020 BREE - BRENEERERBNMZERTER
WPIRERR - BHEEHERHHFEREANRD38.7% °
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Profitability
Group %M

For the year ended 31 March #%3 A31 HIEFE

BHEED

Core operating profit? by reportable segment
RO E2RSBPESHEEEZRF?

For the year ended 31 March #%3 A31 HIEFE
(HKS million & &#7t)

279% 29.6% 6,000
212% —_— 5,004 5,096
o 5,000
4,267
20.4%
18.5% 18.0% o 4,000 2,253
© o 2,942
3,000 2,414
9.5% 10.5% 10.0% 2,000 o
. h 1,339
1,042 2,843
1,000 4 g3 796 2,062 591
543 926 685
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020 (94)
—e— —e— —
Adjusted gross profit margin Core operating profit margin® Mainland China (2HFY) Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
REBBERNZO FERERNEO (2HFY) N
- REIR I (T FEE T ¥ F) BB RFIREMTS (MBRFET¥F)
Selling and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses — —
("SG&A") as a % to revenue Mainland China (1HFY) Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
HERDHRAUR —BRRITEFAX((HERTHEAX MG EXERIL (1HFY) N
FREIR I (BB B L 6F) BB RFIREMTS (MBFEL¥EF)
(1) Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of (1) KEBRENEFRBEENEGEHRERMEREENTE) IR TES

unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more
complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

(2)  Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of (2)
adjusted gross profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in
gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of

its core business

EENRERBR(RE)HYE  FARFABERBREHEERT REL
BRAREBNERBS

BRI RABREF X GHEBRMERE LA E) - REHBRY
EFREMBEHE  REERTRAY  ARRBEEHSHEEHE
BERMTRAGERRRRORBNERBES

1HFY 2HFY

YoY change YoY change

BHEE BBEE

by T¥E

(HK$ million) (AEBT) 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 1HFY2020 2HFY2020 E1:3-2(4 512422

Revenue SR 29,703 36,958 29,533 27,218 w 0.6% v 26.4%

Adjusted gross profit RABENER 8,338 10,263 9,064 7,743 a 87% v 24.5%

Adjusted gross profit margin A8 1B ) E TR 28.1% 27.8% 30.7% 284% a 2.6%pts a 0.6%pts

1BE 7% 188 2%

Other income H A A 167 229 213 224 a 27.4% v 2.2%

SG&A HE RITHEIX (5,517) (6,508) (5,750) (5,807) a4.2% v 10.8%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITH S AT

EREESH 18.6% 17.6% 19.5% 21.3% a 0.9%pts a 3.7% pts

185 7 & 1B 5 7 &

Core operating profit =)r 2,989 3,984 3,527 2,160 a 18.0% w 45.8%

Core operating profit margin FTELEEFER 10.1% 10.8% 11.9% 7.9% a 1.8%pts w 2.9% pts

185 7 & 185 7 &

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§
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e Adjusted gross profit margin increased in FY2020, thanks to the
like-for-like gross profit margin improvement of gold products as
international gold price surged. Core operating profit margin
managed to stay at 10.0% despite a very challenging
environment surrounding our key operations.

e In FY2020, the Group's core operating profit dropped by 18.4%
year-on-year.

* Among the two segments, Mainland China continued to be our
main profit contributor and accounted for almost 90% of the
Group's core operating profit in FY2020. Its core operating profit
recorded a growth of 1.8% during the financial year.

e On the other hand, core operating profit of Hong Kong, Macau
and other markets turned negative in 2HFY2020. Thus, core
operating profit of the segment registered a 70.0% decline for
full year.

Gross profit margin
Unrealised loss (gain)

XENEREESARESERNENKFMAHK
Z 2020 R FENLABRENEN REF[EK -
BERMEIEXBLEMRNRBHALS - B
P E B ERFIENMERN10.0% °

20208 X E - AREEEBELRTIRF TF184% -

MEDES  PEAMAESREEEF AR - »
2020 FEMAEE T2 EEHENET0% -
HIZ2EEEMNNPTRFRENERT8% -

S—HE 2020 M RFETHFFEE R EAM
MZMEELLENERER - Bt o E2F
B 28 EE FI8R15 70.0% KUK TR

EFE
KREBEHE (KE)

For the year ended 31 March BE3R831HLEE 2018 2019
Gross profit margin ER X 27.4% 27.9%
Unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans B EEREEER (W) (0.2)% 0.0%
Adjusted gross profit margin CRBEENER X 27.2% 27.9%

e Impact from the unrealised loss on gold loans increased during
the financial year due to the surge in international gold price of
which the average international gold price was 15.9% higher
when compared to last financial year.

e The increase in gold loan borrowings also have significant
impact on the unrealised loss. Inventory was built up before
Chinese New Year to meet festive demand. With the weakened
customer sentiment and sluggish demand during 4QFY2020,
the inventory as well as the gold loan borrowings were
maintained at a higher level than usual.

e During FY2020, fair value loss on gold loans of HK$1,276 million
was recorded, of which HK$711 million was unrealised.

* We use gold loans (short position in gold) for economic hedge
purpose to mitigate the financial impact of the gold price
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). While the
long-term effect of long and short positions in gold is expected
to net out each other through the sales of gold products, a loss
(gain) may arise due to a short-term timing difference between
the time when a loss (gain) on gold loans is recorded in the cost
of goods sold and the time when sales of hedged gold
inventories are recognised, when we take a snapshot position
at the end of the reporting period.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWESNT

HRERSEST  FHORESER - — @AM BF
FEJ:?H5.9% HESEEREREENTEEM
PN

HSEBENEMTEASREBEEEREATE - &
MREEFFAMCENMGEFEANEMNEGERAF K A
M- 2020 M FERNEEHAE  BEREERANE
BERFRTE  WEFEEESEEBRRERKE -

2020 BEFE - BEREEHF1,276 BEETHR
AEHBE ETT7TEBETRAREREE -

BHPMNAESERE (FE2XR) REERREMN - X
REFEFE(BE2HR)BREDNIBEE - #
RESHARHNRBYERACEELEESER
BEREE  EHRSHROFAEMRMS  FA
HERAWESEEBR (MR B HHPESFE
MHEZMREANENEREE M RELR
18 (Yeas) »
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e Unrealised loss (gain) for the year represents the net effect of (i)
the reversal of the loss (gain) recorded due to the timing
difference in recognising the effect of long and short position in
gold when we take a snapshot position at the end of the
previous financial year; and (ii) the loss (gain) arising from such
timing difference at the end of the current financial year.

Movements in adjusted gross profit margin 4E A EFIE ST
For the year ended 31 March #Z=3 531 HIt&E
31.0%
30.0%
0.2%

29.0% 0.0%

28.0% 27.9%

FRREHRER(WE) B BREN E—EAFRFE
TREEEARBESHRREARFELRBEMESL
BB 1R (Yazs) B2 (i) EAEE.HI PRFEHEER - FiRH
) By ] 22 1 E AR WO B4R (MR ) OB R & o

Changes in gross profit margin
by product in retail business
ZEXEBRERETNEFNREE
L |
Changes in product mix
in retail business
TEEBHERLALRD
29.6%

’ Impact from wholesale business

and jewellery trading

HBEBRAREEZNTE

Changes in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and other
markets mix

REIR - B8 RPIR
HiphipH A28

27.0% I

2019

e At group level, FY2020 adjusted gross profit margin improved
by 170 basis points year-on-year. An improvement in gross
profit margin by product in both retail and wholesale businesses
led to an expansion of margin.

e The higher contribution from our wholesale business led to the
contraction of gross profit margin which was offset by the
improvement in gross profit margin by product in wholesale
business and jewellery trading.

Annual Report 2020
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REBEE - 2020 HRFELBEENENRRFE
EF70ERF c TEEBEMBEBIRERED
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London gold price R &E
(US$ per ounce =&#7)

1,800
1,700
1,600
1,500
1,400
1,300 P
London gold price
wHEEE
1,200
Average of T-150/T-180 days'"
1100 T-150/T-180 K F9{EM
' 1.4.2018 1.4.2019 31.3.2020
(1) Average of T-150/T-180 days refers to the average gold price of previous 150 or 180 days on (1) T-150/T-180 K FHEIEBAEE 150 KK 180 RN FLHE - AERK
rolling basis, being a proxy of the average price of our hedged inventories. As gold inventory RABH+HSHFENTFHIER - AR 20200 BFEENESFERAET
turnover lengthened in FY2020, average of T-150 days and T-180 days was used for FY2019 and K 20198 BUFJE % 2020 B E 5 B A T-150 X & T-180 X FH{E
FY2020, respectively
0
FY2020 Closing price YoY change Average price YoY change ‘
W BRI LL 2L EHERLLEIL
London gold price O/ 1 0/
REEE A 242 (0] A 59 0)
\
SG&A HERITBMAX
SG&A by reportable segment XTI 2R ETHHEERTHEAX
For the year ended 31 March # =3 A31 HILFE
(HK$ million B&# )
YoY change
14,000 Bt &1t
12,025 11,557 v3.9%
12,000 10,920
10,000
8,000 60.4% 62.3% 65.9% A 17%
6,000 —
Mainland China
4,000 B i
39.6% 37.7% % 13.1% ——
2,000 e - Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
0 BB RMKREMTHS
2018 2019 2020
48 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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SG&A to revenue ratio SHERITBIFXIGE¥EHELLE
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE
(HK$ million E&#7T)

20.4%
{ ]
0
14,000 D
12,025
12,000 10.920 11,557
10,000 6.9%
. 8.0%
8,000
2.9%
6,000 I 3.2% I ’ 2.8%
. 0.4%
3%
4000 2.7% o 3.9%
1.4% 1.1%
g : 1.2%
2,000 8% 0-7% 1.0%
2.9% 2.9% 2.9%
0
2018 2019 2020

YoY change
[Eil=4-2(4

v 3.9%

v 1.3%

v 16.9%
v 83.9%

A 163.0%

a 0.4%
A 19.5%

v 13.2%

(1) Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transactions settlement, royalty

fees for the sales of licensed products, certificate expenses and utilities

e FY2020 SG&A expenses decreased by 3.9% to HK$11,557
million, whereas the 2HFY2020 portion dropped 10.8% year-on-
year. Yet, full-year SG&A ratio expanded by 240 basis points to

20.4% due to operating deleverage.

e Analyses of the major SG&A components, including staff costs
and related expenses, concessionaire fees and lease-related
expenses are provided on pages 53 and 63 of this report.

e With the adoption of IFRS 16, depreciation and amortisation
increased while rental expenses decreased significantly
comparing to FY2019. If the impact from IFRS 16 was excluded,
depreciation and amortisation would increase by 8.8% and its

corresponding ratio to revenue would be 1.6%.

e Packaging materials expenses increased 19.5% year-on-year as

we have been enhancing our product packaging to lift brand

value and provide better customer experiences.

Annual Report 2020
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o
As a % of respective revenue FTGiARIE ¥ 5T oLt
|

Staff costs and related expenses & T B4R #HRERE X
——

Concessionaire fees EED B

|
Rental expenses &%

]
Depreciation and amortisation (Right-of-use assets, “ROUA")

wEREE (EREEE)

[

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
WEREE (W% - BERRE)

———

Advertising and promotion expenses &% K S&#5I 37

———
Packaging materials B34}

_—
Other SG&AM HAtiSHERTHR X"

(1) EMHERTRRAXTIEERHEXSREELNORITTHEE  HEXE
ERNENER FRERKEER

° 2020 BFE . HERTHHAXRDI9%E
11,657 B&B I M2020 0 MEE T HFMNHH
ARETE10.8% - A 2FHERTHRAX L
RA MG S BARRBUET LT 2403 F £ 20.4% ©

c FRAHERTHRAXTIZMEKER(BEEIKA
MEBRAX Bl EEERBR) NS THR
MAREEEIREC3A -

o HMBIBRIBIMELRE 1658 218 T8 REHE
e EERAXBITRE MER2019W HEFENE
ETFRERE - R BRI IS RIS 1657/
wE MEREIHEEFA88%  EifEEEMMEE
L E1.6% °

o MREMAMRTEREE MR REEEREH
FEMBEZRER  WeXWHAXIRF LT195% -
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Mainland China rj i g
Revenue B
Revenue by operation model #Z&EEXEFHHLELE
For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE
(HK$ million &&H7T)
YoY change
3] it
50,000 El=4:-X(4
42,432 40,763 v 3.9%
40,000 36,804
33,670
31,019
30,000 71.7% 65.7% v 11.9%
. 76.3% —
20,000 78.6% 78.4% Retail
ZzE
10,000 34.3% 16.3% o
28.3% 3% 4 16.3%
21.4% 21.6% 23.7% o Wholesale
0 #eaz
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

In Mainland China, our retail revenue represents sales from self-
operated POS, e-commerce and other direct channels, while
wholesale revenue represents sales to franchisees and
provision of services to franchisees.

Revenue in Mainland China decreased by 3.9% to HK$40,763
million during FY2020. On a constant exchange rate basis,
revenue stayed flat with 0.1% decline during the financial year.

Wholesale revenue grew robustly by 16.3%, boosted by our
expansion strategy in lower tier and county level cities through
franchisees. As a result, its revenue contribution expanded
further by 600 basis points to 34.3% during the financial year.

Franchised CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS in county level
cities are mainly operated under sell-in model where sales is
recognised when products are delivered to our franchisees. For
the remaining franchised POS in Mainland China, which making
up the majority, sales is recognised on consignment. We retain
inventory ownership until sales transactions are completed with
retail consumers, upon which wholesale revenue is recognised.

As at 31 March 2020, we had 1,936 franchised
CHOW TAIl FOOK JEWELLERY POS, of which 34.0% were
operated under the sell-in model and these POS contributed
approximately 31.9% of the wholesale revenue in Mainland China.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

RPBEA RMNTELETERREELETE
BHoOETEBREMERRENHESR mMiteE
FEANE RN R S E M &R B A iR RS R
YEA

2020 R FE > PEIAMHNEEXERTEII%E
40,763 BEATT - MARERFTE - EERENR
FoRMBEREATEO% °

FAPI 1 Bh 0 BE P AR BUR AR T AN SR AR S SR R N B2
TEH TR BSFFUERST16.3%HEIIE
o WHEEBRPRFRE AN S ERGLE— 18
NG00 EH +%34.3% -

RERBENARBARENBTEER - RZUAMHE
BEALE  BERINTHRMANMBEFES
BRHELHE - ENHR T AR D EFRE A EX
BREMBTER  AUFTERAEE - BTEH
BEEREEX S RAREEEEARE  EX
B SR T E S -

1202043 A31 B - FF14EAF 1,936 i & K48 2k
BINBETER  Eh34.0%RMt#ZEEA LY
FZETEHNEERIETEAMI A EEL31.9% -
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SSSG
SSSG of major products T EERFEHERR

10.8% 11.1% 13.5% 12.4%

o—e SO E—
{}
. . __80% 0.6%
. oe
— 1.0% 5.4% 0.1% -0.4% A
-3.8% : 20.9%
()

-11.0%
-15.4%

FIESHEER

-49.5%

Gem-set jewellery

BREEBRES

Y 5 Gold products
-53.7% BoER
10 20 3Q 4Q 10 2Q 3Q 4Q
FY2019 FY2020
FY2020 FY2019
SSS volume Same Store  Same Store
SSSG growth ASP ASP™
FAEHERR FEHEER FEVHEE BERHEEY
Gem-set jewellery IRE R E M v 12.4% v 13.9%  HK$6,400 HK$6,300
Gold products HOEM v 20.1% v 31.8% HK$5,000 HK$4,200
Platinum/Karat gold products e KEER v 5.0% v 15.0% HK$1,800 HK$1,600
Watches Fd7d v 1.4% v 13.9% HK$18,100 HK$15,800
Overall B®eE v 15.1% v 24.0%

(1

Same Store ASP on FY2020 Same Store basis

In Mainland China, Same Store ASP for all product categories
illustrated a positive trend in FY2020.

Retail demand for gold products was dampened by the surge in
average international gold price of 15.9% year-on-year during
FY2020. SSS volume of gold products dropped by 31.8% during
the financial year. Yet, ASP of gold products jumped to
HK$5,000 from HK$4,200 in FY2019, benefitting from the rising
gold price trend and the increasing popularity of CTF ® HUA Collection.

Gem-set jewellery SSSG was relatively stable in the first nine
months of FY2020. However, a notable 49.5% decline was
recorded in 4QFY2020 in the midst of virus outbreak, dragged
the overall SSS of gem-set jewellery, resulting in a decline of
12.4% in FY2020. Same Store ASP increased slightly to
HK$6,400 in FY2020 from HK$6,300 in FY2019.

Annual Report 2020
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(1

7 49 45 {8 1A 2020 B B4 Y L A R 24

R BEAN - AERERN2020 0 BEEMN
ETHEES2HS -
2020 M MFEREBFIHEERFMINT15.9% « B
NTELEMNTERK
MBEEANTFE31.8% « A - REREE LA
BNELAREEARINEZMSED  SHRESE
m P EE 20198 BEE M 4,200/ T LiRkE

5,000# 7T °

cEBELEMWFAEHER

KEEREMHOREHEERN 20200 BFES
NEARBEYERE - A - 2020 fHFEETF
EHEZEBEETREHEEKNETE495% £
2020 M MFERE R AMHERNE/EHE T
12.4% = [R5 V9 EERIH 2019 B BF E #9 6,300
BITIT = 2020 M FE#9 6,400 8 7T
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Profitability
Mainland China S EXith
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE

EFIEED

30.5%
28.7% 28.8% .
1790, _— 18.7%
N —e— Adjusted gross profit margin
KRR BNETE
—e— SG&A as a % to revenue
0, SHER 1T B e aN
e 8% 12..5/0 HERTHBXMEEEEA I
—e— Core operating profit margin
FERLEERE
2018 2019 2020
THFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
BHEE BHEE
b¥EF T¥E
(HK$ million) (BEB#ER) 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 1HFY2020 2HFY2020 B &1t AL #1t
Revenue e 18,022 24,410 20,224 20,539 A 12.2% v 15.9%
Adjusted gross profit KRB ER 5,358 6,881 6,445 5,988 A 20.3% v 13.0%
Adjusted gross profit margin 4% 38 2 1 69 E Fl| 29.7% 28.2% 31.9% 29.2% a 22%pts a 1.0% pts
185 5 % 1885 %
Other income HeaA 102 151 121 158 A 18.9% A 49%
SG&A HERITHAX (3,398) (4,089) (3,724) (3,892) 4 9.6% v 4.8%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITBES AT
ERBEHSH 18.9% 16.8% 18.4% 19.0% ¥ 0.5% pts a 2.2% pts
= 185 %
Core operating profit FEEE T 2,062 2,942 2,843 2,253 A 37.8% v 23.4%
Core operating profit margin 3 Z48 &% Fi| 11.4% 12.1% 14.1% 11.0% a 2.7%pts ¥ 1.1% pts
188 5% 168 5 %

e Adjusted gross profit margin improved sharply by 170 basis o
points to 30.5% in FY2020 as like-for-like gross profit margin
improved when compared to the last financial year.

e SG&A ratio increased by 110 basis points to 18.7% in FY2020 °

due to operating deleverage in 2HFY2020.

* As a result, core operating profit margin dropped from 14.1% in °
THFY2020 to 11.0% in 2HFY2020. On a year-on-year basis, core
operating profit margin was down by 110 basis points in
2HFY2020. Nevertheless, full year core operating profit margin
still expanded by 70 basis points year-on-year, demonstrating a
continuous improvement across the previous three financial years.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

HREREMNER F—EFRFEERLE - 2020
IR R R VR T 70 18R F2=305% ©

HE RITHA XL EXE 2020 BFE T+ FHE
EEBEMEN EA110ME2EFE18.7% °

Eit » T 2EEEFEH2020BFELFFH
14.1% TBEZE2020 0 RFE T FFEM11.0% ° 1%
FHE 2020 BRFE T EFNEZLELEEN KA
TER110MEZE T - A - 2F EBLEEBMNRIEF
MIERTOEE T - fEBE = AV RFEHEHERE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXRBHEEERRAA



Major SG&A components HERTHHRXMEEIER
Staff costs and related expenses E I ARBFARZ
For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE

(HK$ million &%)

FY2020

7.4% YoY change

20,880 .28%

6.99 [EIELE(E
h . 6.7V. - Average number of YoY change
5500 —_— . employees” El34:-£(4
3,028 A 6.1% FHETHAC
3,000 2,852
2,553
2,500 39 19
37.3% 37.3% A 6.1%
2,000 37.4% e
As a % of respective revenue FT{hiHBZ £EH AL
1,500 —
Variable staff ts S ENE T RK
000 o 1o, 59.2% 6% ariable staff costs 288 T A&
59.3% : — ~
500 Fixed staff costs B &8 I A4
——
0 3.2% 3.6% 3.5% A 2.9% Other staff related expenses® Efth & TiHRIRI @
2018 2019 2020
(1) Employees in production function excluded (1) TREBELEHPMHET
(2)  Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc. (2) HEtEIHMAXEZLEEIRER BRBNHSEES
» Staff costs and related expenses were up by 6.1% in FY2020. o 2020 BRFEMBE IRARMBMAS EFA6.1% -

Incremental expenses were mainly attributable to the increase
in variable performance based portion in first nine months of
FY2020 as business growth was positive during that period.
Such variable component was trimmed by over 40% year-on-

FIIEMEZ BN 2020 BEE ENEARER
R FBAKRT S AMANEBRGEER L
e ARENFENEBZREBENTFZE
KA DI E TEHER40% °

e

year in the fourth quarter as business was adversely affected
due to the epidemic.

Concessionaire fees H{ESRE
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE
(HK$ million &%)

8.5% 8.3% 8.4%
¢ ° YoY char}ge
2,000 1,872 1,892 Cil=4- 4ld
1,583 v 16.3%
1,500
1,000
e
As a % of respective revenue
500 FrtEEEEER O
|
Concessionaire fees
0 HEHR
2018 2019 2020
e Concessionaire fees decreased by 16.3% as retail revenue o HESOKNETELER TKM T#H16.3% - EED

RELERE B LT TEMREEASEMEEDK
HER—BERSOIREER AT -

dropped. The slightly higher concessionaire fees ratio was
mainly due to the shift of sales mix towards gem-set products
which are generally subject to higher rates.

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§
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POS network TEHPEE
POS movement by store brand” — Mainland China {ZEHSREESHNTELEH " — FEAM

During FY2020

As at S 31.3.2018 31.3.2019 2020 I EE 31.3.2020
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
“Et “Et & > FIBA st
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY"? F K@ik E @ 2,317 2,803 761 (138) 623 3,426
CTF WATCH 5PN 106 113 8 (5) 3 116
T MARK T MARK - 4 = (1) (1) 3
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 6 3 = (2) (2) 1
ENZO ENZO - - 60 (1) 59 59
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE 9 27 18 (2) 16 43
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 11 38 19 (6) 13 51
(1) SIS and CIS excluded (1) FREEPERENEE
(2)  ARTRIUM and JEWELRIA POS included (2) BERAAREZREAAREEETES
RSV analysis TEEDH
RSV by product RESIFHTEE
5.3%
- RSV YoY change
o FY2019 FY2020 SEERL2L
4.9%
9 22.8% S
1% [ | [ ] Gem-set jewellery Tk 82if & £ v 2.8%
[ | [ ] Gold products E&E M v 8.6%
] ] Platinum/Karat gold products $A% K& EH a 7.0%
[ | [ ] Watches §#8% a 3.1%
Overall Zg2 v 4.9%
54 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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RSV by channel ZEHERESPHFTEE

4.9%
5.9%

RSV YoY change
FY2019 FY2020 TEERL®L
u u CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY FAABHE v 6.0%
u Other store brands" E fth [ & f 2O a 8.6%
u L E-commerce? & FE@ A 2.4%
Overall & v 4.9%

(1) CTF WATCH, T MARK, HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE included

(2)  Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Vipshop; 020 distribution
excluded (i.e. routing online orders to POS for delivery service)

The following analyses focus on CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
POS which contributed approximately 90% of the RSV in Mainland China:

(1) ®EREAE#ES - T MARK « HEARTS ON FIRE * ENZO * SOINLOVE
MONOLOGUE

(2) ETETLARERANEMAKEERE X#H 2R ERE BEFE20208
(AR LT ERXETER R T RRS)

AREHREZERETEAMTEELNI%  IATH
SRZEBIEDT :

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS BAXBEHRETELY
RSV and POS by tier of cities'" EBHRANEIFTHTEERFTE
16.4% 17.4%
FY2020
\ % of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
12.0% SEHEL TEEMGL ZEERL# TEHFRE
24.9%
[ ] ] Tier | cities — 4R v 8.0% a 80
[} Tier Il cities — 43 v 7.7% a214
20.8% 42.4% ] [ | Tier lll cities —#R¥kTH v 3.6% a 148
[ | | Tier IV cities and others
17.2% PO4RI T R B Ath v 0.9% a 181

(1) As an initiative to better reflect the economic development and strategic significance of cities in
Mainland China, we have adopted the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global since THFY2020.
New first-tier cities were grouped under Tier Il cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking
released on 24 May 2019

e During FY2020, we opened a net of 623 CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
POS in Mainland China to expand our presence in lower tier and
county level cities.

°  Approximately 53% of the net openings in FY2020 were located
in Tier Ill, IV and other cities. These cities achieved stronger
growth than Tier | and Il cities during the financial year, mainly
driven by the new openings.

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§

(1) RE AR E R A8 7 5 R A BRE B%  FAIHE 2020 87 I
FELLFRIGRACE M) BHNETERES - T —RBIRRK
I D AT D R AR - 261201996 A 24 AAMHIHEE

° 20208 B F 2 - 3 IR R B A 0% B A 623 (i
AXRBUETER - ABEREPAREIRB T M F
RIRTROE T B H -

o 2020 IREE - 4963% HPFHEMR =« HER
HMET - ZFBWTRPRFENERR—F R
BMHRY)  T2IHHEMTE -
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RSV and POS by operation model ZEERXEPHTEERTEY

42.9%

43.5%

FY2020
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
ZE/MKGLL FEMEMGLE TEERL 2L ZEHERY
[ | [ | Self-operated H& v 13.9% v 14
[ ] Franchised /N2 a71% A 637

57.1%

* By operation model, all net openings were in franchised format
and about half of these franchised POS openings were under
sell-in model. As at 31 March 2020, 56.5% of our POS in
Mainland China were in franchised format.

e Performance of the franchised POS was generally similar or
slightly lower than that of the self-operated POS located in an
alike city tier during FY2020.

REERAE D MAEFRERNAE MEHH
—H RO B EE RN - R2020563A31H - &
BlAHH 56.5% WZERENEE -

2020 A - BRSSO RIR — B R SR ™
MEZETEM RIS NWE -

RSV and POS by self-operated model ZEZEABITHNTEERTEL
, 5.1%
41.5%
- FY2020

% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
ZEHEL TEEMNLL ZEERL# ZERFED

42.8% [ | [ ] Self-operated (Department store)
HE(BERA) v 19.2% v 39

[ | Self-operated (Shopping mall)

"BHE(EDHL) v 4.3% a28

| ] [ | Self-operated (Standalone store)
HE(HEE) v 23.5% v 3

53.4%

e In FY2020, self-operated POS at shopping malls outperformed
the other formats as they generally have more appealing
shopping experiences and we also added POS there during the
financial year.

* \We consolidated a net of 42 standalone stores and POS at
department stores during FY2020.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

2020 BEE - URBYHONERTEMKRBRE
REMELZER  ARAZSTEH —RIBHEES
MEELR  MEMARPBRFEATEEBDHOH
BETER -

KPR 2020 M EFEFEA TA2EEEERLR
BERANTER -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



Self-operated CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS

HERXBEHRETES

RSV per store by store age ZEHESHNEETER

140.0%
121.3%
120.0%
100.0% =
N 92.4%
88.0% FY2020 RSV per same store:
. HK$17.9 million?
80.0% i 2020 BFEREEHEEE:
67.2% 17.9888T@
60.0% 53.8%
40.0%
20.0%
0.0%
Less than 2 years!" 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8years or more Total
i vEgl 2B45F 4Z6F 6E85F 8FHLUL gt
3/2012
POS opening date B85 A 4/2018-3/2020 4/2016-3/2018 4/2014-3/2016 4/2012-3/2014 or before
3/2012k LART
POS &3 254 242 218 201 575 1,490
% of POS TEE5LL 17.0% 16.3% 14.6% 13.5% 38.6% 100.0%

]
Ratio of annual RSV per store to RSV per Same Store

BEFETEEEREEGTE/EZLLM

(1) For POS of age less than 1 year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis
ERTRIFHNTER TEERFCEERRE
(2)  Value-added tax (“VAT") included

BIERER
Average quarterly sales F¥FEHERHE
(HKS$ million B &)
34.0%
{ ]
28.5%
26.8% ©
'N_M
. 23.4%
I
o, © o
20'%2.5% 20.1%
L) L]
7.4 |
: FY2019 average quarterly SSS®
20190 B FEFHEEREHES
I
FY2020 average quarterly SSS
09 4.9 5.1 5.2 202081 R FEFHZERIEHE
4.4 4.5 e
27 FY2019 quarterly SSS contribution
. to annual SSS®
20198 B R B 5 SHEE RE &Y
FEREHEERENERMO
P
FY2020 quarterly SSS contribution
to annual SSS
20200 U F E S E R R HEE
HEEREHERNER
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q

(8)  SSS on FY2020 Same Store basis

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§

(3)  [FIE$4%EE LA20200) TR 4F [E MY RIS E AL %
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e Average SSS contribution for 2HFY2020 was approximately
49% of full year SSS, less than 57% in 2HFY2019.

e 4Q, being our peak season as driven by festive occasions such
as Chinese New Year and Valentine's Day, usually account for
the highest quarterly SSS contribution. However, with the
epidemic, the SSS contribution for 4QFY2020 was reduced to

e 2020 BEETHEHRENTHRIEHEEEEF
FIEHELI49% « L2019 BFE T HFH57%
B RIE -

s FNFEBERBNFERBEADNSHELY 0B
HAWEF  ZFEBRERMAREHETERD
MEEER - A XERBEZE 2020 HFES
WEENREHESEERFEE20.1% - BENHME

20.1%, much less than that of our normal course of business. T EKRIKFE -
E-commerce business EFEBERS
RSV by product ZERESHTEE
0.5%
20.1% ‘ 14.8% FY2019 FY2020
0.1h ] ] Gem-set jewellery TR SR & &
20.8% 11.7% [ Gold products E&E MR
] [ ] Platinum/Karat gold products i€ K& Em
u ] Watches $E#&
FY2020 FY2019
RSV YoY change ASP ASP
TEERLES FI9EE FHEE
Gem-set jewellery RIS A a 30.7% HK$1,600 HK$1,500
Gold products BHEEL w 0.8% HK$1,600 HK$1,500
Platinum/Karat gold products 44 /K& ES a 0.1% HK$900 HK$800
Overall w®as A 3.4% HK$1,400 HK$1,300

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



E-commerce business performance EFHEEFIIRE
FY2020

RSV
TEE

(©) a 3 .40/ 0

FY2020 FY2019 FY2020 FY2019
% 14.4%

52% 48w 14.4%  13.6%

of respective RSV of respective retail sales volume

GHASEE 1hHHRRSHE

HK$1,400

FY2019: HK$1,300

E-commerce platforms
TIHHTE

gy
¥ 80+

Unique daily visitors!" Number of followers?

EHERNEE — FEEHE" BAEANE

739,000 &Q@ 10,631,000+

1) Source: Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall and JD.com
2)  Source: Official Sina Weibo, Tencent Weibo and WeChat accounts

e RSV of our e-commerce business rose 3.4% in FY2020, backed
by a 30.7% growth of gem-set jewellery as we strengthened
our online promotional effort on fashionable jewellery.

e Contribution of the e-commerce business to the RSV in
Mainland China edged up to 5.2% during the financial year. In
terms of retail sales volume, its share to Mainland China's
operations further expanded to 14.4% in FY2020, with 13.6%
and 0.8% of the contribution coming from e-commerce
platforms and O20 distribution, respectively.

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§

(1)

BURRIR - AAR@EEELS - R RRR
BURRIR - FORMKE - BARIE RSB T IRP

2020 MIBEFE - mRIRPIINGR T B M IR E ROAR L
B AEBEREHIHE LT30.7%  HHETEH
EBHIS34% NWTEEEK -

RAMBFE  EFHBEBLUTERNENTEE
BEMAES2% - MREBHE  EFHBEH
R2020 M MEEEPREAMBNEBE - FHE
14.4% HF136%RAETFTEHFE HR
0.8% A% 5 020 fdix -
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets s, WM R A5
Revenue 31

Revenue by operation model #Z&EEXEFHHLELE
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE
(HK$ million B&EE7T)

30,000
YoY change
24,229 =
25,000 22,921 22,352 Eilx4-X14
20,226
20,000
15,988 w 34.0%
15,000
o
95.3% 92.3% 95.2%
95.4% —
10,000 93.0% w 35.5% Retail
=€
5,000 -
Wholesale
4.7% 4.6% 7.7% 4.8% 7.0% - 4.9% 2%
0 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

e In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, our retail revenue o HRMAUESE  RIIKEMT SN ETELETREERE
represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and other eTeE ETEEREMEREENHEEE M
direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales to HELEEBAERANEEHEEER WO HBHEE
franchisees, sales to retailers and sales from jewellery trading. EmMURKREHKEESWIHERE -

e Retail revenue declined by 35.5% in FY2020 mainly due to the o 20208 HFE  TEEEBTIMKIBL%  FTEX
sluggish business environment in Hong Kong. BALERIBRBATE o

60 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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SSSG FEHEER
SSSG of major products T EERFEHERR
40.7%
% o,
30.;4 % __—
26.49% ’
-5.6% coe
— N, 12.7%
2.3% — I~
8.2% 710..4%\\' -25.8%
-15.7% -34.8% .
e
.>< Gem-set jewellery
o . o HEMHE
-49.2% 2, 64.2% o
-66.7% Gold products
66.7% s
10 20 30 4Q 10 20 30 4Q
FY2019 FY2020
FY2020 FY2019
SSS volume Same Store  Same Store
SSSG growth ASP ASP"
FESEEE FEHESE RETHEE EDETSEN
Gem-set jewellery KREERE w 42.4% v 41.6% HK$10,900 HK$11,100
Gold products HLEM v 39.4% v 47.0%  HK$9,400 HK$8,200
Platinum/Karat gold products AL KEER v 40.5% v 40.0% HK$1,800 HK$1,800
Watches ik v 16.5% w 27.9% HK$66,700 HK$57,500
Overall e v 38.7% v 43.5%

(4]

Same Store ASP on FY2020 Same Store basis

The prevailing macro headwinds and situation in Hong Kong,
coupled with the spread of COVID-19, hindered consumer
demand during FY2020.

SSS volume of gold products was further muted amid gold price
volatility, dragging SSS of gold products. Yet, ASP of gold
products surged from HK$8,200 to HK$9,400.

SSS of gem-set jewellery dropped by 42.4% during FY2020 on
the back of cautious consumer spending. ASP stood at
HK$10,900, similar to last year's level.

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§

(1)

IRl 49 45 {8 1A 2020 B4 47 2 Y L A R 2

2020 M BEE - ZEAMARMEEMR - Hi0L
2019 BRAEBRIE - BATHEEFFK -

HREERY E2ERNREHEBE - FES
HEESEMNREHEE - A E2ERNTH
EEM 8,200 T2TTE 9,400/ 7T
BRI BN 2020 MEENRIEHEEHE
EREHENTEM NE42.4%  FHEERES
f£10,900/87C - EEFHIKFIEE °
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Profitability
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets % + B RE M THIS
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE

27.4%
26.3% .
24.8%

S
._/. Y

24.7%
18.3% 18.7%
.\
L )

BFlEED

. —e— Adjusted gross profit margin
. ERBRNERE
6(.]:0/ 279, —e— SG&A as a % to revenue
. : HERTHEXMEEEER I
—e— Core operating profit margin
FELERHE
2018 2019 2020
THFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
PR FE BHEE
L¥g T¥E
(HK$ million) (BEER) 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 1HFY2020 2HFY2020 5):4-2(4 Gl=4-2(4
Revenue EE- 11,681 12,548 9,309 6,679 w 20.3% w 46.8%
Adjusted gross profit KAEENETR 2,980 3,382 2,619 1,756 v 12.1% w 48.1%
Adjusted gross profit margin 4% 38 Z 1£ 69 E Fl| 25.5% 27.0% 28.1% 26.3% a26%pts w0.7% pts
e85 % 168 5 %
Other income Hi A 65 78 92 66 A 40.7% v 15.9%
SG&A HERITHAX (2,119) (2,419) (2,026) (1,915) v 4.4% v 20.8%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITEFAZ A
EREESH 18.1% 19.3% 21.8% 28.7% a 3.7%pts a 9.4% pts
1885 5% B85
Core operating profit TELE R 926 1,042 685 (94) v 26.1% N/ATEH
Core operating profit margin 3 48 &% FI| & 7.9% 8.3% 7.4% (1.4)% w 05%pts w 9.7% pts

18 & 2 % 18 5 5 %

In FY2020, adjusted gross profit margin expanded by 110 basis

points to 27.4% driven by both the surge in gold price and the
improvement in gross profit margin of our jewellery trading business.

e SG&A ratio increased by 600 basis points to 24.7% in the
financial year due to operating deleverage especially in

4QFY2020.

e As aresult, a core operating loss of HK$94 million was recorded

in 2HFY2020.

e Core operating profit dropped significantly by 70.0% in FY2020
and its corresponding margin declined by 440 basis points to 3.7%.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

20209 E - REBRARKEEHEBEMNE LA
Frsgh - [EHRHBILAERZE LT 1108 F£274% -

HERTHRAXLEARLLEARERRRE(FIIZ
2020 SR FEHNE) i 7600 (EEF 2 24.7% -

FEit - 2020 M FE T HFH[UABEBETNE
BEEEE

2020 M MEFE - ETERKEENBETEK70.0%
HARFEADRE N =BT 440 @B F£3.7% o

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Major SG&A Components

HERTHMAXHWEEIRR

Hong Kong and Macau FERERM

Staff costs and related expenses B I ARBFARZ

For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE

(HK$ million B &#&7T)

FY2020
3,220 0
9.2% YoY change g / - 0'9 /O
® Eil:4-2l4 Average number of YoY change
2,000 6 8% 6_9/ employees” B
—_ FHETHEO
1,551
1,500 1,362 1,328 v 14.4%
40.8% o
39.2% % 1%

1,000 S As a % of respective revenue PGB £EEEH DL
|
Variable staff costs 3 &) 8 T

500 9 52.4% 9 9 f— .
54.6% 58.2% v 4.9% Fixed staff costs [EE & T R4
——
0 6.1% 6.8% 70% v 11.1% Other staff related expenses® Efth & TAHEIRI =@
2018 2019 2020

(1) Employees in production function excluded
Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

=

e Staff costs and related expenses was down by 14.4%. The
variable staff costs shrank by 27.1% year-on-year in FY2020,
2HFY2020 related variable staff costs dropped by nearly 50%
year-on-year.

Lease-related expenses® FAESHBARZ®

For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE
(HK$ million B&EB7T)

7.3%
6.1% o
.\4.9% YoY change
1500 . AR
1,253
1,146 1,126 v 1.8%
8.5%
1,000
87.6%
500
0 3.9%
2018 2019 2020

(3)  Under IFRS 16 — leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases
replace the majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined theses three elements for the
analysis of lease-related expenses in Hong Kong and Macau

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§

(1 TEELESFNET
(2) HMBETHMMXFZEFEETIER BRBNASERS

o BIRANMEBMANZTR14.4% < F#HE TRAR
2020 M FERFRMP27.1% - BREIFEHETK
A5 2020 BATRFE T FEIZF TRIEMT50% °

o
As a % of respective revenue FT{G1BBIE 258 E DLt

[

Rental expenses & RIZ

I

Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) ITE K s (FAEEE)
I

Finance costs on leases & @& A A

(3) REBEFBH/ELANFE 165 — HE HELEBH(EAREE) REE
BMARAMRARHAREFAL - KM H=ERE A0 ETEER
RPN IR 2 ST
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* |ease-related expenses ratio expanded by 240 basis points to 7.3% °

in FY2020 due to the operating deleverage. During the financial

year, we renewed leases of around 20 POS, which accounted for a

relatively small contribution to our overall leasing portfolio in value
and therefore, the overall impact of rental renewal on the lease-

related expenses was limited.

POS network

%

POS movement by store brand” — Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

RERRRASHTEREH — FE  RAFIREBTHES

2020 MFEMHEMEBMA XL RLEBER
WpET LT 240 A% FE7.3% - RHHFEERA
BPEHN20ETEREN  ARESEGLREME
BoHEAAREYER/  FERYEERERY
MXHZETK -

ERa

During FY2020

As at R 31.3.2018 31.3.2019 2020 B Tk 31.3.2020
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
st it & m > FEH st

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY®? B ARKE @ 122 130 17 (10) 7 137

Hong Kong, China FEEE 80 80 8 (6) 2 82
Macau, China R B R P 19 19 1 (2) (1) 18
Other markets Ehmig 23 31 8 (2) 6 37

T MARK T MARK - 1 - - - 1

HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 14 15 - (5) (5) 10

SOINLOVE SOINLOVE - - 1 - 1

MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE - - 2 - 2 2

(1) SIS and CIS excluded (1) TBEEPRERENEE

(2)  ARTRIUM POS included 2) BERAAEEETEY

e For CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY, we opened a net of 1 POS o
in Hong Kong and Macau in FY2020, which was located in a

shopping mall.

e 2 MONOLOGUE POS and 1 SOINLOVE POS were also opened °
in Hong Kong during the financial year as part of the rollout of

our multi-brand strategy.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWESNT

20200 MEE - HMEFTE LB FMARIE
BARBHRETER - LRBYHL -

EARBBFER - &M R2{EMONOLOGUE
TEHNVESOINLOVEZEH - tHFHRMETS
MR 2 IR o

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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RSV analysis TEESH

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets EF8  BFAREMTIS
RSV by product ZESEINHWTEE

RSV YoY change
FY2019 FY2020 SEERLRE
[ ] ] Gem-set jewellery TR S5 & & v 43.2%
[ | [ ] Gold products &% E M v 33.7%
[ | | Platinum/Karat gold products $A& K& E & v 24.1%
[ ] [ ] Watches §#8% v 19.9%
Overall 82 v 34.2%
RSV and POS by geography ZEE|ISHTEERTEE
6.5%
17.9% FY2020
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
SEHEL SEEGL ZEERLEL ZERFED
[ | [ | Hong Kong &7 ¥ 40.3% 7N
[ ] [ | Macau J&FS v 12.7% v 1
[ | [ ] Other markets HAb 145 A 81.7% al
75.6%
Annual Report 2020 Performance Review 65

2020 F KRB O



Hong Kong and Macau business

Hong Kong and Macau industry performance &iti & BP9 ITERIT

FY2020
Retail sales of jewellery industry in Hong Kong™

FEREXEHEHEEY

e@ v38.60/0

YoY change
Eil=4-314

FERIAPIER

Number of Mainland visitors®

REHE-FN

19

Hong Kong &8 Macau 2P
40.4% ~14.7%

v . O w . (0)

YoY change YoY change

El:4: 2[4 El:4:114

Our Hong Kong and Macau performance FH{fI7EE#ERRFIFRIR

FY2020

Customer traffic at POS
FEHERE

RSV settled by China UnionPay, Alipay,
WeChat Pay or RMB

WAPEIEREE « ZHHE - MEXNIARBEHZTEE

Fre| ¥ 32 .1 O/O
)

YoY change
El>4-214

FY2020

36.9%

46.5%

FY2019

74

Value of retail sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts in Hong Kong according
to Census and Statistics Department of the HKSAR Government

Source: Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of the HKSAR Government and Macao
Statistics and Census Service

Customer traffic in Hong Kong and Macau contracted by 32.1%
year-on-year in FY2020.

Macau outperformed Hong Kong during the financial year and
recorded a relatively smaller decline in RSV.

With a rapid decline in Mainland visitor arrivals particularly during
2HFY2020 amid the situation in Hong Kong and cross-border
restrictions to tackle the epidemic, the percentage of RSV
settled by China UnionPay, Alipay, WeChat Pay or RMB to the
total RSV of Hong Kong and Macau market, a proxy for sales
contribution from Mainland tourists, lowered from 46.5% in
FY2019 to 36.9% in FY2020.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

(1)

(2)

KREH  EREARENEENTEXRHRER  RAaEBREMTR
B AT At B
BER - BERITRERAABREERRBERMAHELSR

2020 A - BAEREFIFMESRF TE32.1% °

PR B EEARDENES - DEENBRER
D -

S RE RN KON R BT NSRS R
2020 I T - MM EABSH - A
B ENE HEENIARSEE > TEEE
EERAPTISBTEENE S L (REFEAL
REMEEER) - f12019 8 A EH46.5% BE
2020 T FEH)36.9% °

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



Average quarterly sales FE¥FEHER
(HK$ million & &#7T)

33.5%
°

26.4%

26.3% 26.4%

°
22_5%/3.5%
.

63.5 657

56.053.0

25.6%

L
FY2019 average quarterly SSS®
2019 B FE P EREHE®
13.8% —
J FY2020 average quarterly SSS
63.6 2020 B FE FHEEREHE
—e—
FY2019 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS®
20198 N F EFE R & S5
FEREHERENTRE
—e—
21.8 FY2020 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20208 B F E S EE 5 HERE
FEREHERN TR

(3)  SSSon FY2020 Same Store basis

e 3Q, being the peak season for the industry as driven by Christmas,
usually accounted for the highest quarterly SSS contribution and
average SSS for our Hong Kong and Macau market.

e The situation in Hong Kong since 2QFY2020 and the pandemic in
the fourth quarter heavily weighted on our business performance,
resulted in a skewed quarterly SSS contribution towards
1QFY2020. SSS contribution of 2HFY2020 was 40.2% of full year
SSS, far less than that of our normal course of business.

Other markets business

° In FY2020, a net of 1 POS was opened in other markets, including
6 CHOW TAIlI FOOK JEWELLERY POS net openings in
neighbouring countries such as Korea, the Philippines, Singapore
and Thailand. RSV of other markets business registered a growth
of 81.7% during the financial year.

e QOverseas market remains a strategic component in our market
development plans. We continued to expand foothold in Asia
through franchise model in order to leverage franchisees’ local
knowledge and access.

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§

(3)

4Q

75 8545 1A 2020 87 B [ 0 ) /5 R EL o

FE=FEEEERES  BEANEST  HMAEERR
FImSNEEREHEEMMTOREHERER

2FHS -

FEA2020MBFES _FENRAMELFE
HERBHERMNEBRRBERNEEYE  ©FE
BREHE BRI ERAI 2020 M FEE —FF -
2020 R EFE T HFHNREHEE2FNERA
40.2% - BERBEFILHEFHRKF -

HitbHim s

2020 REE - BMEEMTHEFRRIEZTE
BoRREMOER(NEBE  FRE - HINER
ZE) FRBZNEEARARKRETES - RURFE
A HHSRMTEERE81.7%HIER -

BINTIZ N AH ISR R BN RN —IR
BFEBMBRNEEEATMNEBRE - AZER
AN EE 7 K E b KR AN AN ©
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OTHER FINANCIAL REVIEW
T Ath, 5045 [l

Other income, other gains and losses
and other expenses

Hib - R R BRI R R 52

2018 2019 2020
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March HBE3A3MALEE BEART BEER BEER El4:-314
Other income HA WA 408 396 437 4 10.3%
Other gains and losses H bz R g1 342 (276) (147) +46.7%
Other expenses HipFix (48) (57) (146) a 155.3%

e Other income mainly arose from the government grants
received by the subsidiaries in Mainland China, commission
income, other income received from franchisees and other
interest income.

e Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign
exchange loss of HK$234 million (FY2019: HK$241 million) due
to the depreciation of RMB and gain on surrender of ROUA of
HK$79 million.

e Other expenses mainly represented the assets impairment
(including property, plant and equipment and ROUA) of HK$63
million and the goodwill impairment of HK$26 million and the
amortisation of other intangible assets of HK$36 million arising
from the acquisition of Hearts On Fire.

Interest income, finance costs and taxation

H WA 2K E B B A E L 5 &S BT
FHRE - EANURA -~ 2R B 00 BE 7 A EL At U A K EL A R
SN -

Hipam MEBEIRERARSREMELENER
FEE234AEE T (20190 HREE : 241 A8
T REBEEBEAENRRTIBELTT

HihHZXEZRAEAERE(REDE  BEEEER
FRAEEE)G3IAS BT * WU Hearts On Fire
EEZEEREWEESTREMELEESRH
EBETT -

FIBWA - ERARBIR

2018 2019 2020

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March BZE3A3MBALEE BEER BEET BEBT E1:4:- %4
Interest income from banks RITH B WA 67 83 78 v 5.7%
Other interest income EmF B WA 13 - - N/ATEAR
Finance costs on bank borrowings SRITERRE KA (111) (209) (284) a 36.0%
Finance costs on gold loans BHEEEREKAKN (133) (161) (207) a 28.0%
Finance costs on lease liabilities HEBBERmEKRAK - - (69) N/A TEH
Taxation g (1,629) (1,668) (1,221) v 26.8%

e Finance costs on gold loans increased by 28.0% was mainly
due to a relatively higher average gold loan balance in FY2020
as compared to FY2019 as the Group stocked up more gold
inventories amid POS openings in Mainland China.

¢ Finance costs on bank borrowings increased by 36.0%, mainly
due to a relatively higher average bank borrowing balance during
FY2020.

e Effective tax rate increased from 26.3% in FY2019 to 29.0% in
FY2020 as more withholding tax expenses incurred and the
contribution of Mainland China segment on profit before
taxation increased in FY2020.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

BeBEREXRRLE28.0% EEHAREMR
2020 8 B [E 73 18 S 7P B 9 3 B R 2 65 B 1 4 A
BEe2FE #TPHESERR2019MBEES -

2020 MEFE - T2HRBEHEENHTHRTE
R WIRITTEREEKAIENBE6.0% -

H PR TR AL 57 S48 A0 A K% rp B A 3t 2 2R 7% 2020 87 I
FEHBHRAENN TR LI #2020 M BEFE
B EBRBIRH 2019 MEFER26.3% T E29.0% °

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Impact of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 — Leases was first applied to supersede IAS 17 -
Leases in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

We elected to adopt the “modified retrospective” approach for
the transition to IFRS 16 under which the prior-period
comparative financial information was not restated.

This new standard has no impact on the Group’s operations nor
cash flows.

The table below illustrates the impact of the new standard on
the Group's financial performance:

R BRE RSB 165 AE

B8

L —
BMBE2020%3 431 AL FF E ARG BB
BREMDEHBHRELUE 165 — BE - UB
REBEHERIE 175 — BE -

HPIR B8 2 R BT #4561 6502 BRI 12
EBCRI R - UL - B BRI A LR B AR AR
&5 -

BB RIS A R B OSSR S R B AR
EREE -

TRIRHENE EERBERENTE -

Post IFRS 16/

2020 Pre-IFRS 16 2020
(Pre-IFRS 16 RMEFR  (Post-IFRS 16
Leases) B RS 2R Leases)
(RMER £1655#% (BR 4 B B
BB L Yoy  RAER MBREEN Yoy
For the year ended 31 March BE3ANALEFE E165 change 1 E A E165 change
(HK$ million) (AE#T) 2019 HER) El:4 114 E1655 50 HE®R) El:4-1(4
Revenue =E 3 66,661 56,751 w 14.9% - 56,751 v 14.9%
Adjusted gross profit BREENET 18,601 16,807 v 9.6% - 16,807 v 9.6%
Adjusted gross profit margin RAEBHERNE 27.9% 296% a1.7% pts - 29.6% a 1.7% pts
EERE BEES %
SG&A HERTHAX 12,025 11,567 w 3.8% (10) 11,557 v 3.9%
SG&A to revenue ratio HERTHAX
HEEBLE 18.0% 204% a 2.4% pts - 20.4% a 2.4% pts
EERE BEES %
Depreciation and amortisation P& R 847 921 a88% 1,307 2,228 a 163.0%
Rental expenses Aex 1,558 1,507 v 3.2% (1,255) 252 w 83.9%
Core operating profit TELEERA 6,972 5,676 v 18.6% 1 5,687 v 18.4%
Core operating profit margin FELE RN X 10.5% 10.0% w 0.5% pts - 10.0% w 0.5% pts
EERE BEES %
Finance costs BMERE 370 491 4 325% 69 560 a51.1%
Finance costs on lease HERBREKK
liabilities NATER NATEA N/ATiE A 69 69 N/AREH
Profit before taxation K%t BT E A 6,352 4,188 v 34.1% 17 4,205 w 33.8%

Revenue stayed unchanged under IFRS 16.

For SG&A, there was a significant increase in depreciation
expenses of the leased assets of which the majority of the
increase was offset by the decrease in rental expenses.

e The impact on core operating profit was immaterial.

Annual Report 2020
2020 F 4§

BEBREIRMEHREEAE 165 TR -

HRBEERTHAX HEBEENNERIEZ L
Tt B RER D 11808 1% AE £ 5 S R IR P IR 8 o

HIBERLEENIEE

=47
& o
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Return on equity

A E 2%
° We use return on equity ("ROE") to measure the efficiency .
of generating profits from each unit of shareholder equity.

° Net profit margin decreased to 5.3%. ROE dropped by 380 .
basis points to 11.1% while the equity multiplier increased.

HAVE B AR @R E 5 2 B 5 AR A 5 1 Uk A

B o

FR M EIEE5.3% o MA@ 3 %X T 380 [ B F

E11.1% @ MEREEREM -

ROE
IR EIHE

Net profit i

Total equity R 485R

11.1%

w 3.8% pts {EE D 2
(FY2019: 14.9%)

5.3%

Net profit margin @ A=
(FY2019: 7.0%)

O .9 times

Assets turnover & & B

(FY2019: 1.1 times 1)

2 .4 times &

Equity multiplier FEZ{Z#
(FY2019: 2.0 times 1)

T

T

T

Net profit %7l
Revenue Z¥%i

Revenue Z%3%

Total assets & E

Total assets & & &

Total equity #EZ548EE

Inventory balances and turnover period FESMRREAEY
Inventory balances by product” &ESEISHEEEHGD
As at 31 March %3 A31H
(HK$ million BE&A7T)
YoY change
B4 X4
45,000 42,343 a77%
39,327
40,000
34,818
35,000
51.3% a15%
30,000 54.4%
25,000 52.2% Po
' Gem-set jewellery RS 8 #: & &
20,000 ——
Gold products E¢Em
15,000 ) o 368% a16.1% —
10,000 33.9% Platinum/Karat gold products $1€ K& E R
5,000 7.8% 7.2% 8.0% 20.1% —
) 6.0% 43% 39%  “~20% Watches £ &
2018 2019 2020
(1) Packaging materials excluded (1) TBEBEYH

70 Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T
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AREBHREEEER DA



Inventory turnover period by category®?

RERNASHEERAEHR?

For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31HILtFE

(Day XK£10)
YoY change
450 El%-314
400 381 A 82days X
350
296 299
300
250 297 a58days X
2
o0 240 239
150
100
50 5 60 84 a 24 days X
0
2018 2019 2020

()

A

Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided
by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366

Inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, increased by
7.7% and reached HK$42,343 million as at 31 March 2020,
mainly due to business disruption in 4QFY2020.

Inventory turnover period prolonged by 82 days when compared
to that of FY2019.

As at 31 March 2020, approximately HK$5,440 million or 12.8%
of our total inventory balances were held by franchised POS (31
March 2019: approximately HK$4,590 million or 11.6% were
held by franchised POS).

If the inventory balances held by franchisees were excluded,
inventory turnover period in FY2020 would reduce to 332 days
(FY2019: 264 days).

nnual Report 2020

2020 F iR

I
Fini§hed goods
B m

Raw materials

R

(2)

BSRE HIARTF A R (TR IR BRI BRAF AHE KA - BRI 365K 366

M202043A31H FEAR(TEEREDH)
FATT%ZE42343BEE T TEAREHE
20200 M BEEENERZE -

FEREBHR2019MBFELERE2K -

M2020F3A31H MEZEAFHERMERTE
HERRK5,440 BB AL (512.8%) (2019 3 A 31
H: mMBEZEHFEE 45908 &% sk
11.6%)) °

MBI ANTFERS 2020 RFENTFE
FEEHE TBEI32K (20198 BFE : 264K) °

Other Financial Review
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Capital structure

Increase
% to % to (decrease)
31.3.2019 total equity 31.3.2020  total equity  ¥INOGH4) Denominated Interest rate
HK$ million  {h#EZHLEE  HKS million (L% HK$ million currency' structure™
As at i BEER Aot BEAT Bt BEET SHEEEKO FIREEO
Non-current assets  JERENE E 8,459 26.9% 10,038 37.2% 1,579 NATEE NATEA
Inventories TE 39,486 125.7% 42,538 157.6% 3,052 NATEA NATEA
Cash and cash RekRE
equivalents®? ZEY 7,641 24.3% 7,219 26.7% (422) Mainly Mainly
HKD, RMB variable
and USD interest
FER rate
BT FER
AR R SREDF
ETT
Total borrowings®  #E K © 18,069 57.5% 22,711 84.1% 4,642
Bank borrowings RITER 10,057 32.0% 11,431 42.3% 1,374  HKD &7t Fixed and
variable
interest
rate
& E &
R ENFI
Gold loans =eEE 8,012 25.5% 11,280 41.8% 3,268 RMB and Fixed
usD interest
ARBR rate
EPM & 7 A &
Net debt® B FEEe 10,428 33.2% 15,492 57.4% 5064 N/AT@EA NATEAB
Working capital® HiEEO 26,307 83.8% 19,579 72.5% (6,728) N/ATERB NATEA
Total equity AT 31,403 100.0% 26,991 100.0% 4,412) NATEB NATEA

Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at
31 March 2020

Bank balances and cash equivalents included

As at 31 March 2020, bank borrowings amounted to HK$10,533 million and all the gold loans
would be matured within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$598 million would
be matured in more than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years and HK$300 million would be mature in
more than 2 years but not exceeding five years

Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents

Being net current assets

We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity
requirements through a combination of capital contributions,
including cash flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Gold loans are also used for economic hedge purpose to
mitigate the financial impact of the price fluctuations in the
Group's gold inventories.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

BRFEEE RAXEENER 2020963 A31 ANER

BERTERRRESED

202043 H31H - 10,633 ESETNRITERRMBEESEEHRL12
BEAREE M98 HEELHRITEFENBB1IFERZR2FNE
HiR300HEEETHRBB2FBETZNE FREH

RITHR BRERZAECHBRASRRASEEN)
mEEEFE

HMPET2ERRELERSRE  ROTERLRES
EENBEARRENZEESREMRDESR
Ko BEEETBELERRBOREREEE
SHEEERNRBNTBZE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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e The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating o AEEBERBXEKTECTERALKERESRE -

cash flows, and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy NEXZNRHEERRHEERNFEEEST R
inventory financing needs during peak seasons, working capital ARFERFABMFELEES NB 2T - &K
for future expansion plans and unexpected needs. The Group has SENEEERS B EEMEELE -

not experienced any difficulties in repaying its borrowings.

e The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated o REFEZHARBAIZETFEUABTRARBEE

in HKD and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly EENBEUNFEUST  ARERETHE - @
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. No hedging instrument is REMPBEALEBEBEENRIREZUARE
deployed against RMB fluctuation as most of the daily receipts HE HRMOEBALEEKRERNEERE -
and payments for our Mainland operations are both made in MABHHAREKBBRAEMEHFTE -

RMB, which do not pose a substantive currency exposure to
our business.

e It is our treasury policy to maintain high liquidity in response to o KMWEKBREERBRENABES  UEN

the requirement of operating cash flows; and to upkeep financial CERSRENT K ARRETEBENMIBBE -
prudence by not engaging in highly leveraged or speculative WS BRI ITEER -

derivative products.

Effect of RMB fluctuation AREESHHE

e As part of our business operation was in Mainland China, the o HARBMEIDEBEFREAMLE - ARERRK
fluctuation in RMB would post some impact on our performance. BHRMORBENETEE -

e Transactions entered by the Hong Kong entities but o BAERANUAREFENRS (B EF B R b
denominated in RMB, including the inter-group transactions BARETHNEERRS) @EXH5ERNRERE
with the Mainland China subsidiaries, are converted into HKD, REWMAET  MAEBEMNIMEEE mMALED
the functional currency of the Group, initially using the spot rate RGAGANTEZTREERRE - BEEXRHEL
at the date of transaction and the unsettled transactions are MEXRMNEN NEKEEREREPRER  MAR
retranslated at closing exchange rate at the balance sheet date. BEREEHRMOENRNEXNEETE -

Such translation differences between the spot rate and closing
exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss, negatively
affecting our profit for the year when RMB depreciated.

e Exchange difference also arises when i) incomes and expenses o AN EBHEEFER)FPEANMDIHKTIEFY

of the Mainland China segment are translated into HKD, the ERHEAET BAEEZIEE  mMEENE
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange ERBEREMEXRKE i) PERLSBHOE
rate, while the corresponding assets and liabilities are translated EFERAMBRFE /KRN EZR FEGRFEED
at closing exchange rate and ii) change in closing exchange WHEXEREE FEEENERTNRERE
rates at the current financial year of the net assets of the NHERBAR

Mainland China segment from the closing rates at the previous
financial year. Such differences are recognised in the translation
reserve in equity.

Annual Report 2020 Other Financial Review 7
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* The table below illustrates the fluctuation of RMB and the

o TRDHINTARERE AR EEHFIMBRIRA

impact on our financial performance: 2
FY2020 Closing exchange rate YoY change Average exchange rate YoY change
YW EEEE LML EHERRF LS
RMB to HKD (0} (0)
ARERET v 6.1 /O A 4 3.9 /O
2019 2020
Constant Constant
exchange exchange
As reported rate basis As reported rate basis
ZiEE RIEE
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A3MALEE 28 EEH 7] EXRTH
Revenue YoY change EEERE L Aal127% a132% «14.9% v 12.4%
Core operating profit YoY change FELEEF R E A244% a249% w184%  w155%
Changes in inventory balances FEHEHRE a13.0% a167% a77% a11.4%
Changes in cash and cash equivalents HekBESEEMEL v 3.8% 2 07% v 5.5% v 3.4%
Cash flows and others HeRERELM
Cash flows HEeERE
2018 2019 2020
HK$ million  HK$ million HKS$ million
For the year ended 31 March BE3IAMBLEE BEER BEER BEAT
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEH I EERERE
in working capital 6,879 7,774 8,385
Leases paid™ [=AREi =4 - - (1,263)
Net cash used in inventories? FEFMRREFE? (2,455) (2,911) (1,900)
Net cash from other operating Huh & LB FTBIR & %58
activities 232 629 959
Purchase of jewellery collectibles HBERELR (553) - -
Capital expenditure BARRE (1,084) (1,392) (973)
Pro forma free cash flows FEZEHESRE 3,019 4,100 5,208
Net change in bank borrowings RITERFE 1,102 2,133 1,362
Dividends paid BERE (4,260) (6,081) (6,243)
Other movements HAth 8 140 (455) (749)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERBESZEYIEMORD) FHE
cash equivalents 1 (303) (422)

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Major cash flows items for FY2020 2020t BEE X ERLFEIER
(HK$ million HE&#7T)

16,000

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

Pro forma free cash flows fEZBHRELRE
a5,208
L

8,385

A4

) 959
1,263 ’ - s

1,900 973

7,641

6,243

¥

749

7,219

As at
31.3.2019

o With adoption of IFRS 16, leases paid was included in financing activities
@ Net cash used in inventories included net change in inventories, gold loans raised and repayment
of gold loans

Annual Report 2020
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2)

As at A
31.3.2020

I
Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

EEELRPHCEERERE

—

Leases paid" B#HEM
I

Net cash used in inventories®?
FEFARSFHE?

—

Net cash from other operating activities

Hip Q& EBAMSREFH
—

Capital expenditure & Zpi%
—

Net increase in bank borrowings
SRITEFURE N

I
Dividends paid 2{fIRE
—

Other movements Hfth 5 &

RMERMBREENFE 1655%  ENEEFAREED
FEAMARSFEEETEFLY CHESHOBRLHERSHER

Other Financial Review
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Capital expenditure

e The Group's capital expenditure incurred during FY2020
amounted to HK$973 million (FY2019: HK$1,392 million).

Capital expenditure by nature #FME IS HERFEX
For the year ended 31 March #Z=3 A31 AILFE
(HK$ million & &#7T)

1,500
1,392
1,084
1,000 973
66.8%
66.4%
0,
00 88.0%
24.2% 28.6%
;
) | FE B 4.6% §o%
2018 2019 2020

Capital expenditure by function 1ZThEEEI S EIEARX
For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE
(HK$ million & &#7T)

1,500 1392

I 13.7%
1,084

1,000 973
27.6% 6.7%

72.3%
9
500 56.3% 76.3%
12.5% 7.5% 9.2%
0 4.6% 6.5% 7.8%
2018 2019 2020

Contingent liabilities

e The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Capital commitments

e Details of the Group's capital commitment as at 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2019 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

EXpX

o AEBEMMN20200MMEENEARMKLRITIAEE
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Executive Directors ${TE =

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry*, GBM, GBS (Chairman)

ERRABTE £ (GBM, GBS)(E/#)

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director)

ERR LA (R REE)

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian*, JP
B ERIE L (JP)

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy*
BB LA
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BRIRER e 4

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong
PRit B % &

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
BREREA

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
PREEEAE o4

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson*
ERSRIR Y

Governance
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Responsibilities B
Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
REBOERIK T REBERR

Strategic planning and overall management of the Group
REERRBEAREI LB ER
Strategic investment of the Group

REEMRRIRE

Raw material procurement (diamonds and gemstones)
REEREE (A - EA)

Financial management and corporate operations
MBERRPESE

Mainland China business

B At 3 7

Hong Kong, Macau and overseas business

BE ORI RBINET

Raw material procurement (diamonds and gemstones)

REHEREE (B G - BR)

Sustainable development and innovation
Al R R AR

Bank and landlord relationship management
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Non-executive Director IEH{TEE

Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia*

BEZL L
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITES Responsibilities B &
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE NC* RC |ndependent Non-executive Directors serve a significant
B E L (GBM, GBS, CBE) role in the Board to bring independent judgment on the
) ) - performance, development and risk management of the
Dr\. O:Chlng—Fal, Raymond, SBS, JP .c  Group. As chairmen or members of the Nomination
REREL (SBS, JP) Committee, Remuneration Committee and/or Audit
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon acr,re  Committee, they also undertake detailed governance
oy work under the respective terms of reference of the
committees.
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP NC, AC
ERAFIE & (UP) BUFRNTEENESTAREEERE  RAKENKER - &
. EREARERGETEYER FRAREZES FMEES

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP W R mEnEE RN ERAE  MVRESE S & AEHE
PEESS ST A (GBS, JP) BT R AEATIE -
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily NC, RC
BEBrt

NC = Nomination Committee member AC = Audit Committee member

REZBEEKE ERZEEKE
RC = Remuneration Committee member * Committee Chairman
HMEEERE ZERER
# Five of our directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other.
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Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBM, GBS
Aged 73, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman
and an executive Director in July 2011 and is a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Dr. Henry Cheng is responsible for the strategic
direction and overall performance of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is
also a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company,
including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited and
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, and a director of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited, which is a subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of
New World Development Company Limited and NWS Holdings
Limited, chairman and a non-executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited and FSE Services Group Limited,
vice-chairman and a non-executive director of i-CABLE
Communications Limited, and a non-executive director of DTXS
Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited, all of which are
listed public companies in Hong Kong.

He was an independent non-executive director of HKR International
Limited until his resignation on 31 March 2018; chairman and a
non-executive director of Newton Resources Ltd until his
resignation on 9 April 2018; an independent non-executive director
of Hang Seng Bank Limited until his retirement on 10 May 2018;
and a non-executive director of SUM Holdings Limited until his
retirement on 11 June 2019, all of the foregoing companies are
listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation. He was a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Henry Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng,
Conroy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng
Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 64, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in July 2011 and is a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kent Wong is responsible for the strategic planning
and overall management of the Group.

Mr. Wong is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, which is a
subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wong has diverse experience in business development as well
as in operations and management. He was responsible for
developing the Group's market in Mainland China and in 2008 he
was promoted to managing director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited.

Mr. Wong is a member of the 2020 Fair Organising Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council for its Hong Kong
International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong International
Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show. He is a council member of The
Hong Kong Management Association, chairman of executive
committee of the Hong Kong Jewellers” & Goldsmiths' Association
Ltd, chairman of the supervising committee of the Hong Kong &
Kowloon Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Employees’ Association Ltd, a
permanent honorable president of the Kowloon Gold Silver and
Jewel Merchants' Staff Association, a board member of the World
Diamond Council, a member of Hong Kong Consumer Council, and
a member of the Anhui Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference. He is also a board
member of the Diamond Empower Fund and vice president of the
executive committee of the Youth Outreach.

Mr. Wong was named as “CEO of the Year/Luxury/Asia” at the
2016 IAIR Awards presentation ceremony held by International
Alternative Investment Review. He was also named as “Asia’s
Best CEO (Investor Relations)” by Corporate Governance Asia, an
authoritative regional journal on corporate governance, at its Asian
Excellence Awards in 2017, 2018 and 2019 consecutively.
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Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, JP

Aged 40, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Dr. Adrian Cheng is responsible for the
strategic investment of the Group, fostering sustainability and
innovation initiatives in the areas of culture & art, craftsmanship
and creativity.

Dr. Cheng, is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group
and a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow
Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited.

Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and chief executive officer
of New World Development Company Limited, overseeing the
strategic direction for its property development and investment
activities. He is also an executive director of NWS Holdings Limited
and New World Department Store China Limited, and a non-
executive director of Giordano International Limited and New
Century Healthcare Holding Co. Limited, all of which are listed
public companies in Hong Kong. He was a vice-chairman and a
non-executive director of Modern Media Holdings Limited until his
resignation on 26 August 2017; a non-executive director of i-CABLE
Communications Limited until his resignation on 2 July 2019, both
of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, a vice-chairman of the All-China Youth Federation, a
member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference, the chairman of the
China Young Leaders Foundation and the honorary chairman of
K11 Art Foundation.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from
Harvard University and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of
Humanities by the Savannah College of Art and Design. He worked
in a major international bank from September 2003 to April 2006
prior to joining the Group, and has substantial experience in
corporate finance.

Dr. Adrian Cheng is the son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the
brother of Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-
Heng, Conroy, a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr.
Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Aged 42, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Conroy Cheng is responsible for the
procurement of diamonds and gemstones of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group, and a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai
Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.
He is currently a member of the executive committee of the
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had worked at Yu
Ming Investment Management Limited from 1999 to 2000 as a
corporate finance executive.

Mr. Conroy Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr.
Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, a
cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man,
Sonia, and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 45, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Hamilton Cheng is responsible for the
Group's financial management and corporate operations, including
information technology and intellectual capital. He also serves as a
joint company secretary of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He completed The
Prince of Wales's Business & Sustainability Programme designed
by the University of Cambridge Institute for Sustainability
Leadership in April 2018 and obtained Executive Diploma in
Corporate Governance and Sustainability Directorship from The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in May 2018.

Mr. Cheng is currently a council member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and a member of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel of the Financial Report Council in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng was named as “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)”
by Corporate Governance Asia, an authoritative regional journal on
corporate governance, at its Asian Excellence Awards in 2017,
2018 and 2019 consecutively.
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Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong
Aged 57, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group's
business in Mainland China. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chan has been in the jewellery industry for 39 years. He is a
senior adviser of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China,
a member of National Technical Committee 256 on Jewelry and
National Technical Committee 298 on Jewelry and Jade of
Standardization Administration of China, a member of the standing
council of China Gold Association, an executive vice-chairman of
the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of Commerce,
a vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, a
general vice-chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong Province,
a vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery and Jade
Industry’'s Association, and a director and visiting professor of the
China University of Geosciences (Wuhan). He is also a member of
the Liaoning Provincial Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director of Giordano International
Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Aged 55, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Peter Suen is responsible for the Group’s
Hong Kong, Macau and overseas business. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for 35 years. He's a
member of the executive committee of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths' Association. Mr. Suen holds an Executive Master's
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

Aged 69, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011.
procurement of diamonds and gemstones of the Group. He is also

Mr. Albert Chan is responsible for the
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor's degree in Business from Western
lllinois University. He is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological
Institute of America, a Fellow of The Gemmological Association of
Great Britain and a Lifetime Member of the Gemological Institute
of America, Alumni Association.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 46, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive
Director in January 2016. Mr. Bobby Liu is responsible for the
development of the Sustainability and Innovation Centre of the
Group, leading and synergising initiatives in the areas of culture &
art, craftsmanship and creativity. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in retail and administrative
management. He has been responsible for developing the Group’s
e-commerce and high-end luxury jewellery business since 2010.
He has also been in charge of the Group’s watch business in
Mainland China from 2016 onwards.

Mr. Liu is a board member of Enactus China, vice chairman of the
council of Shenzhen Performance Excellence Management
Foundation and vice chairman of the Federation of Industry and
Commerce of Yantian District, Shenzhen Municipal.

Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
The Western University (formerly known as The University of
Western Ontario) and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer
Mathematics from Carleton University.
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Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 61, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in July 2011 and re-designated as an executive
Director with effect from April 2019. Mr. Wilson Cheng is responsible
for the Group's bank and landlord relationship management.

Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and
a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, which is a

subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Cheng is a vice-president of The Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society. He has over 40 years' experience in
administration and finance in jewellery retail business. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of
Hawaii, Honolulu.

Mr. Wilson Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and
Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong,
Adrian, Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man,
Sonia, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia
Aged 39, joined the Group in 2019, was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from April 2019.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the chief executive officer of Rosewood Hotel
Group. She is chairman of the advisory committee of the School of
Hotel and Tourism Management at The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a member of the Y. Elites Association, the Young Presidents’
Organization and the Hong Kong United Youth Association, and a
non-official member of the Family Council and the Advisory
Committee on Gifted Education. She is also a member of the
Guangzhou Municipal Committee of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Ms. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong, and
oversees the hotel division and the project management division.

Before joining New World Development Company Limited, Ms.
Cheng worked in a major international investment bank and a
global US private equity firm specialising in real estate investments.
She holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree with a concentration in
Applied Mathematics from Harvard University.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the daughter of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry,
the sister of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, a cousin of Mr. Cheng
Chi-Heng, Conroy, a niece of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr.
Cheng Sek Hung, Timothy, and a grandniece of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

Aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Victor Fung is group chairman of the Fung Group, a Hong Kong
based multinational which comprises major operating groups
engaging in sourcing, logistics, distribution and retailing. They
include Li & Fung Limited, Global Brands Group Holding Limited,
Convenience Retail Asia Limited and other privately held entities.
Dr. Fung was an independent non-executive director of Koc
Holding A.S. (a company listed on the Istanbul Stock Exchange)
from April 2011 until his retirement in April 2020.

Dr. Fung is Chairman of the Advisory Board of the Asia Global
Institute at the University of Hong Kong, a multi-disciplinary think-
tank co-established with the Fung Global Institute to assume and
carry forward the Fung Global Institute’s mission to generate and
disseminate research and ideas on global issues from Asian
perspectives. He is also chairman of the 2022 Foundation, a non-profit
entity focused on research into Hong Kong's long-term competitiveness.

In public service, Dr. Fung is a non-official member of Chief
Executive's Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic
Development, an adviser of the Infrastructure Financing Facilitation
Office of The Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Academy of Finance and chairman of the Civil Service Training
Advisory Board. Formerly, he was a member of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference (2003-2018), a member of the
Economic Development Commission of the Hong Kong Government
(2013-2018), chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
(1991-2000), the Hong Kong representative on the APEC Business
Advisory Council (1996-2003), chairman of the Hong Kong Airport
Authority (1999-2008), chairman of the Council of The University of
Hong Kong (2001-2009), chairman of the Greater Pearl River Delta
Business Council (2004-2013), a member of the Commission on
Strategic Development of the Hong Kong Government (2005-2012),
chairman of the International Chamber of Commerce (“ICC") (2008—
2010), a member of WTO Panel on Defining the Future of Trade
(2012-2013), a vice chairman of China Centre for International
Economic Exchanges (2009-2014) and chairman of the Steering
Committee on the Scholarship for Excellence Scheme (2014-2018).
The Government of Hong Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia
Star in 2003 and the Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2010 for his
distinguished service to the community in Hong Kong.

Dr. Fung holds Bachelor's and Master's Degrees in Electrical
Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a
Doctorate in Business Economics from Harvard University.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Or is also chairman and a non-executive director of
China Strategic Holdings Limited, executive chairman and an
executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited, and an independent
non-executive director of Regina Miracle International (Holdings)
Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (appointed in December 2018).

Dr. Or was vice-chairman and an independent non-executive
director of G-Resources Group Limited until his retirement on 30
June 2017; an independent non-executive director of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited until his retirement upon
expiration of his term of office in October 2018; and an
independent non-executive director of Television Broadcasts
Limited until his resignation on 1 January 2020, all of which are
listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was also deputy
chairman and a non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment
Limited (a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange)
until his resignation on 31 December 2017.

Dr. Or holds a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics and
psychology from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science from the City University of
Hong Kong in 2014. He was conferred Honorary Fellowship by
Hang Seng University of Hong Kong (formerly known as Hang
Seng Management College) in May 2017.
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Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Gordon Kwong is a Fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was a Partner
of PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member
of the Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to
1997, during which, he had acted as convener of both the
Compliance Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group
Holdings Limited, China Power International Development Limited,
Henderson Investment Limited, Henderson Land Development
Company Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, and FSE Services Group
Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Piraeus Port
Authority SA (a company listed on the Athens Stock Exchange).
Mr. Kwong was an independent non-executive director of OP
Financial Limited and Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited,
both being listed public companies in Hong Kong, until his
retirement on 27 August 2019 and 22 May 2020 respectively.
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Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP

Aged 83, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in September 2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Paul Cheng had extensive governance experience serving as
an independent director on the board of a number of organisations,
including many publicly listed companies. Previously, he was
deputy chairman and an independent non-executive director of
Esprit Holdings Limited until his retirement in December 2018,
which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. He also served as
an independent non-executive director of Global Logistic Properties
Limited (which was listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange until
its delisting on 22 January 2018); and an independent non-
executive director of Pacific Alliance China Land Limited (a
company listed on the AIM Board of the London Stock Exchange)
until his resignation on 12 May 2020.

Mr. Cheng was a former member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council as well as the former chairman of Inchcape Pacific Limited,
N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, The Link Management
Limited and the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Lake Forest
College (lllinois, the United States) and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from the Wharton Graduate School of
Business at The University of Pennsylvania.
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Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Jeffrey Lam is an independent non-executive director of C C
Land Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group
Limited, Wynn Macau, Limited, CWT International Limited, i-CABLE
Communications Limited, Wing Tai Properties Limited, and
Analogue Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public companies
in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He also holds a number
of other public and community service positions including being a
non-official member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and a member of the Legislative
Council in Hong Kong, a general committee member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce, chairman of Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) Complaints Committee, a
director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and the board of
Heifer Hong Kong. He was the former chairman of the Assessment
Committee of Mega Events Fund and a member of Fight Crime Committee.

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in mechanical engineering from
Tufts University in the United States. He has over 40 years of
experience in the toy industry and is currently the managing
director of Forward Winsome Industries Limited which is engaged
in toy manufacturing.
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Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from April 2019 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Lily Cheng has served in the technology and internet industry
for over 20 years, both as an entrepreneur and as a corporate
executive. She is the founder and an executive director of Hubel
Labs Limited, a virtual applied-Al software lab. She served as the
President of TripAdvisor, APAC from 2014 to 2016 and held various
management roles at TripAdvisor, Inc. and Expedia, Inc. from 2008
to 2016. She was a management consultant with The Boston
Consulting Group from 2006 to 2008.

Ms. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Engineering and a
Master of Engineering degree from the University of Cambridge.
She is currently pursuing a Graduate Certificate in Artificial
Intelligence at the Stanford Center for Professional Development.

Ms. Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Swire
Properties Limited and Sunevision Holdings Limited, both of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong. She is also an
independent non-executive director of Octopus Cards Limited, a
board observer and advisor to HotelBeds Group and an advisor to
the Office of the President of Mars, Incorporated.
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Honorary adviser to the Board of Directors

Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai

Aged 88, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is
responsible for advising on procurement. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai
Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is an uncle of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung,
Timothy, and a granduncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.

Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy

Aged 69, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai
Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry and Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, an uncle of Dr. Cheng
Chi-Kong Adrian, Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng
Chi-Man, Sonia, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Joint Company Secretary and Group General
Counsel

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton is an executive Director and Joint
Company Secretary. His profile is set out on page 83 of this annual
report under the sub-section of “Executive Director”.

Mr. Lai Sau-Cheong, Simon

Aged 59, joined the Group in 2017, is Group General Counsel and
Joint Company Secretary. Mr. Simon Lai is also the general counsel of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales,
and New South Wales, Australia and has over 30 years of
experience in corporate, commercial and related regulatory
practice. He was a long standing partner and later on, consultant,
of a leading law firm before joining the Group and has extensive
experience on corporate finance matters. Mr. Lai has also served
on a number of public appointments.
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Ms. Leung Man-Yan, lvy
Aged 50, joined the Group in 2019, is the Global Chief Intellectual
Capital Officer of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 25 years of
experience in human resources, training, total quality management
and customer service spanning across Fintech, Media, Hospitality
and Petrochemical industries.

To promote excellence in her areas of expertise, Ms. Leung is
actively engaged in public service. She is a member of the
Organising Committee of the Awards for Excellence in Training and
Development of Hong Kong Management Association (HKMA), and
has been on the Board of Examiners of the Quality Award of HKMA
since 2008. She is also a member of the Cross-Industry Training
Advisory Committee and the Specification of Competency Standards
Drafting Subcommittee for the Human Resources Management
sector of Qualifications Framework of the HKSAR Government.

Ms. Danita On

Aged 43, joined the Group in 2012, is the director of Investor
Relations and Corporate Communications of the Group, responsible
for maintaining effective communications with investors and
media. Ms. On has over 20 years of experiences in auditing,
management consulting, equity research, asset management and
investor relations. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Lee Tin-Hei, Jade

Aged 45, joined the Group in 2016, is the general manager
responsible for business strategy and analytics as well as technology
applications of the Group. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience
in advanced analytics carrying out consulting and business
management roles with leading business analytics corporations.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong, Patrick

Aged 49, joined the Group in 1993, is the general manager
responsible for managing and developing the information
infrastructures and technologies of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over
27 years of experience in information technology. He is currently
vice president (business) of the Internet of Things Industry
Advisory Council of GS1 HK.
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Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 58, joined the Group in 1986, is the assistant director
responsible for the operation of Diamond Department and diamond
manufacturing management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 34
years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi
Aged 48, joined the Group in 1994,
responsible for managing and purchasing gemstones such as

is the senior manager

jadeite, colour stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has over
25 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Lau King-Ming

Aged 53, joined the Group in 2013, is the general manager
responsible for managing production and logistics capacities as
well as the related infrastructures of the Group. Mr. Lau has over
30 years of management and consultancy experience.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 48, joined the Group in 2010, is the general manager responsible
for the branding and marketing management of the Group. Mr. Chan
has over 25 years of experience in luxury branding and marketing.

Mr. Lam Hung-Shing, Max

Aged 37, joined the Group in 2011,
responsible for the creative design and development of jewellery

is the general manager

products. Mr. Lam has over 15 years of experience in jewellery
design. He was awarded Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Designer
Award in 2014 and was conferred Fellowship and Chartered Manager
by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration.

Mr. Wong-Tang, Alex
Aged 61,
responsible for managing the Hong Kong and Macau Management

joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager

Centre and Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 45 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He holds an Executive Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
also a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America
and a Certified Gemmologist (Fei Cui) of the Gemmological
Association of Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

R EiRHE

Our “4Ts” for Corporate Governance

The "4Ts" concept introduced by T MARK diamond brand in
ensuring our diamonds are natural and ethically sourced is reinforced
by our rigorous controls under the agile business model. The same
set of principles also guides the development of our corporate
governance framework, supporting the Group in better achieving our

AT 2 5R [ 4Ts 5

T MARK & I 8 [4Ts | B EEEEE
EHBERBRERT  RERMOBERARA -
ARE % - A-ERARR AL EEAEROBE
EHAREEEEERFRM DR KA THEEE
MER -

strategic objectives towards sustainable growth and development.

Transparent

CIF:|

Implement transparent disclosures and constructive dialogues to foster genuine mutual
understanding with stakeholders
FRERLAFENEEMEIEET BEREESHENEETH

Thoughtful
A B

Embrace leaders with independent mindset, versatile expertise and business acumen
who steer our long-term pursuit for sustainable business growth and attainment of
common values with stakeholders

HEABYEHE BEEREMNSEXANBANBEBKNEM  FAERMRIERTHENERE
RNERSOENHAREESR

Truthful
] {5

Uphold long-established culture of integrity to safeguard the fundamental interests of
stakeholders and build trusting relationships with them
BERABINAGL  REFOHENELRFZRBELEY EEERF

Traceable
i

Enhance accountability via institutionalised structures and measures to drive better
utilisation of resources and fulfillment of stakeholders’ interests
BBGECHEBNERNEEE  UEERNERERNEREHENAR

Our Board Governance Framework

HEFHEIRM

Board Structure
EEENE
P.98-102 8

Board of directors
=
Board committees

EXZEY

Responsibilities and main tasks
BEMEFETIE

Board Composition

Board diversity

Continuing professional development

EETHEK EEEZL HERERRE
P.103-109 & Board refreshment Remuneration
EEGEH N
Director roles and functions
EENAETRAE
Board Operations Leadership and enablement Compliance and accountability
EEgEES BE R AE ABRMEE
P.110-1198 Communication and information support Evaluation
SERIEIN-S-2 5] Rk

Shareholder Communications
HIRRAEE
P.119-1238

Interactive engagement

EREHER

Shareholder rights and other information

I8 ZRUAE M R LAt 3 R
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Board Structure

i

The Board

HHE

N

Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee Audit Committee Executive Committee
REZZEEE FEEE BZZEET BITEEE
\ \ \ \ \
Reform and Intellectual IT Governance
Sustainability Capital Strategy . Risk Management| | Group Branding
Development . . Committee . .
Committee Committee Committee EAMEHEEE Committee Committee
o || THEBRESE EH AR Rgkotale: EREEEEE SERRESE
MEREREEST Fpe Z58
\ \ \ \ \
Core Business — Core Business — | | Core Business—
Corporate . . Hong Kong, Macau Supply Chain Strategic
. Mainland China
Operations B _ & Other Markets Management Investment
REEE :th{h BLER — &% BiER — RERIRE
- RAFREM TS HrEEERE
Board of Directors BEE
¢ Responsible for steering the sustainable success of the Group e AREEEBREAM - ARATELS/IBMEE
by overseeing the overall strategic direction, risk appetite and z]x;,%.a’;%;% AR E BB MIBERKT ©

directing and supervising its affairs.

e Sets the Group's core values and adopts proper standards to
ensure that the Company operates with integrity and being
responsible to our shareholders and other stakeholders for the
Group's performance.

* More details on main tasks, p.99.

Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee

and Audit Committee

e Undertake governance duties as specified in their respective
terms of reference.

* More details on main tasks, p.100-102.

Executive Committee

e Supports the Managing Director to implement strategy and
oversee operational performance.

e Being delegated with all the powers to act concerning the
ordinary course of business.

e Matters beyond its delegated authority are reserved to the
Board for decision.

° More details on main tasks, p.110-112.
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Main tasks of the Board of Directors EEEMEETE

Area of focus FY2020
TEHE (Number of meetings: 4) (E:E/XE] : 4) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Strategy planning and ¢ Discuss on the medium to long term goals and strategies v
execution S EEREI B IE AR
RES IR BT e Comment on the current strategic plan and financial budget v v
AT B RIR RIS ST BB B TEE
* Receive strategic reports from the Managing Director v v
EME R ALIER R RE
e Receive management reports from the Executive Committee v v v v

RRATEEENERRS

Business and financial ® Approve interim results and report, and interim dividend v
performance HEAE P ER AR S AR P HIRR S
XM BRI e Approve annual results and report, and recommend final dividend v
HEFE EENREARERRBARS
* Review quarterly performance and recent business development v v
B EERFALRAEBER
e Review on industry trends and market outlook v v
BRITEBENTGA R
* Receive the investors' feedback report v v
EHREE M EERS

Corporate governance © Receive reports from the Nomination Committee, Remuneration v v v
hEER Committee and Audit Committee
ENREZEEE  FWZESNEZZEGNRE
* Approve the remuneration of independent non-executive directors v
HEBTIEATE RO FH I
e Consider/approve connected/continuing connected transactions v v
ER/HERE FHERERS
* Review sustainability performance and approve the report v
B AR EEERBANERBRS
e Approve proposed resolutions to put forward to the annual general v
meeting and the publication of related circular
HOETRR 2 TREFBF RS K2R AN T A8 8 &
* Private meeting between Board chairman and INEDs v v
EESETREBUIFNTEFOHAMGE

During the year, the Board had more discussions on: FRN EFLHUTEEETELHNN®R -

* Market opportunities in Mainland China and other Asian markets. o FEAMMEAMDMNTIHHTSEE -

e Leveraging technology and data to uncover breakthrough o H AR RN EUR LUR B 2R 0% 1 7 3 75 138 DA f B
business insights and develop products, services and NERPTENER - REMER -

experiences tailored to customer needs.

e Transforming customer engagement models by connecting internal o EAANECFIINEL Y EIRA R A REE R RO & - M
and external resources and stakeholders in the eco-system. FEHBARMNEIES -

* Medium to long term strategic framework in relation to business o BFHEBMEMAFNFHERBRBIES -
expansion and innovations.
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Main tasks of the Nomination Committee

Area of focus
BEHE

FY2020
(Number of meetings: 1) (E3 %8 : 1)

REZESENMEETE

FY2020

FY2019

Board performance
assessment

BERERBNAE

Benchmark to best governance practices

NRECEEREEEGS

Discuss on a new work plan for fulfillment of the revised Corporate
Governance Code and review the committee’s terms of reference
AEEEr] CEERTRIF WM TIETE - WigdZE e RESE

Evaluate on the structure, composition and size of the Board of Directors

FHEEESORE  ARFRE
Evaluate on the structure, roles and delegation of Board committees
AEEFEZEENEE  AENBENS T

Assess and confirm on the independence and time commitment of INEDs

FHE M RB L IFMITE TN B L MR ARRE

Review and monitor the continuing professional development of directors

and senior management
BAMEREENSREEABNBEZERR

v

v

Board composition
review

BERENEKER

Discuss on the board mix of competence and diversity in perspectives

required by future strategic needs
AERR G ENHRESEMRMNENESNZ LB

Analyse on the current board matrix, diversity objectives, and progress

DMERMNEEGER  ZTCBIRIEE

Board refreshment or
succession

ERSEMNRMET

Consider the planning for board refreshment with respect to INEDs
HBUIFRNTESEREETG IS

Advise on the preparation for management succession
HREHEEEBABEIREER

Determine on the rotation and re-appointment of directors
RTEFNHENEREET

Directors’ nomination
and appointment
EENREREE

Establish board nomination policy and review Board diversity policy
FITESFGREBRNEHNESTS L TLECR

Nomination, selection and appointment of new directors

e WMENEZTHES

Review the relevant disclosures in annual report and circular
FHFIRAE ORI B B

Formulate induction guideline for new directors

il E ¥ E M RUE RS

After intensive works being carried out by the Nomination
Committee to facilitate board refreshment in last financial year, this

year the Nomination Committee has put more emphasis on:

REZESL - VBEFEETTEENTHEREKRE
FEEMR EAFEEZHIATER

¢ The learning needs of directors and senior management that are e EEMNEREEAERERKBERABITERE

essential for the achievement of strategic goals or performance
of governance duties.

Onboarding induction for new directors to enable them to make
contributions soonest after their appointment.

Governance
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Main tasks of the Remuneration Committee FNEEEMEETE

Area of focus FY2020
BEEHE (Number of meetings: 2) (Z:H/RE : 2) Q1 Q4
Performance and e Assess on the Company’s performance and remuneration level for directors v
rewards for FAEARKRBEMNESHFHKTE
directors and e Determine the remuneration packages and annual adjustments for executive v
senior management directors and senior management
EEREMEBAEN EFEERENERASNHWGBENFERHE
I EZE e Consider comparable benchmarking and performance of individual directors v
ZRALEEZREEEFEENRE
* Review on the mechanism of long term incentives for directors v
a1 E R H DA
Remuneration policy  ® Supervise on the remuneration policy and structure for directors and employees v
and mechanism EBEEMEENTHRNEE
27 B 1B 36 RN o) * Endorse the remuneration strategy for senior management and key employees v
BiBEREREABMEARES & FH IR
e Review the market pay trends and endorse the annual staff budget for increment v

AT SHFEBENRBETFENFEE

Strategic intellectual e Discuss on the intellectual capital risk and strategic focus v
capital development A E N B ARRBRMERE SR
KRB NWERERE * Review the progress and effectiveness of enhancements in intellectual capital v

strategies for future needs
BRBYERRBEMBEAD N ERFEHEF KK

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has increased EFR GMEE B AT TSEIE
attention on:

e Career development of the future generation of leaders, which o RR—REBASHEZEER  REEABEEHRE -
paves the way for management succession.

*  Nurturing self-motivating and innovative culture in the whole organisation. o IEEEEMBANHEBEMEMEIF UL -
e Synchronisation on the corporate vision, mission and values. o WHRAGHEESR - FafEE -
Annual Report 2020 Corporate Governance Report
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Main tasks of the Audit Committee

Area of focus
BRI

FY2020
(Number of meetings: 3) (&% : 3)

EXZEEENEETE

Q1

Q3 Q4

Strategic alignment

SREE 1 1F

Understand the digital transformation of finance function

T EREI ST AE A B s A

Review the adequacy of resources supporting the finance, governance
and internal audit function

B BANAREZNENERTEE

Comment on the work priorities of policy governance, risk management
and internal audit

EBEERGE  RREENMANIEZ B TEES

Risk management and
controls
B B B2 028 )

Receive reports from Risk Management Committee
EREREEZEEMHRE

Receive reports from Internal Audit Department

B A EZ A WS

Receive reports from the Group Policies and Controls Department
R E G E BB RS

Corporate governance
TEESD

Annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems, and external and internal audit
FERNRAREENMAITEZEZRNE R - ARINERABEZ
Annual review on the continuing connected transactions
BEFEANNSERER S

Review compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
BREEERTRINETER

Review disclosures in the results announcements, interim and annual
reports and sustainability report

BEEERNE  FHRERFRNATFELRREORE

Evaluate the committees’ works and planning for the next year
AEZESNIEMTEERME

Financial statements

B

Receive the management’s analysis on the business and financial review
TEERE IR [E W SR BT 76 B B A A

Review significant accounting policies, finance controls and financial
reporting system

BRBEBAGEE  MBEIZERVBRE R4

Review the presentation and disclosures of the financial statements for
the Group's interim and annual results

B EE P HRE R FRABREN 2RI E

External auditor
SR A% SRR

Comment on the annual audit plan

HEEEZABAREER

Receive auditor’s audit report, or interim review report
EEZEM B R R ES T AR RS

Private meeting with auditor

EAZHRMRITHAME R

Review on the independence and objectivity, performance and fees of
auditor, and recommend on their re-appointment
ERZEMNOBLMEMETEGE  RENER  UREZRENEME

During the year, the Audit Committee has increased attention on:

e QOperational efficiency of the information system and workflows, .
which is essential to maintain effective internal controls over

the business operations with increasing volume and speed.

e Maturity of the information security framework and readiness of .

response plan for cyber-attacks.

* Impact of emerging new technologies, in particular on the .

MEMBRERNTZE

evolution of information systems.

Governance
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Board Composition

The Board consists of 17 directors.

Independence

B

Board tenure

EXEEH

82%

Our Board diversity policy

12%

35%

6%

6 INED
BIHHTES

—
INED
BYFHTES
NED
FHITES
—

ED

HITES

7 Average years of service

PRI E

0-3 years &

4-6 years &

7-9 years &

ot & Ak
FEEH 17 REFAR -

Age
FR

41% 35%

24%

Gender
i35

. 12%

88%

ESESTILBR

5 9 Average age
FHER

—

35-50

51-65

over 65

HiB655%

2 Female directors
ZHES

L1
Female Z

—
Male 3

* Appropriate combination of competency and diversity of o DEEMENEANZITESE  LEBARRQFNE

perspectives in order to achieve the Company'’s long term goal

and strategy.

B EZAREE -

e Thorough considerations in board decision-making leverage on e EFERRBEEENSENAMMBBLARSEL

broader insights and risk intelligence, as well as better

understanding on customers and stakeholders.

e A broad concept of diversity attributable to various attributes:

— Personal skills and professional knowledge

— Regional and industry experience, reach to stakeholders

— Gender, age, length of service and other qualities

Annual Report 2020
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Our current board mix of knowledge and experience

Broad business exposures

Typical industries: retailing, manufacturing, property development
Emerging sectors serving for customers’ lifestyle and enjoyments:
— Lifestyle products and fashion

— Leisure and entertainment

— Travel and hospitality

— Technology and innovation

— Healthcare, finance and insurance

Connections with commercial leaders, public bodies and
community groups.

Worldwide market experience

Mainland China and Hong Kong, China
European and the United States markets

Diverse professional knowledge

Expertise in retail and jewellery

Corporate strategies and risk management
Listed company governance

Capital market and finance

Technology and data analytics

Our diversity objectives for the future Board

Proven experience in young generation market and
business innovations.

A broad spectrum of connections and intelligence across
multiple commercial fields.

Idea crossovers and collaborative innovations along the
consumers’ value chain in a wider market.

Together contribute to high standards of corporate governance
and stakeholders’ interests.

The joining of two female and young directors in April 2019 has
contributed to a desirable Board mix in view of gender and age diversity.

Governance
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ZENMREEX
EEBNEARER
mAEER
BTSN
BBz i

b=
i
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Board refreshment

Board nomination

ESEEMH
EEERE

Nomination policy and process

REBBURTIEF

Status update
BREM

Stage 1
Preparation

MR

Look into future challenges, opportunities, business model and
strategic goals

RARRRO DR - #8  EBHRAMERR B R

Reviewed in FY2019
2019 B BUF E E R

Business innovation

& 15 Identify desirable perspectives and experience an optimal Board requires ESS-1Fn
HREEEEERFEZNRBTNLER * Customer experience
Evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of the current Board composition AR BLEs
LB EEESAKNKRIEE * Gender and age diversity
Set out requirements and objectives in searching for potential candidate(s) 14 BRI BE % oAb
FlEMEEEREANERMERZE
Propose the timeline for Board refreshment
EREESTMNEREK
Stage 2 Invite nomination of candidates from Board members or professional Nominated in FY2019
Nomination consultants 2019 FEIRA
FEREER FEREGNENEEERRELREA e Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily
RA Con3|der a broad range of candidates who are in and outside of the MEEit
Board's circle * Ms. Cheng Chi-Man,
BZEREZGEFRIMNIEEA Sonia
Meet with the shortlisted candidates and then evaluate on the suitability BT L+
HARREAGETTHERDEHE
Put forward the recommendation to the Board, including the role and
function, and committee membership
MEELRIZEBES  BEACTRE  URZEGKESH
Stage 3 The Board considers the recommendation and decides on the appointment FY2020
Appointment EEGERERMATEME 2020 T LF[E
FoPEER Determine the communication and transition plan, as well as e Appointment letters
ZF induction activities FE K
EEABETRERE  URBCEES e Onboard and re-election
Publish an announcement, fulfill statutory filings and issue letter FEFEE
of appointment e Induction activities
FlgERE - TRCAE BRI EHE TR BEEH
Propose the re-election of the newly appointed director in the next general
meeting
ET—EARRASEREEFTELES
Management succession planning EEEEETE
e Enrich the roles played by young management by allocating o ZRAKBUNEBGFEEREAE  UEKARE

challenging assignments for the achievement of the Group's

EloEST

sustainable development.

e Create strategic task force and career advancement o Aifial

BRI IR

opportunities for them.

e Provide comprehensive training and development programmes. o RRMHEPMEIE
e Design attractive incentive schemes to reward outstanding performance. °

Annual Report 2020
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Director roles and functions

Our Board is collectively responsible and accountable to our
shareholders for the Group's performance.

EENABIREEE
EEERAEENRAARABRREERRE -

Executive and

Number of directors INED non-executive directors

HEHAE BIFEPITES PITEERIERTES

Board of Directors & & 17 35% 65%
Nomination Committee I 2Z &€ 7 71% 29%
Remuneration Committee #HfZE & 6 67% 33%
Audit Committee E% L8 4 100% 0%
Executive Committee iiTZE & 10 0% 100%

The profile, role and function of each director, their relationship
with each other and the membership of the board committees are
set out on p.78-93.

Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

* Provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively.

e Qversees strategic direction and overall performance of the Group.

Non-executive directors (including INEDs)

e Bring strategic insights to the Board driving for long term value.

e Exercise independent judgement on the strategy, performance
and risks of the Group.

e Balance the interests of the Company, shareholders and stakeholders.

e [INEDs act as chairmen or members of major Board committees
and undertake detailed governance work under the respective
terms of reference.

e Being appointed for a term of three years, subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

Managing Director, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

e Formulates and recommends the strategy of the Group to
the Board.

e Leads the management team to execute the strategy agreed by
the Board and is responsible for the overall business and
operations of the Group.

Other executive directors

e Each has his own strategic and/or management responsibilities.

e Support the Managing Director to oversee the execution of
corporate strategies and supervise on the business and operations.

Directors’ time commitment

Based on assessment with reference to a number of factors:

e Directors’ confirmation

* Meeting attendance rate

e Preparation for and degree of participation in meetings

e Participation in continuing professional development to keep
abreast of knowledge relevant to the directors’ duties

The Nomination Committee is of the view that all directors,
including INEDs, have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company's affairs.

Governance
E /D

REERER BBEBE RUEzHANBERARES
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Number of

meetings attended/eligible to attend for FY2020

2020 T REEHE SEREFEEERY

Annual Continuing
General Board Nomination Remuneration Audit professional
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee development
ES RN Exggz REZEE FMEES EREEE BHEEXRE
Executive Directors BITES
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry R il 3/4¢ 7 22 - v/
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRERAE 1”1 4/4 171 2/2 - v/
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEREL 17 4/4 - - - 4
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEBEE 7 4/4 - - - 4
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton #BImER 4 1 4/4 - - - v
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Rt S 54 7 a/4 - - - 4
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEREE 171 4/4 - - - v/
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BREEA 4 1 4/4 - - - v
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BRRBEE il 4/4 - - - v/
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BeRIT R4 1 4/4 - - - v
Non-executive Director EHRITEE
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia BEZLL 0N 4/4 - - - 4
Independent Non-executive
Directors BAFHITES
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BB 17 4/4 1€ 2/2 - 4
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond 5@ ELT 1”1 4/4 171 2/2¢ 3/3 v/
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon Bkt 7 a/4 - 2/2 3/3¢ 4
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BRI & 7 3/4 A - 2/3 4
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey NS 171 4/4 171 - 3/3 v/
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily =Bzt il 4/4 7 2/2 - 4
Note: Bk -
C represents the chairman of Board or the relevant Board committees KEEENABESZESNER

v

C
All directors have submitted their training records for the year, showing that each of them has v
fulfilled the training requirement by participating in the activities on p. 108 organised by the Company.

Conflict of Interest and Independence

Nomination Committee’s annual review on INEDs’

2RESCRIAFENEIRLE  HPBRRIZALEARAERSE
108 EFT#IHES) - CRITIHAIZES -

FlE @RI
REZEEHBAIUIPTESHRINNFEEESE

independence

Based on the review of a number of factors: HEe®EZHREE -

e Potential conflict of interest o BENNEER

e Nature and amount of business relationship and transactions o FRNHEALENEBBER XZINULENEHE

The Board is of the view that all INEDs are independent, free from
any business or other relationship which could materially interfere

with the Group during the year

The number and nature of offices held in listed public .

companies, organisations and other significant commitments

Each INED’s annual confirmation of independence received by °

the Company

with the exercise of their judgement.

Annual Report 2020
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Continuing professional development

Align knowledge and experience acquisition with a view to
driving performance towards our strategic goals and exercising
critical oversight on risk and performance.

Sharpen the strategic vision and competency in embracing the
era of innovation and disruption.

Foster a Board culture of ongoing learning and knowledge sharing.

Our approach to ongoing learning

Organise Board seminars, management forums and workshops
on themes relevant for propelling the business priorities, where
our leaders can interact with inspirational guest speakers.
Arrange on-site visits to explore on the competitive edges of
other advanced organisations.

Custom-made newsletters sharing articles and videos related to
the Board's hot topics.

Conduct surveys for the Nomination Committee to understand
learning needs of each director and analyse the directors’
training records to prioritise the Board education activities.

Onboarding induction

Assist incoming directors to have proper understanding on
business and operations, strategies and competitive
environment, and directors’ duties.

Help the new directors to get an understanding of the Board
culture and corporate culture.

Efficient and tailor-made on needs, depending on their Board
roles, their expertise and experience, enabling them to make
contributions as early as possible to the Board, particularly on
providing advice on the strategies.

Induction activities in FY2020

Briefing sessions.

Networking luncheon with other Board members and management
presentation on “Our journey to digital transformation”.

Site visits to understand how we enhance customer experience
with technology, and the status of multi-brand development and
innovative projects.

Online resources centre for directors:

— Business model and strategies

— Industry trends and market profiles

— Business and financial performance

— Statutory duties and responsibilities of directors

— Corporate governance policies

Ms. Lily Cheng was invited to share on the topic “Digital
transformation in offline retail” in a Board and management
seminar. In preparing this, Lily met with our management teams
and visited our facilities to understand the Group's existing
plans and needs.

Ms. Sonia Cheng was invited to sit in the Executive Committee
meetings, during which she has explored collaborative opportunities
to better serve common customers with other companies.

Governance
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Remuneration

Put in place a well-designed incentive system to attract, motivate
and retain talented corporate leaders in order to support the
achievement of long- and short-term strategic goals of the Group
as well as to promote value creation for the benefit of
the shareholders.

Offer fair and competitive reward levels to ensure comparability
with companies listed in Hong Kong competing for talents with
similar leadership qualities, with special emphasis on the Asian-
focused jewellery companies.

Executive directors

o

o RETTENREGE - AR MBMBEAT S

MEEEGAS X FAEBEERNRBNEHS
REEBIR  ARARRONEEDEEAE -

o REAFMAZTF AR - BRAELMEE -
MRB(AEZATMAELNIKE AR B - A
eI B AEBERGREINAT

Fixed portion e Salaries, benefits and pension
BB 45 EXHT - BAMERE
e Director's fee
BEREE
Variable portion o
FENER (R — the current year's profitability

Discretionary bonus linked with the Company’s performance as follows:

— the increase in share price of the Company in a period of time over the benchmark

SUR A AR BN
— BEEORTE)
— KB -

P BB E R

TEALENT

HIE 1R

Incentive-based, with a significant portion of variable portion
correlated with the short term profitability and long term value
of the Company.

Alignment of their rewards with the performance of the
Company and interests of its shareholders.

Determined by the Remuneration Committee.

Independent non-executive directors

o HEVAA  BHEELAIEFE RN EAR R R 62 H
B A REEERS -

o A {PIH SR AN BRI AR s A o

o AFMEEERE -

BIKPTES

Fixed portion e Director's fee

EIEEBH BEFHRE

Variable portion ¢ Discretionary bonus linked with:

FENER Y — theincrease in share price of the Company in a period of time over the benchmark

BYIEIEAL - BELA T4 4R
— R—BEHEA

RABBEEIE R E IR

Offer appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain high
calibre directors with sufficient governance experience and
independence in thinking so that their views carry weight in the Board.
Proportionate to the time commitment and workloads of Board
committees they serve.

Benchmarked against market practice, according to their roles,
responsibilities and time commitment.

Determined by the Board, after discussions in the
Remuneration Committee.

More details on directors’ remuneration for FY2020, p. 218.
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Leadership and enablement

Area of focus

Main tasks of the Executive Committee

HE

BEHE BITEESEMEETE
Strategy e Competition and market development strategy Investment and acquisition strategy
R 35 AT 35 B R AR B 128 O R
e Customer strategy and business model Intellectual capital and IT strategy
AR R A EBER BN ERTIE MBS
Execution e Business targets and progress tracking Investment budget and appraisal
BiT ES RERES RN RERE MG
e Goals and reward system for the management Organisation and management
EIRABME RN GIE structure
EEE IR
Monitoring e Business alignment with strategies and Compliance with laws and regulations
EE risk appetite BERTER

EBEERA RIEANE R AT E
e Efficiency in operations and use of resources
EEMNEREAME

Corporate culture and ethics
REXcMBEE

Accountability
E&

* Governance policy and practices
ERINEFIEHI
* Investors' perspectives

REENAR

Social and environmental objectives
e MRRE R

Strategy planning

R E

e Formulate market driven and customer focused strategies to o EMIZRBAMETRATLOHERR  NENEEE

achieve performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by

the Board.

RO MBS B EMREEEE -

* Organise broad-based engagement activities from top-down to o MABALEMTHMEZESES  UHRKBERE

align strategic vision and encourage collaborations across functions:
- Large group: strategy forum, annual retreat and inspirational expert

briefings on topics such as industry and market assessment,

competitive review, customer profile and segmentation

- Small group: interview, focus group and innovation panels on

topics such as analysing market signals, analysing on

opportunities and threats of our own value chain
e Connect bottom-up proposals to the medium to long term o BHRTMEMNEZBARHERIAREER

strategic map:

- Review strategies, annual plans, business targets and

— /J\i}‘é

MR 2 MM a1E
— K& REEREWE  FRESEMEFEEN

R B4 - ATERNTRNM SIS - HFE
B OBBEEFEMA D SEE

CEIRR - ERELEAAET VR Wﬁﬁﬁ%’\\
DITTIHER - DM AF EEROBENRE

— EMEBOBREINRE  FEAI  XBER

financial budgets submitted by business segments

- Validate the consistency and effectiveness of these annual
plans on their assumptions such as competition landscape,
customers proposition, business model and required level of
return to shareholders etc.

Governance
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M BEE
— RECUFEFEHNBRELS —BLAUT B85
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Strategy execution

REGIT

\\ \\
Core Business — .
Core Business — Hong Kong, Macau Core Busmes_s - .
Corpor_a\te Mainland China & Other Markets Supply Chain Strategic
Operations N N Management Investment
A S ey 1‘2'[.‘%?% — *;’L‘%ﬁ - ~ L
LgEE : it Bl 275 — H IR
o P i & AR BREsEE
Eﬂﬂﬂit;? 7S IE B
AN AN AN AN

Hold monthly Executive Committee meetings to review the
performance reports, monitor the progress of strategy
implementation, financial budget and analyse the effectiveness of
business drivers in order to review and make timely adaptations.
Supervise on critical aspects of the major business segments
such as strategic prioritisation, resources allocation and
performance measurement, the planning and building of profit
drivers and budgets, managing the portfolios of products and
customers and so on.

Connect the dots in a flat organisation structure under a
customer-centric approach to promote synergies among the
Group, as well as aligning various strategies on talent, reward,
culture, risk appetite and controls.

Set up and supervise on the management committees, which
assist in the strategic planning for relevant areas and supervise
the attainment of the Group's objectives.

Report back to the Board on the performance of the Group.

Annual Report 2020
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Scope of work of the major management committees
TEEEZSEN T EEE

Reform and Development
Committee

HERERESE

Drive business innovation and transformation to achieve sustainable growth of the
Group's business

BN EBAFMEL - LERAEEERHAFEER

Supervise on the reforms along the value chain and the business model
EEEEBEMEBRENE

Sustainability Committee

FERRESE

Promote responsible growth which interlocks social purposes with the Group’s business
and operations and evaluate on ESG (environmental, social and governance) risks
EHHHSEMNEAREXBEERENEETER  TIHERE LB REBER
Monitor on the achievement of the Group’s centennial commitments in relation to four
priority areas: responsible sourcing; craftsmanship, innovation and technology; resource
efficiency and carbon reduction; and people focused

ERAKEERAWA TEERE  FRAH - ERME LRI - URAARKRIKERH
B &Y B F ARG

Intellectual Capital Strategy
Committee

ENEFRBESE

Formulate major intellectual capital strategies and policies to support the Group's
business transformation and sustainability

FIEEEENEARRBMEBCR - A HAEENEBER A HEEE

Monitor the progress of major intellectual capital enhancement projects
ERFERNEREAEBENEE

IT Governance Committee

BB ELRESE

Formulate major IT strategies and governance policies to enable the Group’s business
transformation and operational efficiencies

HIEFEMEABHRBEAMERBE  FASE A EBEKELMEERE

Monitor the progress of major projects on IT infrastructure, system development, data
governance and information security

EREANMBAER  AERE  BBRELANENLXEETIZHENER

Risk Management Committee

EABEEESE

Build an enterprise risk management framework and policies

B (bR B IR AR SR MR

Review on the Group’s major risks and supervise on the mitigation measures
BRANEENEERRMESREEE

Group Branding Committee

Direct the brand vision, mission and values and corporate image

SEREEEE BEMERS  FafMEEUNREERR
e Supervise on the multi-brand strategy, including brand positioning, image and marketing strategy
BEEZMEERE  BREREELNL  FRMEHERE
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Communication and information support

Board communication

Focus the Board's time and dialogues on key aspects of
strategy, risk and performance.

Enable meeting efficiency with high quality information.

Make sure the questions raised or matters arising from
meetings are followed up.

Arrange private session between Board chairman and INEDs.
Provide prompt assistance and advice by the company secretary.

Meeting schedule and agenda planning

Schedule meeting dates and provisional agenda one year in
advance, in line with the annual corporate planning and reporting
cycle, particularly for items requiring Board approval.

Coordinate the Board and committee meetings to pursue the
strategic goals altogether and reflect on the forward meeting plans.
Reallocate the Board’'s time between strategy, operational
performance and governance and compliance matters according
to the Board priorities changing over time.

Include outward and forward looking agenda items for the Board
to chart the course ahead, encourage interactions and insights.

Board paper preparation

Search for broad-based information that is most relevant and
valuable to the current decision or action that need to be taken
by the Board.

Being concise and focused on priorities, objective and analytical
on facts.

Set out relevant considerations and implications in the meeting
papers that the Board should be aware of.

Make it clear on what action or input is needed from the Board.

Distribute Board papers early enough for directors to consider
the matters thoroughly before the meetings.

Provide access to the current and the past Board papers and
minutes record via Board meeting apps.

Annual Report 2020
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Information updates between Board meetings
* Monthly updates include:
- Consolidated financial summary against budget
- Media reports about the economic trends, peers, industry,
consumer behaviour, etc.
- Corporate bulletin about our key events, milestones
or achievements
- A brief of matters arising from the monthly Executive
Committee meeting
e Quarterly updates on the operational performance with
management analysis.
* Half-yearly review of progress on the implementation of the
strategic plans.
e Knowledge about the future of our business and market,
emerging strategic, risk and governance issues, more details on
p.108 about the “continuing professional developments”.

Compliance and accountability

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and for
developing, reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to directors and employees.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company's corporate governance practices are discussed in
this “Corporate Governance Report”. During the year ended 31
March 2020, the Company was in full compliance with all
applicable principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

Model Code and relevant employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the securities
transactions by all the directors and those employees who are
likely to come across inside information because of their duties.
Having made specific enquiry of all our directors and relevant
employees, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct during FY2020.

Governance
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Inside information disclosure

The Company has established its policy for inside information
disclosures as well as its internal controls on the reporting and
monitoring systems.

Formal escalation path of material information

e Material matters concerning the business, finance and
operations are escalated to the Executive Committee in a timely
manner for them to judge whether inside information exists and
an announcement is required.

e Investor Relations and Corporate Communications Department
assists the Board to monitor market signals, including investors’
feedback, share price movements, media and analyst reports,
etc. to see whether a material gap exists between the market
expectation and the Company's real situation.

Controls on the sources of information and the

communication channels

e Information used for investor meetings and conferences should be
consistent with published corporate announcements and reports.

e Only designated executive directors, the investor relations and
corporate communications team and authorised personnels are
authorised to speak to or hold meetings with investors or media
on behalf of the Company.

e Code of practices for investor communications:

- Set out a quiet period to refrain from investor relations
activities before results announcement

- Prepare scripts and Q&As to manage the information
released to the public

- Obtain approval from the Board on the results presentation materials

- Keep meeting or conference attendance notes and call logs
for future reference

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Please see the

section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on p.156-164.
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Risk management and internal control

Risk is defined as a potential action, event or circumstance that
could impact the Company'’s ability, favourably or unfavourably, to
meet its strategic goals. The Group adopts a holistic risk
management and internal control framework to proactively manage
risks, in line with the commitment to deliver sustainable value. The
Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of our risk management and internal control systems.
Further details are included under the section headed “Risk
Management Report” on p.124-140 in this annual report.

Independence of external auditor

The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
external auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process. The external auditor may provide certain non-
audit services to the Group given that these do not involve any
management or decision making functions for and on behalf of the
Group; do not perform any self-assessments; and do not act in an
advocacy role for the Group and all approved non-audit services
shall be approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration of external auditor

During FY2020, the total fee paid/payable in relation to audit and
related services provided to the Group amounted to HK$10.1
million, of which a sum of HK$6.2 million was paid/payable to our
principal auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and the remaining was
mainly paid/payable to other auditors performing audit work for the
Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which were subject to
local statutory requirements. The remuneration paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for services
rendered is listed as follows:

[ PR RO o ER ER 4%

EBREE AL ARTERARKERNENESE
BHNHTFZENEETE  EHHBER - AEER
RE2NERERMAMREZEER  WEREERE
ERTRAFEEEN AR -BERZEGERAILE
MBI E R EEMAFIE R RO - #— T 5
BHRAFHREI124E140E [ERERHRE | —F0 -

IMERIZENEM Y B I

EREZEGCER B EMIMNEREM N REIRZF LD
B BEIEMAB RN - SMEDE A AT A K E R
HETHEZRS  REARZERB L RAEEK
REAEENEMNERIORKBAE : TETEMER
Al B THASEREEEENAE  MAERLE
HSEEZIRGEMERZE L -

SMER X BB BN &

AEER 2020 MR FERE R LABRBEN,
NEREERI0IBEEL  HPEN /BN EXER
HENESRCEGFTENEB M6 2ARE T SR AIE
ERARA P EAE QR R TERFETHE
BRIVFEN/ M - SAERERBETE
ERKBETMEBAREBBARNOMSHINMT -

FY2019

Types of services HK$’000
REER TEx
Audit and related services'” Bz RAEERBD 4,964
Non-audit services®? FEZRTE 1,702
6,666

(1) Audit related services comprise review services on interim results, continuing connected
transactions and preliminary announcement and tax compliance service.

(2)  Non-audit services comprise primarily services on due diligence of subsidiaries acquisition, and IT
related services to the Group. None of these services provided compromise the independence as
auditor, in terms of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, and were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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Evaluation

Area of focus

Purpose and approach

W

Information source

TR Beyf s EEIRIR
Board process ° Get the right information for the Board, and make the best use of its time ° Survey
EEQRF REZGWEAEAN  WTEAERRE HESHIES

Obtain feedbacks for the company secretary to improve on the information
support, meeting agenda setting and time allocation
ARATWEENLCEER URNSEAMIE 2R3 EXERKESE
Comprehensive review to be carried out when there are major changes in
strategy and risk landscape, or Board composition

ERBEAEARMKR HEFGEMRERRALHRETEEBR

Ongoing review based on observation and feedback for the last meeting
ERE—RGEOBRMEEE RFERS

Board structure

Appropriate allocation of responsibilities between the Board and various board e

Benchmarking

EEgLE committees to oversee all critical areas of governance $HZ R
EEFENEEFLZEQ RRENORERE  UEEMBEERNE EHE
* Welldefined delegation and reporting obligation between the Board and the management
PRATESGUHERE MNRERRSEEE
* Annual review by the Nomination Committee
HiRRZEgFFER
Board composition e Appropriate board mix of competency and diversity of perspectives in order to ¢ Survey
EEGMHEK achieve the Company's long term goal and strategy BESHES
EEGAREMENNML TERARK - LEKAEELN KB EMKE ¢ Benchmarking
e Annual review by the Nomination Committee HIZH 3R

miREZEEEF iR

Director performance

Performance of executive directors in the achievement of strategic goals, o

Benchmarking

BEERR performance targets and financial returns HHIZ TR
BITEFEERKRET ARABENABORHKR
e INEDs time commitment, contribution and independence
B IEMITESNRERA - ERAB I
* Annual review by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
HEHMEZEE@MIEREE @8R
Director development ¢ Continuously refresh the knowledge and vision of directors to make sure that ¢ Survey
EEER they stay ahead in the changing environment and challenges in the market BESHIES

SEEMEFNANBNRE  BRETEHEZNRBNMSHRE R PP EL
Review the knowledge needs of directors and design appropriate training programmes
WA ESHNART ZMETEENFIEE
Annual review by the Nomination Committee

miTRZEeGFial

Board leadership and
strategies
EFamBEERIN
KW

Private session held at least once a year between INEDs and chairman of o
the Board

BURTESTHEEGTREFHRI BT —AHMEE

Open agenda discussion on matters of concern of the Group
HASEE TS HETFRFZEENN R

May cover a wide range of topics, such as the Group's strategies, leadership

of the Board, performance of the management, etc.

REEZOEE  GINAEENRE EFNEEE)  ERENKES

INEDs' feedback
B IERITEENEE
ER
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Adequacy of information support and allocation of the
Board’s time

Feedbacks

In FY2018, INEDs revealed in a survey that they expected more
information on the Group's strategies and execution, as well as
more of the Board's time be spent on forward looking and steering
of strategic directions.

Major improvements

In FY2019, the Executive Committee reformed its governance
structure, set up sub-meetings to specifically oversee and
coordinate between major business segments in respect of their
strategies and execution, and began to provide monthly and half-
yearly reports to the Board. More details are shown on p.110-112
about “leadership and enablement”.

From FY2019 onward, the Board, the Remuneration Committee
and the Audit Committee have devoted more time on the
discussion of medium to long term strategic goal and plans,
progress of the intellectual capital strategies and finance
transformation, respectively. More details are shown on p.99-102
about the “main tasks of the Board of Director’'s and board
committees”.

Adequacy of competence, experience and diversity in the Board
Feedbacks

In FY2018, revealed in a benchmarking exercise presented to the
Nomination Committee, against the best practices recommended
by governance professionals as well as the priorities of regulators
and investors, that certain key concerns related to the composition
of the Board should be addressed.

e Age and gender diversity
e Enhanced roles of INEDs
e Board refreshment

* Management succession

Governance
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Major improvements

In FY2019, the Nomination Committee carried out a rigorous
review on its work approach so as to run an effective process for
linking corporate strategies to the future changes and development
of Board. More details are shown on p.105 about “Board nomination”.

In FY2019, the Nomination Committee re-crafted its agenda to lead
through the nomination, as well as the preparations for the
appointment and induction of Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily and Ms.
Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia who came onboard in FY2020. More details are
shown on p.100 about the “main tasks of the Nomination
Committee”.

In FY2019, the Nomination Committee conducted a survey among
the Board and management leaders to understand their aspirations
on attributes of the future Board leaders, which provided guidance
for management succession planning.

Interactive engagement

* We adhere to the principle of providing timely, transparent and
effective disclosures with the aim of keeping the market
regularly informed of the Group’s performance and prospects.

¢ Investors often give us constructive ideas that inspire us to
improve and create more values for shareholders. While we try
to understand investors’ perspective, we also share with them
a full picture of our business through the eyes of the
management, including our thoughts in making decisions, our
views on market outlook and our development strategies, etc.
Our Investor Relations team is committed to maintaining an
open and constructive dialogue with them.

e To promote the Group's reputation and branding, our Corporate
Communications team helps convey corporate messages
efficiently to a wide range of stakeholders including investors
and media.

¢ In FY2020, the Group received various accolades in recognition
of our relentless effort in corporate governance and investor
relations. Please refer to Major Awards and Recognitions on
p.8-13.
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Meetings by investor event in FY2020 Summary of investor relations activities in FY2020

2020 M B F EEH® (R EEFH T H) 2020 MBI EREEFARESHME
26% 40%
One-on-one and group meetings  C-level participation rate'”

e —H-REREE BEEEESER
Conference call
sEaH
— 14 10 9
Face-to-face meeting
EHEEEH
— Non-deal roadshows Investor conferences Cities visited
Investor conference FRBBE RAETHE B

17 REEHTE

’ — (1) Ininvestor conference and non-deal roadshow meetings
u Non-deal roadshow REEER G RIERBHRT O

FRF A

17%

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2020 R2020 0 FE2 MM AR EESE -
are set out below:

Date Event Location
B EIF LUk
June 2019 Deutsche Bank 16" Annual dbAccess Global Consumer Conference Paris
201946 A EEEREEMAE B2
Nomura Hong Kong Corporate Day 2019 Hong Kong
FRREEHRTS o
Huatai Hong Kong Consumer Corporate Day Hong Kong
ERREEMTE o
September 2019 J.P. Morgan Asia Pacific CEO-CFO Conference 2019 London
201949 A ERABIREERNES (CE
Citi China Corporate Day Singapore
EEREEMTE Frhnsg
CLSA 26™ Investors’ Forum Hong Kong
PRREEMIE 96
ICBCI Consumer Corporate Day Hong Kong
THREBREEEFRN S 96
January 2020 Citi China Consumer Corporate Day 2020 Hong Kong
202041 A EEREERA S B/
UBS Greater China Conference 2020 Shanghai
IR EEMRTE labic)
Nomura Hong Kong Corporate Day 2020 Hong Kong
FRREEHRTE B/

1 20 ‘ Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Multiple channels of communication and engagement

Press and analyst
results conferences

AERDITEEGS

e Hold press and analyst conferences
on interim and annual results annually

* Announcements, presentations
and webcasts are available on

Investor meetings, conferences

and non-deal roadshows

RAEE -

e Attended events in Hong Kong,
London, Melbourne, New York,
Paris, San Francisco, Shanghai,
Singapore, Sydney and Tokyo

et SR HEE

SRENBERLH

New corporate video

2HEEER

Themed with

"Heritage ® Innovatione Sharing
it summarised the Group's
edges over our longstanding
history and our future

the Group website in FY2020 commitment
o BEBETPHREFERENTERSTER o F20200 BEE NHE R E R & o P [Eegle HE]| AEE Btk
L= BAE R BRLKN - HAO-BF - EEBESCARY FEFNHRFES
o FHERAE - EWNEREHBREREM =& - B8 g BEERRR J AR R G

Corporate reporting

TERE

* Announcements,
annual and interim
reports, results
presentations
and press releases

e Quarterly voluntary
announcements of
key operational data

o D RERPHEE
SRR

.« BEAGEENEE
T es

Group website
EEHEs

e Updates after results and
quarterly announcements,
and regular updates of
corporate activities

*  Group website revamp
in 2019 with enriched
content and easily
accessible information

o WERNAREERFENERSE
o WEEEMEFIHHEE

o EEEFN20195 TR LA
REFLENANDTRER
k=gl

Active engagement with analysts

AN

e 18 research analysts cover

our Company on a regular basis

o 1BERFFMARNNTBERARAEHERBRSE

Annual general meeting (AGM)
BRERBEXE

Face-to-face communication with shareholders,
about 200 shareholders attended the AGM in 2019
The Board and external auditors presented to answer
the questions raised by shareholders

Detailed explanation for each proposed

resolution in the circular, with high approval rate

on resolutions passed

FHHREIR - #2002 R L F2019F REBEF RS
EEG RINEZEAN L E 25 DAL EAR R IR R
A% B3R u#%llﬁ/ BEND RERESZES

Investor and
media visits

REER AR

* \Visits to our operation
centres, POS and
production facilities

o ZFHRMHBERL
TEHNAEERE

Electronic communication

T

Email alert service

Email to Investor Relations and Corporate
Communications Department: ir@chowtaifook.com;
media@chowtaifook.com

EHAERS

WEEBRRDEEABPINESBE ¢
ir@chowtaifook.com; media@chowtaifook.com
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Shareholder rights and other information

Shareholder(s) are entitled by the Articles and are also encouraged
to participate in the Company's general meetings or appoint
proxies to attend and vote.

Request to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company’s paid-
up capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward proposals. The objectives of the
meeting must be stated in the related requisition signed and
deposited with our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters at 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Nomination of director for election

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must
be stated in a nomination notice signed by such shareholder and
deposited together with a notice of willingness signed by the
candidate to our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters or at our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar (Tricor
Investor Services Ltd., Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong) of the Company. The notice should be
given at least seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Making enquiries
* Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department and the Board at ir@chowtaifook.com.

Dividend policy

e Strikes a balance between making an efficient use of capital to
strengthen our business development and rewarding our
shareholders with a participation in the Company's profits.

¢ No pre-determined dividend payout ratio.

e Factors considered by the Board in determining the amount and
form of dividend:
- the Group's cash flows and financial position
- its earnings capacity and the economic outlook
- its business development plans and capital requirements etc.

e Usually declares dividends twice a year, in the absence of
special circumstances.

Governance
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For the year ended 31 March #3831 HIEEE

Full year dividend payout ratio

82.7%
76.5%/.
L]
ss.oV
1
54.4%

52.3%
o .
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70.0%
60.0%
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20.0%
10.0%

0.0%

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

(1) Special dividend excluded
Constitutional documents

No change during the year.

Market capitalisation

Approximately HK$54.9 billion as at 31 March 2020 (31 March
2019: HK$79.4 billion), based on the total number of
10,000,000,000 issued shares and the closing price of HK$5.49 per share.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors as at 11 June 2020, the
prescribed public float of not less than 10.7% has been maintained,
which is a lower minimum percentage of public float accepted at
the discretion of the Stock Exchange.
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Full year dividend payout ratio
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

JE\ B LR

The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective

risk management and internal control systems which assist them

in understanding the Group's risk profile, allocating resources to
manage key risks and making risk-reward optimised business

decisions for business planning.

Our Risk Management and Internal Control

Governance Framework

EZerNARAUNEREERANSEERRZE
2t ZERGADMABALAEERRMR - D&
BRAER T ERRARE S R R E L L KEN
BRORE - DUETTEBRE -

Jo g A P B A T B 4% A R HE S

Board of Directors

First Line of Defence

BE—ER

Second Line of Defence

BB

Third Line of Defence
E=ENS

\ EEE
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—
Executive Committee ‘ Audit Committee )
HITERT ; BHEET
A h A A 3
&
§ 2
Group Risk Management Committee (“GRMC") § & W
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Risk Ownership:
JE B A

Business and Functional
Units and Individuals
EBRMEEEML RERIALT

Risk Management Monitoring:

R E R EE T
) Executive Office and Finance(

and Governance Centre
TTHEBFEA S B A O

Independent Assurance:
B IRE -

Internal Audit
MEE )

We adopt the “Three Lines of Defence” model to assist the Board of
Directors, Board Committees and management to carry out on-going
oversight and monitoring on the effectiveness of our risk and control

systems. Their distinct roles and responsibilities are set out on next page.

Governance
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Board oversight

Board of Directors

Evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks the
Group is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.

Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control systems.

Executive Committee

Regularly review the risk and control issues escalated
via GRMC.

Suggest the priority of risk management efforts at Group level.

Drive risk-conscious culture and promote control environment of
the Group.

Audit Committee

Oversee the design, implementation and supervision of the risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board.

Management oversight
GRMC

Maintain the risk management and internal control framework
and drive improvement for the processes.

Identify and manage risks at corporate level, review the principal
risks, and oversee the effectiveness of process controls to
manage risks on a quarterly basis.

First Line of Defence — Ownership

Business and functional units and individuals

Identify, assess and control risks in daily operations.

Design, implement and ensure the effectiveness of risk and
control measures within their areas of accountability.

Annual Report 2020
2020 5%
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Second Line of Defence — Monitoring

Executive Office and Finance and Governance Centre
(IIFGCII)

Support GRMC on the risk and control functions through on-
going risk communication and monitoring.

Establish policies, procedures and standards to reinforce risk
management and internal control systems.

Provide guidance and training related to risk management and
control processes and integrity practices.

Refine and monitor the enforcement of critical group policies, for
example, Code of Conduct, Anti-fraud Policy, Anti-Money
Laundering Policy and Crisis Management Manual for the Group.

Third Line of Defence — Assurance

Internal audit

Provide independent and objective assurance on the adequacy
and effectiveness of our risk management and internal control
systems by carrying out the risk-based internal audit.

Communicate audit findings and control deficiencies to
management for their implementation of remedial actions.

Independent assessment

External assurance

External assurance on the Group’s processes and controls over
financial reporting is obtained from the independent auditor.
Their roles and opinion are included in the section
Auditor’'s Report” in this annual report.

“Independent

For operational aspects, we engage independent experts from
respective profession to assure standards such as environmental
compliance, quality management of manufacturing activities,
product quality and safety.

Governance

E/D

E_EpR - BE
THERFIBA T EiG Bl

FRETHERRBBRER  XHE ba g 72
ZEGETRAR KRB

IR G R R B R - 2R
g -

EHEEREIER  BEERFRBETRBEENES
l:lﬁll °
WENEFRAREEBERNOANTER  fINAEE

MERTA - REREE  RARERR R REE
Ff -

FE=EBSR — &RE

PR e 1%

PUETTRB M AEROAITEZ  HRMORR
ERRANREEZSZ AR AR EREBLNE
BURTE -
REZERREETECEEE
TTRIRUE e -

BERBR  UEH

B HF 4%
IMEREESE

AN E5 [B Bt H B R R4 60 AR RN BE R ) B L A B AT 0
HROMNEREERE © B AX BUAD BV B RE AN B R BI AR F
BB RE ] &5 -

&E

HREETH RMUSEZERAAEXRENELE
R UREBETHENRE  NRFAHR LEEH
MEXRERE mENRTE-

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXEHREEEER AR



Whistleblowing system

* This system provides a confidential channel to encourage
employees to stay alert to and escalate any potential fraud
issues, aiming to detect and rectify control weaknesses at the
earliest stage.

e This system is managed by a team of whistleblowing officers
on the Group level. The whistleblowing officers are directly
accountable to the Audit Committee. Their responsibilities
include case management, investigation on fraud, reporting
their investigation findings to the management and review the
effectiveness of remedial actions.

e Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour, and the
measures undertaken by the management would be reported to
the Audit Committee for assessment.

GRMC is responsible for leading the risk management process in an
integrated approach in accordance with the Enterprise Risk
Management Policy Manual. GRMC is a management committee
comprises the Managing Director, four executive directors and
senior executives from major business and functional units, covering
legal, human capital, investor relations and information technology.
Our risk management process involves the following steps:

e |dentification — adopts both top-down and bottom-up approach.

* Analysis — assesses the potential consequences and likelihood
of the risks.

e Evaluation — evaluates the risk level, risk treatment and priorities.

* Mitigation — recognises the control gaps, assigns risk ownership
and confirms risk control measures.

* Monitoring — conducts evaluations on the design and progress
of implementation of the risk control measures.

e Reporting — facilitates risk communications, reviews the residual
risk level after control measures and assesses areas for
continuous improvement.

Annual Report 2020
2020 5%
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GRMC adopts both top-down and bottom-up approach to facilitate

risk identification as it is of paramount importance to understand

the risk universe that the Group is facing before we can effectively

manage them.

Top-down approach

Members of GRMC and representatives from Executive Office
and FGC discuss the risk issues they consider important.

GRMC has various channels for risk identification, for example,
the principal and emerging risks from macro environment and
strategic objectives escalated by corporate functional units,
potential control weaknesses indicated through investigation,
whistleblowing system, internal and external audit and concerns
of our stakeholders on social, environmental and governance
issues come through by our Sustainability Committee.

Upon approval, the risk management strategy is cascaded to
relevant business and functional units to design, implement and
monitor the risk control measures.

Bottom-up approach

Heads of business and functional units are required to submit
their risk registers for material risks identified along with their
existing control measures at least annually through risk
management training cum brainstorming workshops.

FGC consolidates and validates the risk registers and Executive
Office assists the respective senior management to endorse
the risk level and priority.

GRMC reviews the Group's consolidated risk register and determines
the level of attention from GRMC and the Executive Committee.

Governance
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The structure of our internal control system is based on the
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSQ") integrated framework for effective internal
controls, which comprises 17 principles under five components,
namely, Control Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities,
Information and Communication and Monitoring Activities.

Our internal control system is integrated into our business
processes with the support of information system and technology.
Control objectives, authorities and responsibilities, backed by
established policies and procedures, and the performance of
control activities are maintained in the system.

Our review of internal controls is closely linked with our risk
management framework and process. Principal risks and risk
management strategy of the Group are communicated to heads of
business and functional units and internal audit team. This aims at
helping them to allocate their resources and control monitoring
efforts. Controls of high risk areas are continually evaluated by
management while internal audit team would consider the need of
adjustments on its audit plan on the testing of key controls for
significant risks of the Group.

On an annual basis, members of GRMC, senior management of all
major business and functional units are required to assess the
effective implementation of internal controls through self-
assessment questionnaire, covering the effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls as well as confirmation on legal
compliance for which they are held accountable. Through this
exercise, they also undertake to fully support various Group
programmes which promote effective internal control practices,
including internal control review, internal audit, case investigation
and whistleblowing system.

Annual Report 2020
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The Internal Audit Department plays a crucial role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Group. The Internal Audit Department
functionally reports directly to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Managing Director. The Internal Audit
Department has unfettered access to all necessary information,
people, records and outsourced operations across the Group
aiming to provide an independent assurance service to the Board,
Audit Committee and management, focusing on reviewing the
effectiveness of the governance, risk management and control
processes that management has put into place.

A risk-based approach has been adopted by the Internal Audit
Department. Annual audit plan is formalised based on the result of
the risk assessment covering business risk evaluation. The risk
assessment methodology assists us in prioritising business risks
and determining audit frequencies, which enables the internal audit
review to become more efficient and focused on the business
needs, ensuring that key concerns and significant risks are
considered within the scope of the audit. Such annual audit plan is
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee at the beginning
of each financial year.

All findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
are communicated with respective management for process
improvement, in order to ensure that satisfactory control is
maintained. Significant audit findings and control deficiencies are
reported to the Audit Committee and all rectification plans will be
properly followed up by management to ensure that they are
remediated as intended within a reasonable period.

To further strengthen the flexibility and independence of internal
audit function, the Group has engaged an independent consulting
firm to assist the Internal Audit Department to provide professional
internal audit service to the Group.

Governance
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Effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the adequacy
and continued effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems through the reports prepared by GRMC,
internal audit team and external auditors and communicates with
them at least three times a year.

The review covers risk management functions and all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
Key elements of review include:

e Principal risks identified by GRMC, internal audit and external audit.

e Changes in the nature and extent of principal risks since last
annual review and the ability of the Group to respond to the
changes in its business and the external environment.

* The scope and quality of the management’s on-going monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems.

e The extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Audit Committee which enables it to assess
control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk management.

e Significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified during the year.

e The progress of remedial measures implemented by management.
* The effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function.

e Assurance provided by internal audit on the effectiveness of the
Group's processes for financial reporting and compliance with
prevailing regulations.

e Significant issues arising from whistleblowing system, internal
and external audit.

e The results of management'’s control self-assessment.

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, confirmed that there was no significant issue that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group for
FY2020.

Our risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss as sustainable
growth and profits are, in part, the reward for informed and
successful risk taking in business.
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Principal Risks and Control Measures

Business and market development risks

1 2 B B 5 47 i it
E R0 535 R Ak

Disruptive innovation and fast changing consumer behaviour

The rise of middle class, millennials and digitally savvy customers

continuously drives the demand for personalised and innovative

products and services beyond the conventional shopping
experience. If we fail to engage with these modern customers, our
competitiveness and sustainable development may at risk in the

digital era.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Introducing innovative retail concepts to encourage more e
customer engagement and interaction, including omni-channel
retailing, experience shops, pop-up stores, social shopping, cloud
kiosks, self-service experience corners, jewellery customisation
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online platform D-ONE and mobile shopping platform.

e Adopting a multi-brand strategy to enrich our product offerings e

and differentiation.

e Using our patented Smart Trays to identify and track customers’ e
preference and behaviour in order to offer our customers a data-
driven and unique shopping experience.

e |everaging the power of social media, livestreaming and online e
shopping platforms to meet the needs of tech-savvy customers.
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For more analysis, see Managing
Director's Strategic Report

* Retail Experience

e Customisation

e Brands and Products

* Insights
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Intensity of market competition

A challenging macroeconomic environment coupled with the
dampened consumer sentiment intensifies the competitive rivalry. If
we fail to navigate the situations well and fortify our competitive
advantage, it may adversely affect our market share and hence
hamper our sales and growth.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Building a global jewellery ecosystem which can service the
needs and demands of modern-day customers including our
franchisees, business partners, wholesalers and our peers,
offering them comprehensive omni-channel solutions such as
products, services and know-how.

e Expanding our business footprint to Asian market to reap benefits
from the fast-growing Chinese outbound tourism market.

e Deepening our market penetration in Mainland China and Asian
market through franchise model in lower tier and county level
cities and partnership with local jewellery retailers.
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Operational risks

E b

Cybersecurity and data privacy

We pursue emerging technologies to develop our products and
services and improve our operational efficiency and capability for
sustainable business development, but the adoption of technologies
also exposes us to new digital vulnerabilities. Key threats include
interruption or security breach to our information system; leakage of
customers’ personal data resulting from destructive malware and
ransomware attack; and failure of technological service vendors to
provide ongoing security updates. If we fail to address the threats
presented by the influx of technology, it may have a material
adverse effect on our reputation, operations and financial condition.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Developing and rolling out the cyber incident response plan,
which guides us to address and manage the aftermath of a
security breach or cyberattack in a planned and coordinated approach.

e Conducting regular cyberattack drills, rehearsal and system
penetration tests to help our staff to be prepared and practised in
responding to cyber incidents.

¢ Rolling out remediation initiatives and execution plans to enhance
our security posture based on the result of the maturity
assessment on our cybersecurity programme, such as policy and
procedure development.

e Offering tailored cybersecurity and data privacy trainings for (i)
senior management to strengthen their ability to manage cyber
incidents; and (ii) general staff to reduce the occurrence of
security or data breaches resulting from employee negligence.

e Performing reviews on the processes and management
mechanism for the collection and storage of customer data in
order to drive an optimal balance between our business needs
and customer privacy concern.
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Organisational agility MAEREEEN
We are struggling with our innovative strategies and projects as a  ZERNIMNEBREHRBEEMHES - RAZ HHETAH
result of disruptive changes in the external environment. If our  SEEFIIEE AR FINEELBNERGERZ

organisational structure and management system lack agility and

BRI BREEFIRE S SEREME

dynamism to engage with the new environment, which will hinder  BEIFHI £tk - FERIERFICBHISEELLRE o

the pace of our business innovation and our responsiveness to
market opportunities.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Establishing Sustainability and Innovation Centre as a strategic
investment to drive those innovation initiatives and oversee all
investments related to business innovation.

* Promoting the innovative and entrepreneurial culture within the
Group, which helps to unleash our staff’s creativity and talents
and promote collaboration among cross-functional teams towards
business priorities and the Group’s transformation.

e Driving transformational efforts to incorporate disruptive
technologies and approaches into our management system and
business processes in order to optimise the organisational agility
and operational effectiveness and efficiency.

I R EMELRR AT

BUAHBEERIAFPOERARBIERE - A
BRI TIEAREE HEBAI A RN ARE -

RNEBRBEEFMAIEX L  SEETIRSH
BRIBANT 8 - EEBE R EEER S EIERE
SEPPIRRE B 2 A1 -

HAOEHPELERET/RMANEERHRERE
B2 E ABEMEORMAITE - BEEBR
BRI IA N & B MR -

Risk Trend & b5 54 For more analysis, see Managing DI BN E B BB ERE RS
Director's Strategic Report
e Culture ° Xit
* Intellectual Capital o BHER
e Streamlining of business process o MRRIEISIERF

Annual Report 2020
2020 5%

Risk Management Report
[E\ b E RS

‘135



Franchisees and retail partners management MEERTERHER

We deepen our market expansion in Mainland China and Asian market ~ HFfEEBMBERXUREEHHKETEFG/EE - N
through franchise model in lower tier and county level cities and A /0 B 7 30 2 /% 4% 38 71 A0 8% 4% 30 8B K2 25 0 T35 19
partnership with local jewellery retailers. This operating model may risk  #HEHE - WMERPEEZEENMBEELEEZHY
our profitability and brand equity if we fail to manage the performance KB REMPINEER BRI TERMANEF

of and relationship with those franchisees and retail partners. BENMBIEEBEBKER -
We control and mitigate the risks by: R REMELRROFENT ¢

° Appointing dedicated teams to nurture relationship with o ZEEEEBEEEMBELTEBFEEL T

franchisees and retail partners through continuous dialogues, HEERBE  CMENRMEBMANESER
which enables us to oversee their operations and provides them g A PR AR ) B R R FE S o

with swift operational support and guidance.
e Establishing clear policy and mechanism for the selection and o gtHkiZ FIaTAE BB Rg R T & B AL ET ST B M EE
assessment of franchisees and retail partners. e o

GRS (DI

e Reinforcing our monitoring on franchisees through o F|A&RFfKEEILNBEZTE
ERe

whistleblowing system and special audit programme in HMBEENEE Y
franchised POS.
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Supply chain management

The ways that we source our raw materials and produce our
products sway purchasing decisions as consumers, millennials in
particular, are now demanding for products that are made in socially,
ethically and environmentally conscience ways. If we fail to manage
our supply chain in a responsible and ethical way, it may adversely
affect our reputation and our sales and growth.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Maintaining rigorous controls on supplier management in
accordance to the Supplier Management Framework, which
covers the policies and procedures for our procurement,
tendering, assessment and selection processes for suppliers.

e Establishing the Supplier Management Committee and the
Supplier Management Department to govern the effectiveness
of our controls over the procurement process.

e Complying with the requirements of the Kimberley Process to
assure customers that our diamonds are “conflict-free” -
meaning that no violence has been involved in our diamond
production process, such as war crime, child and forced labour.

¢ Introducing T MARK diamond brand to meet the growing needs
for supply chain transparency and assure customers that our
diamonds are natural and authentic.
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Regulatory risks

Anti-Money Laundering (“AML") regulations

Precious metals and stones, particularly gold and diamond, are
perceived to be exposed to higher risk of money laundering due to
their high intrinsic value, low weight and ease of carrying. Many
regions are imposing stringent regulatory requirements on AML
measures regarding customer due diligence, record keeping and
suspicious transaction reporting. Non-compliance with the regulatory
requirements increases the risk of which we could unintentionally
facilitate money laundering activities and may constitute an offence,
resulting in substantial financial loss and damage to our reputation.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Teaming with external consultant to identify potential money
laundering exposure, review the effectiveness of our AML
measures and enhance our AML governance framework.

* Appointing money laundering reporting officers (“"MLROs") to
oversee the implementation of internal AML policies, procedures
and controls.

e Offering (i) ongoing trainings for general staff to establish and
maintain their vigilance in AML matters; and (ii) regular refresher
trainings to MLROs to keep them abreast of AML regulatory
requirements or developments.
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By their nature, most of the crises are unpredictable, but we
believe it is possible to determine activities and areas that may be
particularly prone to crises. We believe advance planning for these
areas is key to ensure our resilience against crises, reduce the
impact of adverse events, aid recovery and support business
continuity. Set out below are our pre-crisis measures that help us
maintain an appropriate level of preparedness to respond to crises:

Crisis Management Team

We have assembled a Crisis Management Team with set roles for
every members to ensure swift and coordinated response to
crises. Our core team is typically led by executive directors and
staffed with senior executives from executive office, legal, investor
relations, and human capital. Other personnel from varying
disciplines and regions would be identified and staffed on an as-
needed basis. This flexibility facilitates us to have an all-round
vulnerability assessment and respond effectively and appropriately
to incidents of any nature. Principal functions of the team include
identifying the areas of concern, assessing the impact of the
identified concerns and devising strategies and response plans to
overcome crises. The composition, roles and responsibilities of the
team will be reviewed and revised as necessary in order to assure
its efficiency and effectiveness.

Crisis Management Manual

The Crisis Management Manual enables us to identify,
communicate, escalate and address crises in the timeliest manner.
The Manual sets out the definition of a crisis and trigger events,
categorisation of crises, the activation guideline, the composition
and roles of the Crisis Management Team and the crisis
communication and reporting protocol. In view of the complexity of
crises caused by the evolving business environment, we will
perform regular review on the manual to ensure our manual is up-
to-date. Any revisions to the manual will be tabled to GRMC
meeting for discussion and review. The manual will be
disseminated to relevant staff on a scheduled basis, especially
after any changes in team personnel and major revisions to plans.
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Crisis management and simulation trainings

Our training is categorised into discussion-based crisis
management training and operation-based crisis simulation training.
The introductory crisis management training provides our staff an
initial introduction of crisis management and our crisis
management infrastructure and resources and also help to keep
them abreast of the risks that lead to a crisis, aiming to increase
their capability in recognising crisis warning signs and designing
preventive measures in the pre-crisis phase. While the crisis
simulation training allows the Crisis Management Team members
to rehearse their assigned duties and responsibilities during a crisis
scenario, aiming to validate the crisis management plan and the
capability of our Crisis Management Team. For example, we
partnered with external consultant this year to conduct a
cybersecurity drill exercise for the incident response team to
practice making decision and performing their pre-assigned tasks
during a simulated cyber breach event.

Tailored response plan and playbooks

In addition to the Crisis Management Manual, which provides an
overall direction and guideline to coordinate crisis response, we
also put in place tailored response plans and playbooks, which
document a step-by-step instruction in responding to specific crisis.
For example, in view of the frequency and severity of recent cyber
incidents, we partnered with external professionals to develop and
roll out the cybersecurity incident response plan and playbooks to
address particular cyber incidents such as cyber breach and
distributed denial of service.

Governance

RN
‘BA

fEHEE R R

BMOEID AME - Bl wm el e EiE I
BERPANBREREZI - EXGREREINISHRE
TRHUEEREEGNAREREEERRERLER
TEELESHsERgmRER - BRI
R HE R RN e B A B I E TR D 1R MY A2
RE#EREIARERSRETRERZBEKRERE
BER TRRERRNWBBMET B AARK
BRI MBARME IR E RN - a0
BMAFEEIBEERAEETERREREE B8
EHEBRERERERSHTETNMAR LA
[EITIASE IRV ET

=

5E il e ET BT E B F
BPMRRACBREEFT MR GASKREBENEE)
FH IS5  TRER T YA B R EEHTM - EP 7
AEASFEEERNEESE - i EXNEH8KE
MEBAEMEE - RABMINEER AL EME
HEE L2 ERETEAMEETFTM - KEERBEIRR R
7 EUHET RIS E SRS E WM ER -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXEHREEEER AR



The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of
high-end luxury, mass luxury and youth line jewellery products,
including gem-set jewellery, gold products and platinum/karat gold
products, and distribution of various watch brands. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s revenue is derived from business activities conducted
in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. The
segment information of the Group’s operation is set out in note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for FY2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on p.165.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.12 per share for FY2020, amounting to approximately
HK$1,200 million (FY2019: a final dividend of HK$0.20 per share
and a special dividend of HK$0.30 per share, amounting to
approximately HK$5,000 million). Such payment of dividend will be
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 30 July
2020 and is payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Thursday, 6 August 2020. Together with the interim dividend of
HK$0.12 per share paid in December 2019, the total distribution of
dividend by the Company for FY2020 will be HK$0.24 per share
(FY2019: HK$0.65 per share). The payment date of the final
dividend is expected to be on or about 21 August 2020.
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A review of the Group’s business and operations for the year as
well as a discussion on the likely future developments are provided
throughout this annual report, particularly in the following sections:

e "“Chairman’s Statement”, p.14-16

e "“Managing Director's Strategic Report”, p.18-40
* "“Management Discussion and Analysis”, p.42-76

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties:
e "Risk Management Report”, p.124-140

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations:

e "Corporate Governance Report”, p.97-123
e “Independent Auditor's Report”, p.156-164
e "Sustainability Report”, on our Group website

Environmental policies and performance and key relationships with
its stakeholders:

e “Sustainability Report”, on our Group website

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on p.263.

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. There was no movement in the
share capital during the year.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$5,503 million (31 March 2019: HK$5,556 million).

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on p.168.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Non-executive Director
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry, Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong, Mr.
Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor and Mr.
Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or parent companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company or the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with
connected persons with expected annual transaction amounts
exceeding the “de minimis” exemption threshold and therefore
the Company reports these non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during FY2020 under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
These transactions are mainly related to lease of premises and sale
and purchase of goods and services. Information about the
connected persons is shown on p.147. Details of these
transactions are set out in the tables below.

Lease of premises

CTFE
BAXEEE

Name of counterparties

RoHHEE

IR R Gy LHE R A3 B RE i
BAFRAEEESN  AAANHBEAT - AEHE
ARG R TNERRFRE AR - A WTHER
%$§@%%ﬁéﬁikﬂ$“ﬂ§%ﬁ§$mﬁ
ATREFREEEARS (THEZRME) HX
ZHRAH -

5 41 Bl 3 52 %)
AEEERMEATETETHERS FHFER
FLEBBREREAT  WARARE LTRAE
144 % 5 2020 B B M 25 SERA R4 BB E
P RERFETEMNYE AR RHERBE
B - AHEEATHERBRE147E - %
FHFABEHRIRN TR -

\\' 50 ><>P

=
7 &=
A ST

MEHE
NWD NWDS
MR HitREE

Main purposes of the leases Standalone retail shops,

industrial and office uses

Offices and standalone
retail shops in Hong Kong

Concessionaire counters
operated in department

in Hong Kong stores in Mainland China
HEXERE REANBITEE - REBHRAEZERBUTEE RPEAMAELRRXEE
IEERPBAERE
Master/framework agreement date 28/11/2011 11/4/2014 and 28/4/2020"  22/3/2012
we/ERBFEBH
Next renewal date 31/3/2023 30/6/2023 30/6/2023
TREEBH
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2020 (HK$ million)
2020 M ENEHAFE FREEREASE (AR BT
Annual cap 122 134 154
FE LR
Amount incurred 71 93 57
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$ million)
HieMBEENEEEE FR(BEET)
FY2021 370 146 101
FY2022 70 174 104
FY2023 70 203 107

(1) The master agreement dated 28 April 2020 will become effective on 1 July 2020 whereupon the

(1) BAHAR20209F4 A28 B H#AKR2020%7 A1 RER  lbig - BH

master agreement dated 11 April 2014 will be terminated.
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Sale and purchase of goods and services

Name of counterparties

ROHHEE

NCE

Major types of goods and services

B kRGN EEELSE

Master/framework agreement date
me/ERBEAH

Next renewal date

TREEBE

Polishing, processing and handling of gemstones
for the Group, and provision of related technology,
related assets and other ancillary services,
products and devices

RAESEBRWMN - NI REE - REBEEM -
HEEEMEMEERY  EmkIA

29/1/2016

31/3/2021

Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2020 (HK$ million)
2020 MR ERIEHEFE FR R EREASE(BEET)

Annual cap

FE LR

Amount incurred

BIREL T

236

86

Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$ million)
HieMBEENeEsEE FR(B&EET)
FY2021

245

These transactions are governed by respective master or
framework agreements which have an initial term of not more than
3 years and, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, will be
renewed automatically for another 3 years upon expiry. The initial
agreement date and the next renewal date of these master or
framework agreements are set out in the tables above.
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The Group's pricing policy and internal control on
continuing connected transactions

The Company has entered into master agreements or
framework agreements to set out the principles governing the
above continuing connected transactions. The Group maintains
a pricing policy which serves as a guidance for the negotiation
with counterparties regarding the respective definitive
agreements under the continuing connected transaction
arrangements of the Group.

(a) For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time
of entering into the respective tenancy agreements will be
followed. The Group will obtain comparison from relevant
market information from the market or independent valuers
and with rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by
the Group.

(b) For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as
the case maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group
offers or is willing to offer to independent customers around
the time of transaction will apply.

(c) For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing
market prices around the time of transaction will apply. The
Group will obtain quotations or tenders from independent third
parties for goods, services or assets with similarities to
compare with the prices and terms offered in the market. If
there is no sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will
make reference to the reasonable costs for developing or
providing such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable
profit margin that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a
regular basis to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either
equivalent to or better than the prevailing market prices.
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Relationships between counterparties

Other than NCE, the other counterparties to the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above are connected persons
of the Company mainly due to direct or indirect shareholding held
by the Company’s substantial shareholder, CTF Capital, in these
counterparties. Shareholding relationships among the Company,
CTFE, NWD and NWDS are illustrated in the simplified chart below:

HRXSEHFHEA R

BNCE 25 Biltd5 B RIE R B E M 5% 7 HEAK
ARAMBEEAL TERHNAQFETERRCTF
Capital EE A MEHEREHF ok - ARF] - A
RIEEZE - it REREHE R OGO REBEY
AR TEEE :

CTF Capital™

CTF Holding®
JE R M A5 I

89.3% ‘ ‘ 100%
R R
The Company CTFE®
NN BRBLEZES
N N
44.35%
NWDMD )
it RERE
74.99%
M
NWDS®
FHEREES
N

Notes:

(1) Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited

2)  Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

) Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

) New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)

) New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)

) The approximate percentages of shareholding are shown for reference only to illustrate the
relationships between the connected parties. The information shown in the chart above is sourced
from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock Exchange website as at 11 June 2020.

(
(
(
(
(

ST EB

New Cutting Edge Limited (“NCE") and its subsidiaries are
majority-controlled companies indirectly held by Mr. Cheng Kam-
Chiu, Stewart, who is a family member and therefore an associate
of certain directors of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As such, NCE and its subsidiaries are connected
persons of the Company.
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Annual review of the continuing connected transactions
At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a
summary of the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the review of the
Executive Committee to ensure that those transactions are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant
agreements on terms which are fair and reasonable. Our internal
audit team will further select samples from those transactions and
compare them with similar types of transactions entered into by
the Group with independent third parties during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the Company's auditor to perform certain review
procedures in order to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the
Executive Committee, the internal audit team and the auditor of
the Company were reported to the independent non-executive
directors in the Audit Committee meeting. After review by the
Audit Committee, the independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group's non-
exempt continuing connected transactions. The directors confirm
that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as
they are applicable.
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The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in note 39 to the financial statements
include transactions that constitute connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group's revenue was
attributed to the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 53.2%
of the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's five
largest suppliers and 39.1% of the Group’s total purchases were
attributed to the Group's largest supplier. To the best of the
directors’ knowledge, none of the directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholder
who to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2020
held any interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers
of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in the Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures of the Company
As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

i JER A 2 al 19 B A B B B
et i %8 1 RE i

20203 A31 A - ARAEEREBTHABRA
AR KA AEEOAE (T4 225 RN HHIEXY
) MR - EMRG RERET - EEREE SR
EEPIEXVEHET RESH PR AR AR KRB XA
BB ROR A+ SRR PR IR 5 B B 5 4 91 25 352
BREATEEMBRMANESRKA - RIBE -
738 1B 6 110 B B0 ) A 7 RIS 8 AR 28 ) TR 52 B
By RSB I ¢

Long position in shares RRBHEE

Number of shares Approximate
Egﬁg(a % of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total AR
BARER BB EERER &5t ERN

The Company (ordinary shares &2 8 (SREE

of HK$1 each) 1BTHEBER)

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERESE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian ERAE M E + 20,000 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton HIRER S A 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong fRit 2 & 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter ARt 3,600 3,600 0.0%
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PR BE A So 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BixmkE 12,000 12,000 0.0%

(1) These shares are beneficially owned by a company, which in turn is wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng

Chi-Kong, Adrian
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As at 31 March 2020, the following persons (not being directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO:

Long position in shares

Name

=1

K 202043 A31 8 - REFE KR GG 336 1578
FENECMATEAUAT AL (EFARAREERE
BITRAR) I A2 BB KRR () #9520k
BT

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

AAXE () BBR2AR 8,933,937,400

RRBHEE
Number of shares Approximate
Eﬁﬂ B % of
Beneficial Corporate shareholding
interests interests Total b NE=T
BRER EEER &t BO
8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%
8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%
8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%
8,933,937,400 89.3%

Note:

As at 31 March 2020, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I1)
Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively,
which in turn held an approximately 81.0% interest in Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and accordingly
each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited and
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company held by
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited. Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited held 8,933,937,400 shares of the
Company directly as at 31 March 2020.

A share option scheme (the “Scheme") was adopted pursuant to a
shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed on 17
November 2011. No options have been granted, exercised or
cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up to the date of
this annual report.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced
personnel, incentivise them to remain with the Group and motivate
them to strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors of the Company
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors), the directors of the
Company's subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.
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Limited » Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited 52 Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited #& 15 A5 B K18 (ER) BR QR AAFH AR AR F A EE
B AR (ERR) ARA AR 20204 3 A 31 B B B #5442 7 8,933,937,400
AR 17 -
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the Company’s listing date of 15
December 2011, being 1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme Mandate
Limit"”), which represented 10.0% of the shares of the Company
as at the date of this annual report. The Company may renew the
Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the
Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options
which have been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30.0% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as
set out in the Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying
the options granted to each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1.0% of the shares of the Company in issue for the
time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee
(the "Option Period”) shall be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of such grant, which shall not
expire later than 10 years from the grant date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.
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The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the grant date, which must be a business day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the
date of conditional adoption, i.e. 17 November 2011.

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses, damages and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the directors.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$20.1 million (FY2019: HK$9.9 million).
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The Group's business severely suffered in the fourth quarter ended
31 March 2020 due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020. The
Group has been closely monitoring the development and the
impact of COVID-19 since then and taking appropriate responses in
a timely manner in order to mitigate the impact on the Group's
business. The majority of our POS in Mainland China and Hong
Kong and Macau resumed operations in April 2020.

Up to the date on which this set of financial statements were
authorised for issue, the Group has seen signs of recovery
especially in the Mainland China market. The recent sales
performances in both reportable segments were within the
management’s expectations.

For further details, please refer to “Business Outlook and
Strategies” in Managing Director’s Strategic Report on p.40.

Except for the above, there is no material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this annual report.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) retired as the auditor of the
Company upon the expiration of its term of office with effect from
the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 26 July 2018. PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the
auditor of the Company following the retirement of Deloitte.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants
and Registered PIE Auditor, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 June 2020
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To the members of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 165 to 262, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020;

* the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

* the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

* the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Coce”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Existence and valuation of inventories

e Valuation of jewellery collectibles
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Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANENAHEREAFTRETER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEZHFHEMREGHE

Refer to notes 2.14, 3 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group was HK$42,538.4
million as at 31 March 2020 which mainly comprised of gem-set
jewellery, gold products, platinum/karat gold products and watches.
Valuation of inventories was at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Significant portion of inventory cost includes cost of gold,
platinum and gemstones, which are subject to the risk of changes in
market value. The assessment of net realisable value of inventories
was based on significant estimates and judgements made by
management in respect of, amongst others, the economic conditions,
marketability of products and the forecast market price of gold,
platinum and gemstones used to make the jewellery products.

F2HEEMBRKRME2.14 3R 22

We understood and evaluated management'’s key
controls over inventory existence and valuation.

We validated management'’s controls over existence by
attending daily cycle physical counts at selected points-
of-sale (“POS") throughout the year to observe the
daily count procedures at POS. We also inspected a
selection of daily physical count reports and the
reconciliation to daily ending inventories record in the
inventory system.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
count at year end date and performed sample count
procedures at selected POS, manufacturing facilities
and logistics and distribution centres.
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Key Audit Matter
HRENEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANEFNAHEAREAFTRETER

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEZFHEMERIGHE (H)

Management also engaged an independent professional gemologist
to carry out gemological appraisal to verify their authenticity and
assess their conditions and values based on its expertise.

ERENCERBYEXREETMETELECNMGEE  UKE
EmPRBEEEENBTHEONRRNEE -

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional gemologist,
understood their scope of work and their terms of
engagement. We selected gem-set jewellery products,
observed the appraisal process carried out by the
independent professional gemologist and traced these
to the gemological appraisal reports to test these were
recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

We evaluated the net realisable values of inventories
assessed by management with reference to, amongst
others, the market price movement of the materials,
the aging profile and the subsequent selling prices of
similar products, on a sample basis.

We evaluated the historical accuracy of allowances on
inventories assessed by the management by comparing
the actual loss to historical allowances recognised.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
existence and valuation of inventories to be supportable
by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
BREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EAPWESFNAHERETBEETERE

Valuation of jewellery collectibles
BEDHEME

Refer to notes 2.13, 3 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of jewellery collectibles of the Group was
HK$1,520.1 million as at 31 March 2020. Valuation of jewellery
collectibles was at the lower of cost and recoverable amount. The
assessment of the recoverable amount of jewellery collectibles was
based on the review of the conditions of the items by management
and with reference to international diamond prices and market research
reports on jewellery industry. The management also engaged an
independent professional gemologist to perform valuation with
reference to international diamond prices and the current market
situation, to verify the authenticity and assess the conditions and
values of jewellery collectibles based on gemstone testing and its expertise.

F2HEE M B®RKME2.13 3R 18-

M202063A31H - EXENKEDHEEER1520188%
T KEBERDENGEERKNAEATKEEMEPT ZREE - EBE
BRKEDEAORR  T2REFELBRARIKETENT ISR
ME - A EREDENAIKOSE - ERENEEBILEER
BETM2REFEABBRMRETRETHE REERRRE
ERARREEXNBTRAREDEOEB MR -

We traced the acquisition costs or carrying value upon
the designation to jewellery collectibles to relevant
source documents.

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional gemologist,
understood their scope of work and their terms of
engagement. We selected all jewellery collectibles,
observed the appraisal process carried out by the
independent professional gemologist and traced these
to the gemological appraisal reports to test these were
recorded at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
valuation of jewellery collectibles to be supportable by
the available evidence.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

11 June 2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

HZE2020F3A31HILFE

2019
Notes HK$ million
B & BEET
Revenue L 4 66,660.9
Cost of goods sold HE KA (48,059.1)
Gross profit EX 18,601.8
Other income HA A 5 395.8
Selling and distribution costs S R SHRK AR (9,037.8)
General and administrative expenses — MR RITHE (2,986.7)
Other gains and losses H b Y25 Ko B 18 6 (276.2)
Other expenses HAupFs 5 (57.3)
Share of profits of an associate DME—REEE R R ZEF -
Interest income F B U A 7 82.7
Finance costs BhE B AR 7 (370.3)
Profit before taxation R B4 A% F 8 6,352.0
Taxation FiIE 10 (1,668.0)
Profit for the year FERR 4,684.0
Other comprehensive expense Hi2mEAX
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T &E#H S EZEwbER -
— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme — B EEEEAEE (7.5)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to FEE Al S EF T
profit or loss: BmmEE -
— exchange differences arising on translation — BEIEINERR T EA Y
of foreign operations & i =58 (1,288.1)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHME2MEAX (1,295.6)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEKZAHE 3,388.4
Profit for the year attributable to: UT&FEEFERT :
Shareholders of the Company VNN 35S 4,576.8
Non-controlling interests FEEAR = 107.2
4,684.0
Total comprehensive income for the year UTEFEGFEFEZERZE
attributable to: W
Shareholders of the Company Vi N/NE=] 1 =) 3,327.3
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR HE S 61.1
3,388.4
Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted BREFN — EXREE

11 HK45.8 cents &l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

BR O W5 IR DL AR

At 31 March 2020 2020463 A31H

2020 2019
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
[EE BEER BBET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRERE 13 4,641.3 5,488.0
Land use rights b1 A 2.2 - 177.2
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 2,288.0 -
Investment properties BEME 15 225.4 219.2
Goodwill [HES 16 231.5 257.8
Other intangible assets EtEmpEE 17 207.6 253.7
Jewellery collectibles KELE 18 1,520.1 1,620.1
Prepayment and deposits BRFERE MRS 248.3 38.7
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFTAERY
profit or loss SREE 21.0 11.2
Investments in associates REEENRIZIRE 19 11.7 -
Amounts due from associates & U Bt N B FRIE 19 57.5 54.7
Loan receivables EWRER 20 15.6 18.7
Deferred tax assets RERRIEEE 21 570.1 420.1
10,038.1 8,459.4
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 22 42,538.4 39,486.1
Trade and other receivables E 5 Rk E MR FIE 23 5,340.8 6,638.7
Loan receivables UL E X 20 7.9 12.3
Taxation recoverable A] Uy (3] F 78 99.0 -
Cash and cash equivalents BENBREEEY 24 7,219.2 7,640.6
55,205.3 53,777.7
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNRIE 25 12,430.0 10,684.3
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAT B B 1A A T AR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries WIA 26 97.9 136.7
Taxation payable FE LA 388.6 1,178.4
Bank borrowings |ITERK 27 10,533.0 7,460.0
Gold loans HEEE 28 11,280.4 8,011.5
Lease liabilities HERRE 14 896.8 =
35,626.7 27,470.9
Net current assets REEETRHE 19,578.6 26,306.8
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBAESE 29,616.7 34,766.2
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 27 897.5 2,596.7
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 900.3 -
Retirement benefit obligations RRAE ) A 36 260.2 238.8
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 21 505.1 456.4
Other liabilities Hib B & 62.8 71.3
2,625.9 3,363.2

Net assets BEEFHR 26,990.8 31,403.0

1 66 ‘ Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
Ar % AXBHEEERRAA



2019

Note HK$ million

i HEBT

Share capital N 29 10,000.0

Reserves fHHE 20,750.7
Equity attributable to shareholders of AATRRELESR

the Company 30,750.7

Non-controlling interests IR ER 652.3

31,403.0

The consolidated financial statements on pages 165 to 262 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 11

June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
ERRALTE +
DIRECTOR
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Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

ERELRE
DIRECTOR
EF

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BRIRER SE 4
DIRECTOR

=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
B 0 M A B B 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020F3HA31HILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RRRRFEE
Statutory Non-
Share Share Special surplus  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
B BAEE BRRE icRHkE  AERE REEA @i R &5t
HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million  HKS million
BEAT BEAT BEAT HEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT HEAT BEAT
Notes (note a) (note b)
i3 (Miita) (Hr&Eb)
At 1 April 2018 #2018E4R18 10,000.0 54987 2,499.5 1,209.0 11768 13,0394 334234 6742 34,0976
Profit for the year FERA = = - - - 45768 45768 1072 46840
Other comprehensive FEEMZERY
expense for the year - - - - (1,2420) (7.5)  (1,249.5) (46.1)  (1,295.6)
Total comprehensive EE2E(ER)/
(expense)fincome for the year Wiz 4EE - - - - (124200 45693 3321.3 61.1 3,388.4
Capital contribution from —ZHBAA
anon-controlling FERBRRLE
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 3k 35
Deregistration of FENBAR
subsidiaries - - = (55.3) (0.8) 56.1 - (5.9 (5.9)
Transfers & - - - 175 - (117.5) - - -
Dividends S 12 - - - - - (6,000.00  (6,000.0) (80.6)  (6,080.6)
At 31 March 2019, 1201953 A31H
as previously presented (ZHIBE5) 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 1,211.2 (66.0) 11547.3  30,750.7 6523  31,403.0
Effect on adoption of IFRS 16 FAEREI BHE
ERZ16%HTE 2.2 - - - - - (144.6) (144.6) - (144.6)
t 1 April 2019, as adjusted 1201954818
(%) 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 1,211.2 (66.0) 11,402.7  30,606.1 652.3 31,2584
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - 2,901.0 2,901.0 82.1 2,983.1
Other comprehensive FEEMZERS
expense for the year - - - - (939.8) (24.0) (963.8) (40.8)  (1,004.6)
Total comprehensive FR2AEAR)/
(expense)fincome for es
the year - - - - (939.8) 2,871.0 1,937.2 413 1,9785
Capital contribution from —FHEATE
a non-controlling JEERR AR 1A
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 8.0 8.0
Deregistration of subsidiaries 5+ 5/ B 7 - - - (4.8) (39) 8.7 - (10.9) (10.9)
Transfers R - - - 1188 - (118.8) - - -
Dividends BRE 12 - - - - - (6,200.0)  (6,200.0) (43.2) (6,243.2)
At 31 March 2020 "202063A31R8 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 1,385.2 (1,009.7) 7969.6  26,343.3 6475 26,9908
Notes: (i3

(a)  Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business
and (i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under
common control, and cash consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries
under common control pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2011.

(b)  As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland
China, the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus
reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in
the statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion
into capital by means of capitalisation issue.

Financials

B %

(a)  HEBIGEMLR ()VRPIRIE RS 2 Rt BB R (i) 25 R R R R 6T & M &
X A Y PR A D B AR R 2011 47 745 S [ 2548 5 Mk g 44 TR 48 1) S BB 2 R
XNzREREZZHE -

(b) EEMHEAMIINEEEORBEARRER  ARATERMHE AR
BEBELATREBRERED - BRMEE 2 BRIIRA T ENBIMNE A B X
EMEHmT (RIFHE A RERNBMAR RARRR) FIRARBTE
BIFE  ZERBRBEESTARBHBAFEOBIANE) - WAL
AEACBETZAAEBRBER -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBKREEEER DA



For the year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020F3HA31HILFE

2019
HK$ million
BEET
Operating activities ReEFTH
Profit before taxation B B B 7 6,352.0
Adjustments for: HTRHFIEEL AR
Interest income MEMKA (131.4)
Interest expenses FEMX 370.3
Loss allowance (written back)/recognised o hHEMEWFIBEBRE
on trade and other receivables (@) TR 27.5
Utilisation of allowance on inventories FERESER (113.5)
Write off of inventories FEEX 9.0
Fair value change of gold loans HEEEENAAEZS 117.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  HERREITE 885.1
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTRESENE -
Depreciation of investment properties "EMENE 14.3
Amortisation of land use rights b {50 A M R 8 14.3
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hth 2 72 2 52.7
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries 1 i B JB 1 ) W 2 =
Share of profits of an associate DME—REE R R ZEF -
Impairment of amount due from an associate FEW — KRB R R RIB 2 RE 5.0
Impairment of goodwill PR E =
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y - BERRERE =
Impairment of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BEREENER 17.8
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets REGAEEAENNE =
Provision for defined benefit obligations TERBRRE R AERE 7.2
Net exchange difference & 2 2 56 5 50 146.9
Operating cash flows before movements in BEECEHZ
working capital KEBRERE 7,774.4
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEm,m 29.0
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and trade and other HEME SN EMEWRIERD
receivables (3 hn) (655.8)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 & H e 5B AN 2,882.9
Defined benefits paid B E R R IR A (8.1)
Cash generated from operations CEBE S 10,022.4
Interest received B F 8 A7L
Income tax paid: ERATER
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BENEH (463.7)
— Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax — R A ERTEH &
in Mainland China TEIF (1,127.6)
— Macau complementary tax — B S MR (40.1)
— Taxation in other jurisdictions — HibRAE 2 FIE (7.1)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMEBRLSTFE

Annual Report 2020
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2019

HK$ million
BEET
Investing activities REZH
Interest received B FI B 103.4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEME BMENLE (1,341.8)
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BEWHE  BERZBENHKIE
plant and equipment (50.0)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE WMELREBHE
plant and equipment 48.3
Receipts of loan receivables B EKRER 22.5
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value W AR ETABSNEHEE
through profit or loss (6.7)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) U g M B A 7 (KsE38) =
Acquisition of an associate Wi — I Q A =
(Advances to)/repayment from associates (B & A RIEFR), & A RER 2.5
Dividend received from an associate BER—REE QN EHRE -
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARESFE (1,221.8)
Financing activities AESEE
Interest paid EENEUESS (366.1)
Bank borrowings raised EEERTER 8,044.0
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETEXR (5,910.6)
Repayment of gold loans BEegasiEEs (2,939.8)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities YNHEEBEARAES I
Capital contribution from a non-controlling —RBRRFEIERBRLEE
shareholder of a subsidiary 8.3
Repayment of capital to a non-controlling M B AR EERIREHEE
shareholder of subsidiaries (5.9
(Repayment to)/advance from non-controlling (Bg¥), /%8 Bﬁ%’“ A
shareholders of subsidiaries FEPERR AR R Hy B 43.0
Dividends paid BERRE (6,080.6)
Net cash used in financing activities BETEFTRARSEE (7,212.5)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEYRDF (3.2)
Cash and cash equivalents FINRERBLEEY
at the beginning of the year 7,944.0
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERZFHNT (300.2)
Cash and cash equivalents FRNRERBELEEY
at the end of the year 7,640.6

Financials

B

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020F3HA31HILFE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”,
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”)
was incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands on 20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) since 15 December 2011. Its
immediate holding company is Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited (“CTF Holding”), and its ultimate holding company is
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, both are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 40. The address of registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of principal place of
business is 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of

preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
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2.1

(a)

Financials

Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise their judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are especially significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments which are first effective for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 April 2019.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with

IFRS 9 Negative Compensation
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment
IAS 19 or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
IAS 28 and Joint Ventures
Amendments Annual Improvement to IFRS
to IFRSs Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a
result of adopting IFRS 16. The Group elected to adopt
the new rules retrospectively but recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard
on 1 April 2019. This is disclosed in note 2.2. Most of
the other amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.

2.1

(a)

S PRt B 4R B 2 (@)

FEPBRRIRELRAZER - EE
TEBMTARNRDR(ENE -

BT & BRI E ER RS TR
RAERETHREFEHE  ABTHEE
ERETERBARENG I BEBRETE
HHE - B AP BHRERP I RS ENH
B BEMEERSNERRERRENLMG
HO BB I HEE -

FRERMEEET REIEFTER

REBEEALTR201944 A1 BRAK
BV 4F 2 5 EAR B R A R R R R B AT A e

B B A 3R HE
ZERI5 1655
B B 75 3R FISHiEIE s
BREBASE235% T HEE M
BIfR iSRS ER EBEBEREZ
F %K (BFTR) RATERE
RE TR FrElER - BIR
F195 (BT A) g
el i B/NCTDY
F 285 (7] A) BEDBHEZ
R
BEPR B 5iRE2ER]  2015F £ 2017
CHEN) FEH 2 B
B TS R 2R
FREME

AEERBEEVHRERNF 16 212
FERHEESFHRE - N2019F4 810 -
AEBRBEPRANFRA - BRERBH
JRE PR 3T AE B O 25 AU o LB EE2.2 3%
B LIKRZBEMETATEY BB
HME®ANSE - THEATSH AR

HARKAEERERLE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of

(b)

preparation (Continued)

Amended standards early adopted by the Group

The Group has early adopted the following amendments
of IFRS, which are relevant to its operations.
Amendments to COVID-19-related rent concessions
IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-related rent
concessions” allow lessee to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease
modification. Such practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
conditions are met:

e The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

* Any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;

e There is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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2.1

(c)

2.2

Financials

B

Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation (Continued)

New standards and amendments not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and amendments
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
March 2020 reporting period and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards and
amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

New standards and amendments to existing
standards
Amendments to Definition of a Business'
IFRS 3
Amendments to
IAS 1 and IAS 8

Definition of Material’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to Hedge accounting’

IAS 39, IFRS 7
and IFRS 9
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Conceptual Revised Conceptual Framework for
Framework Financial Reporting’
for Financial

Reporting 2018

1. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
2. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

3. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS
16 Leases on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

As indicated in note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
IFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1 April 2019, but
has not restated comparatives for the 2019 reporting
period, as permitted under the specific transition
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on
1 April 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed
in note 2.28.

2.1

(c)

2.2

B HR PR I A 1) B 2 ()

i S $R 40 B0 T ET 28 Rl R 18R] A
ETHEEAREFTARER/M - BR
20203 A31BHEPRE M AL - A
SETMERFRB - ZFHRREITAE
AT EHARERRARARBELANERE
BRUATAARARNRHERERNTE

HATEARREENNET A

BRI s EER"
ZERIZE 35k (IERTA)

EIRRERHERIE 1 5% EPNhaE
pEdeilas-Eap 32l
FE 8 (EATA)

B A S R AR B REEEE
1055 N B RRIFABDRE
SEERIE 285% ZHEMEENE
CHIEN) FARAS

RERTERIFE395E - EhEEH

B A T s 2R
557 5 R BB 75
HEERIFEIHRUERTA)

BARR B R eR o 22 R REEH?
F175

SRS ISR RS
HE2£2018 BESiESe

1. B20204F1 A1 B2 ERRM SRR AER -
2. B2021%1 81 Bz BREBO ST IR AR -

3. BRFEHHBRZRFARMEPRER -

EHEERE
7N P ol st R A B R B S SR A R I B 16 9%
HEHAREBREUBRENOTE -

W EXKEE2.1 R - AEE B 201964
A1 AREPHRGBERIBRELENE 16
SHE  ERBEZERSEREGEXAR
o W B 2019 F 4R & B 9 H BB
FeoRM HHERNEENEFOHER
AEN2019F4 A1 BEEEABRETY
FEERT DARERR - BT at IR IRE2. 28455
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously
been classified as “operating leases” under the
principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 April 2019. The weighted
average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to
the lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 was 2.93%.

Practical expedients applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

* applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

e accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2019
as short-term leases;

e applying the recognition exemption for lease of low
value assets;

e excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

* using hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 16, the Group reclassified
leasehold land from property, plant and equipment and land
use rights to right-of-use assets for presentation purpose.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financials

Measurement of lease liabilities

2.2
(b)

The table below explains the difference between
operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 March
2019 by applying IAS 17 and lease liabilities recognised

at 1 April 2019 by applying IFRS 16:

Bt BRER (@)

FTEHEEAE

TREE2019F3A31 HEABHB S5
AR E17HRBELCEHERIEE2019F
4 A1 A FER R % @RS 2RI 5 16 5% AR
ROEEEBZEZE :

HK$ million
BEER
Operating lease commitments disclosed R201943 A31 BEBENLLETHE&IE
as at 31 March 2019 2,741.1
Less: "
Contract reassessed as service agreement B HA AR BENER (116.8)
Short-term leases recognised on a DNESEMRERLSERNEHAE
straight-line basis as expense (82.6)
Operating lease liabilities before discounting M20194 3 A31 HBERAINKLHERE
as at 31 March 2019 2,541.7
Effect from discounting at incremental R20194 4 A1 BAREEEF RMIRZ
borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019* A (210.7)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 R2019F4 A1 AERANEEERE 2,331.0
Of which are: Hep:
Current lease liabilities mEHEAaE 1,056.4
Non-current lease liabilities ERBHEaRE 1,274.6
2,331.0
G The weighted average incremental borrowing rate was 2.93%. * IORE TR E BRI R 52.93% °
Measurement of right-of-use assets (c) FHEEREEE

The associated right-of-use assets for leases were
measured on a retrospective basis as if the new rules

had always been applied.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the

following types of assets:

HERRNEREEERENEMAE
HEn—ERAIARA -

ERRAERREER NIEERMNER

At 1 April

2019

A2019F4H1H

HKS million

BEAT

Leasehold land/land use rights FHE L+ b A 648.8
Retail stores TEE 2,104.7
Office, warehouse and others WAE  BEREAM 114.8
Total right-of-use assets FREEEAE 2,868.3

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXEHREEEER QA



2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Adjustments recognised in the consolidated

2.2 TEBUREEN (@)
(d) 720194 1HEEHBRARAE

statement of financial position on 1 April 2019 FRHIERE
The change in accounting policy affected the following EITBCREE T E 5201944 A1 B4R
items in the consolidated statement of financial AEUBRRETMIEE -
position on 1 April 2019:
At
31 March 2019 Effect on At
(as previously adoption 1 April 2019
presented) of IFRS 16 (as adjusted)
i BR4N BB 0 35 i
20194638318 #§EEE 201964818
(ZAIE25) F16HKNTE (RHR%E)
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEERT BEET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKEE 5,488.0 (471.6) 5,016.4
Land use rights —+ b {5 F 4 177.2 (177.2) -
Right-of-use assets FERESE - 2,868.3 2,868.3
Deferred tax assets BEEBIBEE 420.1 234 4435
Current asset REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5K Hth fE Uk 5008 6,638.7 (26.6) 6,612.1
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMEMNKE (10,684.3) (29.9) (10,714.2)
Lease liabilities HEBE - (1,056.4) (1,056.4)
Non-current liability kRBEME
Lease liabilities HEBE - (1,274.6) (1,274.6)
Equity fEm
Retained profits RE & H (11,547.3) 144.6 (11,402.7)
(9,507.6) - (9,507.6)

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16.
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2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity

(a)

Financials

B

accounting

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control.

The Group controls an entity when the Group:
e has power over the entity;

* s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity; and

¢ has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an entity, it has power over the entity when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the entity unilaterally. The
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an entity are sufficient to give it power, including:

* the size of the Group's holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to note 2.4).

23 S REREERA

(a)

Fit B A E]
MEBARARNEEEEEHIENAEER
(BRERBLEER

REBRTIIER TR —KEE

o HEREGEGIE

155 B R R SR = TR
- RS ENE  HAEERESLR
TR -

HARBERERZIREEREERSH
MBRERERAETAEEERE N UET
EEREBNEREEN HEEES
BN ARERNFEARERERORE
BERRARTHENSEBMEHERE
BERER - B84

o MHf &mﬁé%—rﬁ}\Fﬁ%&m%E’ﬁk%
ROBBRARERAEEFEREEN
HE

o KEHE - E’rlﬂ?“%ﬁéﬁﬁ/\ﬁiﬁl\ﬂt/\:t
FAZBERRY

o HEMRHFELHERN &

7

e RJEEMEHRE 2R  BRAKEE A
Bt @&T\ﬁz 5N EBRA SRR BN E

ERBER(BENBEREEHE LNR
FHRA) o

MEAREENEEEEAKEE ARG
E2HEA AR - HBAREENEL LR
RIS GHRRASIR -

AEENEBEHDERKES
(2BMFE2.4) -

FHEAR
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2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity

(a)

(b)

(c)

accounting (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see (c) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity

(c)

(d)

Financials

B

accounting (Continued)

Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.12.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

2.3

(c)

(d)

SHRERESRE @)

)

AEBHEEBE QR HRSH AR
HIREETZEERERNEFELHE - K
IRGRBEERCEERBENSE &
B R IR BTN T AT 8 - ARERS A SR
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ARER A B IR AR BRNTE 2
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BRERESH
AEBIED & 5| BUREZ B A FE A2
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ERE R REE AN HBEARBRKRER
BB R AAR S M 2R o FRIE AR o S B
BEFEM DM HRE MR EZREFZER
MARB R AEE LT B
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BRREGHARIK LERIIE  NE
FHERZEMNRERRSRARESH

FPE MEREEZSNERER - %R
ARINEBERR  GECERAERMEE
ZREBEEME  ZAREANBER

{8 o USSR AT E i 22 T U 2 AR B B
EREFHZAMNSHERBNASEEHE
HEEHEERBBZIAAR - BER
ERAEEMEEKREER Z 2ERRE
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ERBERBNEAEEDRLD  EDA
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2.4

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

® equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity's net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

e consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

® acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a gain on acquisition of subsidiaries.
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2.4

25

2.6

Financials

B

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

The board of the Company has appointed Executive
Committee which assesses the financial performance
and position of the Group, and makes strategic
decisions. Executive Committee, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker,
consists of executive directors of the Company.

2.4

2.5

2.6
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2.7 Foreign currencies translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Translations and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using exchange rates
at the date when fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.7 Foreign currencies translation (continued)

(c)

Financials

B

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of the reporting period,;

* income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

2.7
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2.7
(d)

2.8
(a)

Foreign currencies translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences is re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and is not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group's ownership interest in an associate that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.4.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of
an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments (note 4).
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2.8
(b)

2.9

Financials

B

Intangible assets (Continued)

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill are measured
initially at cost or, if acquired in a business combination,
fair value at the acquisition date. An intangible asset
with a finite useful life is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its useful life and carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction in progress) are
stated at historical cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
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2.9 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land Over the lease term
Buildings 5%
Plant and machinery 10%

20% - 33'/:%

Over the lease term
or 20%,

whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties which comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or for administration purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not be
sold separately, the property is investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.12).
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2.9 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.10 Investment properties

Financials

B

Investment properties are properties held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property evidenced by the commencement of
owner's occupation, the property shall be measured at its
carrying amount at the date of change in use for
subsequent accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line basis over 20 years
or lease term.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.
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2.11 Land use rights

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case
the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land elements and building element at
initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“land use rights” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.13 Jewellery collectibles

Jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with
extremely high-value and are designated not for sale.

Jewellery collectibles are classified as non-current
assets at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Jewellery collectibles are derecognised upon
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which
the item is derecognised.

2.14 Inventories

Financials

B

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost is
calculated using specific identification basis for gem-
set jewellery, platinum/karat gold products (finished
goods) and watches; and weighted average for other
inventories. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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2.15 Investments and other financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

* those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Debt investments are reclassified when and only when the
Group's business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.15 Investments and other financial assets

(c)

Financials

(Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established. Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains and
losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as applicable.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains and losses together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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2.15 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains and losses. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains and losses and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains
and losses in the period in which it arises.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the

expected credit losses associated with its debt

instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The

impairment methodology applied depends on whether

there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified

approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires lifetime

expected credit losses to be recognised from initial

recognition of the receivables, see note 33 for further details.
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2.15 Investments and other financial assets

(d)

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month expected credit loss unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.

When there is a significant increase in credit risk or the
proceeds receivables are not settled in accordance
with the terms stipulated in the agreements,
management considers these receivables as
underperforming or non-performing and impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

2.16 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.17 Trade receivables

Financials

B

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. They are generally due for
settlement between 30 and 180 days and therefore all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See note 23 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and note 33 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

2.20 Trade and other payables

2.21

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and
are usually paid between 7 and 180 days of recognition.
Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply all attached conditions and the grants will
be received.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that the grants are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as other liabilities and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets. Note 5 provides further
information on how the Group accounts for
government grants.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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2.22 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

2.23 Gold loans

Financials

B

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as
the gold loans form part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives. Gold loans to be repaid by
physical gold are classified as liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Gain or losses on gold loans are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
relating financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these liabilities.
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2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.25 Taxation

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’'s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Annual Report 2020

2020 F R

2.24 SR A

BERRAWE BEIEEABEREEN
—REFEBEERAR T REREEN
EERERGHHERMTHRRANEARE -
BEREBERTERERBEHEUERTE
REHIHENEE

EREEFBEREREEI NI Z TR
REMKRMZIREWRA - AREERER
b Z &SRB A HIRR

HibhEERARNEEE 2 BREAH -

2.25 BilH

AERZ RS H ST H SR S R AN Y SR AR R
AZER R B R 2 B R E RN TRIR -
YeREEREERNARE M2 HEBR
BENEERAEERABEHTHE -

BIHAFR 5 %L

ENEART IS B MARIBA D R] ~ BB AR
NEE AR EENELBRRTRABNBER
RS HRE MM B E BB ED
AE - EREERERREENREMRR
B E PR R R WA - FEERIE
WU+ ECAR R TR 2R 1R A 7 A S A RO AR
TRERE B -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAMTE

197



198

2.25 Taxation (Continued)

Financials

B

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2.26 Retirement benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.
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2.26 Retirement benefits (Continued)

(b)

Financials

B

Post-employment obligations (Continued)

Service cost and net interest cost on the net defined
benefit liability are recognised in profit or loss and
allocated by function as part of “selling and distribution
costs” or “general and administrative expenses”.
Current service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period. The net
interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or
loss as past service costs.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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2.27 Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of
goods and the provision of services in the ordinary course
of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Sales of goods — Retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling
jewellery products and watches. Revenue from the
sales of goods is recognised when the product is
transferred to the customer who takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due from retail
customers immediately. The payment is usually settled
in cash, by credit cards, by means of electronic
payments or settled indirectly through retail malls.

Sales of goods — Customers loyalty programme
Sales of goods that result in award credits for
customers, under the Group’s customer loyalty
programme, are accounted for as multiple element
revenue transactions and the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable is allocated
between the products supplied and the award credits
granted. Revenue is not recognised at the time of the
initial sale transaction — but is deferred and recognised
as revenue when the cash coupons or points are
redeemed and the Group'’s obligations have been fulfilled.

Accumulated experience is used to estimate the
forfeiture of award credits as breakage which is
recognised as contract liabilities. The expected
breakage amount is recognised as revenue in
proportion to the pattern of rights exercised by the
customers or when the likelihood of the customer
exercising its rights becomes remote.
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2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Financials

B

Sales of goods — Wholesale to franchisees/
retailers and Jewellery trading

The Group manufactures and sells a range of jewellery
products in the wholesale market. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred to
franchisees/retailers and jewellery trading customers.
The franchisees/retailers and jewellery trading
customers have full discretion over the channel and
price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the franchisees'/retailers’ and
jewellery trading customers’ acceptance of the
products. Control is transferred when the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
franchisees/retailers and jewellery trading customers,
and either the franchisees/retailers and jewellery trading
customers have accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A contract liability is also recognised when the franchisees/
retailers pay deposits before the Group transfers
control of the products to the franchisees/retailers.

Service income from franchisees

The Group provides services to franchisees under
fixed-price contracts. Revenue from providing services
is recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

Revenue is recognised based on the actual service
provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion
of the total services to be provided because the
customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on a
payment schedule. If the services rendered by the
Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the services
rendered, a contract liability is recognised.
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2.28 Leases

As explained in note 2.2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the Group is the
lessee. The new policy is described below and the
impact of the change in note 2.2.

Until 31 March 2019, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating leases (note 30). Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

* variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

°* amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

* the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.
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2.28 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the subsidiaries of the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

* makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

* any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received;

® any initial direct costs; and

* restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
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2.28 Leases (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (note 5). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.

2.30 Earnings per share

(a)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to shareholders of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares

* by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.
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2.30 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b)

2.31

Financials

B

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

* the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

* the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included
in the net fair value gains and losses on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial assets (after deduction of
the loss allowance).
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The preparation of financial statements requires the use of

accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal

the actual results. Management also needs to exercise

judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that may have a financial

impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

(a)

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. It is
the Group's policy to review the net realisable value of
inventories periodically with reference to current
market situation and conditions of the items. The
assessment of net realisable value of inventories was
based on economic conditions, marketability of
products and the forecast market price of gold,
platinum and gemstones used to make the jewellery
products. The Group’s management also engaged an
independent professional gemmologist to perform
valuation and assess conditions of certain items based
on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery with
reference to international diamond prices, its expertise
and the current market situation. The Group
reassessed the estimation at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of
inventories was HK$42,538.4 million (net of allowances
of HK$132.0 million) (2019: carrying amount of
HK$39,486.1 million (net of allowances of HK$159.5
million)). Utilisation of allowances on inventories of
HK$24.1 million (2019: HK$113.5 million) were
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Annual Report 2020

2020 F R

REMBERRBELEHEE  BREE - FF
BAHEELBRBHCBERERAER - BEER
RSB A BERK RFTEAE S -

HEFENG YABREEREEGEAR (B
AHERERMBYERARETERATHEES
BEVRKEM 2 FEE) (EER -

(a) HEMKE
FERIEKAE SR FEMEP ZRES
DB « FEZ A FENREGHTEE
BIER &S T E A 2 A ET R A
FTE - AEBMBRASRBIRET N RIE
BARRUESHRAFENERFE - TE
AR FEMRELEERR ERIE
WEEMARSEREERN=ES e
RBEANTSEERNAER - 1 K
CEEEENEEB I EEREE TN
EITHE T2REREBAER EHXE
MEBMBEETR  UHREEREHNEAL
A ETHENTZE TEENOKR - K
EEREREPREFNTIRHELR - B
2020F3A31H T EMEEMEA
42,6384 B BB T (R EE 132088 S
JL) (20194 : BRMI{839,486.1 B 8 /5 T
(M EE1595B 8B m)) - #E2020
F3A3N BLEFERREBERABERE
GERBERR241BEBT(2019%F
MISBEEBT)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAMTE

207



208

(b)

(c)

Financials

B

Valuation of jewellery collectibles

The jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures
with extremely high-value considered by the Group and
are designated not for sale. They are classified as non-
current assets at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any. In estimating the valuation of jewellery
collectibles, it is the Group's policy to review the
conditions of items by internal gemologist and assess
the recoverable amount periodically with reference to
international diamond prices and market research
reports on jewellery industry. The Group's
management on a regular basis reviews if there is
impairment indicator and estimated the recoverable
amount if necessary. The Group’s management also
engaged an independent professional gemologist to
perform valuation and assess the conditions of items
based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery with
reference to international diamond prices, its expertise
and the current market situation. As at 31 March 2020,
the carrying amount of jewellery collectibles was
HK$1,520.1 million (2019: HK$1,520.1 million). The
management of the Group determined that the carrying
amount of jewellery collectibles approximated its costs
less accumulated impairment.

Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the year ended 31
March 2020 and 2019, the recoverable amount of cash-
generating units (CGUs) was determined based on
value-in-use calculations which require the use of
assumptions. The calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
directors covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
in note 16. These growth rates are consistent with
forecasts included in industry reports specific to the
industry in which each CGU operates.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and
impact of possible changes in key assumptions are
disclosed in note 16.
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(d)

(e)

Useful lives, residual value and impairment
of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and other intangible
assets

The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual value and related depreciation and
amortisation charges for its property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and other intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual value
of property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and other intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives or residual
value are expected to be shorter or lower than
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down obsolete
assets that have been abandoned. Changes in these
estimations may have a material impact on the results
of the Group, which would be recognised in profit or
loss in the year when such change occur. As at 31
March 2020, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and other intangible
assets were HK$4,641.3 million (2019: HK$5,488.0
million), HK$225.4 million (2019: HK$219.2 million) and
HK$207.6 million (2019: HK$253.7 million), respectively.

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries in Mainland China

The Group’'s management determines the dividend
distribution plan of the subsidiaries in Mainland China.
Based on the dividend distribution plan, retained profits
as at 31 March 2020 amounting to HK$7,791.2 million
(2019: HK$7,685.9 million) will be distributed by the
subsidiaries as dividend in the foreseeable future,
while the remaining retained profits amounting to
HK$2,991.7 million (2019: HK$5,672.4 million) has
been set aside for reinvestment by the subsidiaries
and will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
The Group’s management further reassesses the
dividend withholding tax rate based on current dividend
distribution plan and determines that certain of these
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at
the rate of 5% for dividend payments. The dividend
distribution plan is determined and made with
reference to the Group’s approved expansion plans in
Mainland China. Future change in the dividend
distribution plan may have a material impact on the
amount of deferred taxation being recognised.
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(f)

Financials

B

Determination of lease term and discount
rates

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options (or
periods after termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be
extended (or not terminated).

The following factors are normally the most relevant:

o If there are significant penalties to terminate (or
not extend), the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are expected to have
a significant remaining value, the Group is typically
reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

° Otherwise, the Group considers other factors
including historical lease durations and the costs
and business disruption required to replace the
leased asset.

Potential future cash outflows have not been included in
the lease liability because it is not reasonably certain
that the leases will be extended (or not terminated).

The lease term is reassessed if any option is actually
exercised (or not exercised) or the Group becomes
obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment
of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment, and that is within the
control of the lessee.

In determining the discount rates, the Group is required
to exercise considerable judgement in relation to
determine the discount rates by taking into account the
nature of the underlying assets and the terms and
conditions of the leases, at both the commencement
date and the effective dates of the modification.

(f)

BRI RARE

NEEEE  EEEGE B BTHET
BHEREREITTRARLAEREEN
BEBROMAEEERIER - TEHER
B (RRIEHEEERRNES)ERE
BEEBROBEES (K TERIE)RETA
HE -

MIRE-—RESBR

. AR (R NER) S R EREE R -
AEEREGAEMBEELE (HT
ARE) -

. WMEHEFNEENEREAERER
B AEEBREAEBEETE
(AR -

. B AEEZEEMEAR B4
BEBRPALRBKEEEEMEZD
B B B £ T o i -

mAEEARRERE G ETE (LT
BE) B AE AR R R 3 T A
AEAE -

901 {7 2R 1 0 4T 4 o (R
) s A B AT (R AT ) A
BIEHE - B BT - RS
KRF SRR E AR TR BT A
ERFEALEZER - EERERTEE
SRR M 01 -

EEERRXRE  ASEAREERKA
HkEREMAY - EEMEREENEE
M M E R R R G SRR IR R ME
H B K A -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARAEHREEEERAR



Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided less returns and net of
trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM"), which comprises executive
directors of the Company, mainly focuses on the location of
management. Revenue derived from each location of
management is further analysed into those from retail and
wholesale markets when reviewed by the CODM. The
Group's reportable and operating segments for the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 included two segments,
namely (i) business in the Mainland China and (ii) business in
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets.
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4. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 4. BRI HBER 0
(a) Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results (a) BRUZHESBEISHEEEZEE
by reportable segment REETH

For the year ended 31 March BZ3A3MHLEE

Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China other markets Total
REA E# AMRAMLTS #@st
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
BE#ET BEER BEAT HE#ER BEBT BEER
Revenue BEH
External sales SARHE
— Retalil —ZE 26,796.0 30,423.7 14,875.3 23,058.3 41,6713 53,482.0
— Wholesale (note i) — ReE (i) 13,966.8 12,008.3 1,112.7 1,170.6 15,079.5 13,178.9
Segment/group revenue P/ EEEEE 40,762.8 42,432.0 15,988.0 24,228.9 56,750.8 66,660.9
Inter-segment sales (note ii) AHEEE (i) - - 2,126.3 3,405.3 2,126.3 3,405.3
40,762.8 42,432.0 18,114.3 27,634.2 58,877.1 70,066.2
Adjusted gross profit BRHEER

(before elimination) (WA 12,432.2 12,237.2 4,244.3 6,524.0 16,676.5 18,761.2
Inter-segment eliminations 2 ER R A - 13 1305 (161.7) 1305 (160.4)
Adjusted gross profit EREER 12,432.2 12,238.5 4,374.8 6,362.3 16,807.0 18,600.8
Other income Hih A 279.4 252.7 157.2 143.1 436.6 395.8
Selling and distribution costs $HE R AR

and general and H—RRITH

administrative expenses X (7,615.7) (7,486.7) (3,941.1) (4,537.8) (11,556.8) (12,024.5)
Core operating profit FEEE R

(segment result) (HH%%E) 5,095.9 5,004.5 590.9 1,967.6 5,686.8 6,972.1
Unrealised (loss)/gain on gold HEAEH (BR),/

(note iii) W (P =E i) (710.8) 1.0
Others (note v) Hit (5T iv) (289.9) (333.5)
Interest income FBUA 78.0 82.7
Finance costs REBRA (559.6) (370.3)
Profit before taxation BR B A& F 4,204.5 6,352.0
Other segment FAFELE

information included in Al (D EHEE)

measurement of core FENEMD

operating profit DEER

(segment result):

Concessionaire fees ZEAK 1,583.3 1,891.7 14 16.3 1,584.7 1,908.0
Operating lease rentals in respect F&F#ELE

of rented premises HERS 135.6 353.8 116.0 1,204.1 251.6 1,557.9
Staff costs BIMAK 3,027.7 2,852.4 1,532.8 1,769.3 4,560.5 4,621.7
Depreciation and amortisation 47 ki 964.2 616.5 1,405.7 349.9 2,369.9 966.4
Notes: Bt &% -

() Wholesale revenue represents revenue from jewellery trading, sales to () PWBLEBFEURSTES HETNEELROHEBNLE
franchisees and retailers and provision of services to franchisees. BRRERE T MBEEOUA

(i) Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties. (i) DEEWESRESHTE 2 BRI -

(i) A fair value loss on gold loans of HK$1,276.1 million (2019: HK$117.2 million) (i) WHFSHE =LEENAREEBERB127618
was recorded as disclosed in note 8, of which HK$710.8 million (2019: fair EAT(2019F - 1172E8#T) EF7108EEH
value gain of HK$1.0 million) has not yet been realised due to timing difference (20194 : AAEKZE1.0BEET) AARREES
in the recognition of the impact of changes in gold price between gold loans HUESHE (EEAR)BELHFE (HEFA)NKE
(short position) and gold inventories (long position). ZEBRMEMDAER -

(iv)  Others represent other gains and losses, other expenses and share of profits of (iv) EthigHtlzmREE AR RoE—REERA
an associate. M) o
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4.

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

(a)

(b)

Analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segment (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 2.6. Adjusted gross profit represents the gross
profit generated from each segment without allocation

of unrealised (loss)/gain on gold. Core operating profit

represents the profit generated from each segment
without allocation of unrealised (loss)/gain on gold,
other gains and losses, other expenses, share of profits

of an associate, interest income and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segment

As at 31 March
Segment assets

kl‘ vllr
4. HBEH

(a)

(b)

B 53 iR Bk i
??:‘Iiiﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ@?&%%%ﬁﬁ
REESTIT (@)
AIEMD ST ERR AN E2.6 Tt A
SEMNSETBERER - KABEEFIBER

DEEEERE

EERER o

%ﬂi“fﬁ(gﬂﬁ)/ﬂ&ﬁﬁ
CEMRX D

IE(JESTE)/WmF]I

ERERFEERDEEE
< H e & &
DME—KEE QA

&0 #BFT

Al %U

NQWA&ﬂQ%KM%”%%EEWm
oW AMETEIERKTEEBRUAEELER
nM&%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁE%$°

RUEZBRSBVEATHEATEEE
RAESH
M3A31H
SEEE

Hong Kong, Macau and

Mainland China other markets Total
FRERE B RMREMTE @it
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HKS milion  HK$million  HKS million  HKSmillion  HKS million  HKS$ million
BE#ER HEBT BN BE#T BERR BB
Property, plant and ERY Y E
equipment 3,437.8 3,769.8 1,203.5 1,718.2 4,641.3 5,488.0
Land use rights 3 fE - 163.8 - 23.4 - 177.2
Right-of-use assets TREAE 589.5 - 1,698.5 = 2,288.0 =
Investment properties REME 17.2 - 208.2 219.2 2254 219.2
Goodwill me 1933 193.3 38.2 64.5 2315 257.8
Other intangible assets HiEVEE 142.8 171.2 47.6 57.0 190.4 2282
Jewellery collectibles KELH - - 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,620.1
Prepayment and deposits BERERE MRS 96.5 32.1 151.8 6.6 248.3 38.7
Inventories FE 24,547.8 20,838.1 17,990.6 18,648.0 42,538.4 39,486.1
Trade and other receivables B 5 R fh ek IR 4,698.2 5,830.4 642.6 808.3 5,340.8 6,638.7
Taxation recoverable BlEE - - 99.0 - 99.0 -
Total segment assets BAMEE 33,7231 30,988.7 23,600.1 23,065.3 57,323.2 54,054.0
Unallocated: AARE :
Other intangible assets HMEREE 17.2 25.5
Financial assets at fair value BRAAEFABRN
through profit or loss SREE 21.0 1.2
Investments in associates REE AR ZRE
and amounts due from RN 1 R
associates R 69.2 54.7
Loan receivables ERER 235 31.0
Deferred tax assets BRHBEEE 570.1 420.1
Cash and cash equivalents ReRR&EEN 7,219.2 7,6406
Total assets BEE 65,243.4 62,237.1
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4. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 4. BEHERIIBE R

(b) Analysis of the Group’s assets and (b) BRUEZHHSBEINTWEEEEE
liabilities by reportable segment (Continued) REBESH @
As at 31 March A3A31H
Segment liabilities SEAaE

Hong Kong, Macau and

Mainland China other markets Total
HERE B RRRAMTS @5t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET BEERT BEERT HEET

Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFRIE (11,338.5) (9,364.1) (1,091.5) (1,320.2)  (12,430.0)  (10,684.3)
Taxation payables FEfIHiE (227.9) (489.3) (160.7) (689.1) (388.6) (1,178.4)
Lease liabilities HEERE (472.3) - (1,324.8) - (1,797.1) -
Total segment liabilities BorHaE (12,038.7) (9,853.4) (2,577.0) (2,009.3) (14,615.7) (11,862.7)
Unallocated: APRE :
Amount due to non-controlling & B8 2 A FEE R
shareholders of subsidiaries 0] (97.9) (136.7)
Bank borrowings BITER (11,430.5)  (10,056.7)
Gold loans ESEE (11,280.4) (8,011.5)
Retirement benefits obligations & /R & F| & & (260.2) (238.8)
Deferred tax liabilities EERBAE (505.1) (456.4)
Other liabilities HEEE (62.8) (71.3)
Total liabilities #BEE (38,252.6)  (30,834.1)
(c) Analysis of the Group’s assets by (c) BB AEEEESH
geographical area
The Group’s non-current assets, excluding loan RN BEE M AEBEERBEE(T
receivables, deposits, amounts due from associates, BEEKRER  BftEe - EREE QA
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and HIE - BAARBFABZNSREERE
deferred tax assets, by geographical areas are as follows: ERHEEE) DTWAT ¢
As at 31 March MA3A31H8
2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAET
Mainland China 3 A 4,853.9 4,766.9
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets E8 B REMTIS 4,331.4 3,187.8
9,185.3 7,954.7
214 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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4. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 4.
(d) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods
and services at a point in time and over time in the

following major product categories:

For the year ended 31 March

BRI RER )
(d) BEEESHZBLEEMAS

AEENREEE R RRBRE-—FKEHEER
—BRERAMITENSERSE  TREMRE

AT

HE3HA3MALEE

2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBT BEAT
At a point in time RE—RE
Retail sales of TEHE
— Gem-set jewellery — IREEREH 9,346.8 12,187.7
— Gold products — HEEM 24,003.4 31,892.3
— Platinum/karat gold products — A% KEEMR 4,908.0 5,756.6
— Watches — §EHk 3,413.1 3,645.4
41,671.3 53,482.0
Wholesale to franchisees/retailers MR, S 14,578.9 12,484.2
Jewellery trading KEEZ S 245.2 4947
Over time R—BRER
Service income from franchisees KB MEEEREKA 255.4 200.0
56,750.8 66,660.9

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group in both years.

MIEFEAN  HEEGHBTEAEEEZ

H¥510% AL -

5. Other Income and Other Expenses 5. HABBA b H Al b 3£
2020 2019
Other income Hiblr A HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEET
Commission income = A 111.9 96.9
Government grants (note) R B RE (B EE) 81.0 107.1
Other income from franchisees KEMBEREMUA 67.3 56.2
Rental income WA 35.3 14.4
Interest income from trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE M F S A 56.0 47.2
Interest income from loan receivables JFEWUE ) B A 4.8 1.5
Others Hh 80.3 72.5
436.6 395.8
2020 2019
Other expenses Hipxx HK$ million HKS$ million
BEABT BEERT
Donation Bx 20.1 9.9
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hfth £ 7 A 5 36.3 42.4
Impairment of amount due from an associate & — KB4 A 7 5008 2 R E 0.2 5.0
Impairment of goodwill BERE 26.3 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #1% - & & & &R E 13.0 =
Impairment of right-of-use assets FAREERE 50.4 -
146.3 B7.3

Note:  This mainly represents the government incentives granted by the government in
Mainland China for the development of the Group’s operation in Mainland China.
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6. Other Gains and Losses 6. ks B des 4
2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT
Net foreign exchange loss P& 5 E5 18 3 78 (234.0) (241.2)
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE  BERXENER
plant and equipment (37.7) (17.8)
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets REFEREEENIRZ 78.8 -
Rent concession HeESR 34.3 -
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) U B i B A 7] U as (131 38) 18.0 =
Others Hibth (6.5) (17.2)
(147.1) (276.2)
Rent concession represents the change in lease payment HEeEBEREIE2019EB R ASHENHEHSEEREE
arising from COVID-19-related rent concession of HK$16.2 HENRESN16.28 BB T K HHEAERE
million and other concession that were contractually obliged MNEHNEEZHEMEZI1B1BEEBT -
by lessors of HK$18.1 million.
7. Interest Income and Finance Costs 7. BN Be il ¥l A
2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Interest income from FBUA
— banks — R1T 78.0 82.7
Finance costs on R E AN
— gold loans — "HeBE 206.6 161.4
— bank borrowings — IRITER 284.1 208.9
— lease liabilities —HEAE 68.9 -
559.6 370.3
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
B i BAXEHREEEER QA




2019

HK$ million
BEAT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BREATEFIE MG (GEA) ¢
after charging/(crediting):
Directors’ remuneration (note 9) EHNE (MEE9) 92.6
Staff's retirement benefits 8 TRIREH 84t
scheme contributions 613.3
Staff costs BIAA 39158
4,621.7
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 17 &k AR A% 46,723.5
Concessionaire fees HiEH A 1,908.0
Operating lease rentals in respect of EAMELEHERS
rented premises 1,557.9
Depreciation of property, plant Y - BERZENE
and equipment 885.1
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE -
Depreciation of investment properties BREYEFE 14.3
Amortisation of land use rights - b {55 PR I 6 14.3
Amortisation of other intangible assets L f T A 52.7
Utilisation of allowances on inventories FEBESER
(included in cost of goods sold) GTABEREA) (113.5)
Loss allowance (written back)/recognised B REMBRFIBBEREE
on trade and other receivables (@) TR 27.5
Fair value loss of gold loans HeEENAAEER
(included in cost of goods sold) (FTASEEKRAR)
— realised loss on gold — 2B B EE 118.2
— unrealised loss/(gain) on gold (note 4) — BEAREIBEE (W) (FiFE4) (1.0)
117.2
Gain on acquisition of ENZO (included in W fE ENZO z Yz (FH A E b s &
other gains and losses) (note 38) E1EAR) (MiEE38)
Donations (included in other expenses) BRGEAHEMRESZA) 0L
Auditors’ remuneration for the Company’s L2 Gl i NI R 2 24
auditor
— audit and related services — %R ARRTS 5.0
— non-audit services — IERBRTE 1.7
Auditor’s remuneration for other auditors =AD& T H 1th 4% B 6D
— audit and related services — XA RS 4.2
— non-audit services — FERERTS 0.9
2019
HK$ million
BEET
Directors' fees EFHe 4.1
Other emoluments to directors EENAMME
— salaries and other benefits — He REMBF 35.3
— performance-based bonus — BEMAEAL 48.7
— retirement benefits scheme contributions  — 3& #i@ Il 5+ Bl £ 2% 4.5
92.6
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Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and

AEBRARAEZRERTRABXNOME

the chief executives of the Company are as follows: IR ¢
2019
Retirement
benefits
Salariesand  Performance scheme
Director'sfee ~ other benefits  based bonus  contributions Total
#eR BHER
Ezhe AR N BE L5 @it
HKS million ~ HKSmillon ~ HKSmillion ~ HKS million ~ HKS million
BEAT BERT BERT BERT BERT
(note )
(W)
Executive directors: A4ES:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRaEL(IR)
(Chairman) 0.2 5.9 7.4 0.6 14.1
Mr. Wong Siu-Ke, Kent ERRRE
(Managing Director) (E244%) 0.2 5.9 8.4 0.6 15.1
Dr. Cheng Chi-kong, Adrian ~~ BIERIBL 0.2 2.4 35 0.6 6.7
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy B854 0.2 3.1 3.8 0.6 7.7
Mr. Cheng PingHei, Hamilton ~ BRE %4 0.2 8.3 4.7 0.8 9.0
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Rt 854 0.2 3.8 5.8 0.3 10.1
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEgrs 0.2 3.0 4.1 0.3 7.6
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert RE4LE 0.2 2.9 38 0.3 7.2
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BEALE 0.2 2.9 4.2 0.3 7.6
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wison ~ E$818% 4 (Hiti)
[note i) - - - _ _
Non-executive director: FHEE:
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wison B85 4 (ki)
(note i 0.2 2.1 2.0 0.1 4.4
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia BEZRL (i)
note i) - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES:
directors:
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BEAEL 0.4 - 0.2 = 0.6
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EEREL 0.4 - 0.2 - 0.6
Mr. Kwong CheKeung, Gordon ~ B %4 0.5 - 0.2 = 0.7
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul B354 0.4 - 0.2 - 0.6
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey s St 0.4 - 0.2 - 0.6
Ms. Cheng KarLai, Lily (note )~ BZE %+ (Miztiv) - _ _ _ _
Total oy 4.1 .3 48.7 4.5 92.6
Notes: BT
(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group’s financial results (i) BRI AA R EEBRACENGEEEREERE

BREE -

and directors’ performance decided by the management of the Group.

WP EEBE2019F4 B 1 HREBERNITES -

(ii) Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson was re-designated as an executive director with effect (ii)
from 1 April 2019.

BEZLTH2019F4 81 FRERERIFENTES -

(iii) Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia was appointed as a non-executive director with effect (iii)
from 1 April 2019.

BREXLTH2019F4 81 ARERERBE LN TES -

(iv) Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily was appointed as an independent non-executive director with (iv)
effect from 1 April 2019.

EXARZATEEHE T EAMBEREER
RERAEEEBHRERS - EXFARZIERTT
BEERBIUFRTESHE I BEAURSEESR
NAEFBEA

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Financials
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Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2019:
five) of the Company, details of whose emoluments are
included above.

During the years ended 31 March 2020, no (2019: no)
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors, the chief executives and
employees) as compensation for loss of office and as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group. 10 of the
directors (2019: nil) have waived emoluments of HK$0.9
million (2019: nil) during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Emoluments of senior management

Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid
individuals disclosed above, the emoluments of the senior
management whose profiles are included in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” section fell within the
following bands:

AEmENEAL
IEREMEALTEBEARAAREE(2019
FRA)  REFHMFFBEHER LX -

HZE2020F3A31 HILFE - REBEWHE(2019 ¢
E)RAARAEZRESTBRABRAEESHE
AT(BREES S5 TBABRES) B
& MEABEBMAHERRSIFEZMANE
MAXSEER AR - #E2020F3 A31 HIEF
B 10BEE(2019F : T)KE0IBERE T
(20194 : =) %l -

BEREBASMSE
BRIREERAEREMEATOMSI) SR
ERANE(BEHEN [EERSREEABEN]
—E)MME TSN FTHHE :

Number of individuals

BERE
2019
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000% 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L %= 2,000,000 /% 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T % 2,500,000 7% 7T 6
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T % 3,000,000 7% 7T 1
10
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2019

HK$ million
BEAT
The taxation charge comprises: HIER B
Current tax: BNVERTHIE -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") in B A1 R FTE
Mainland China 1,035.8
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEMNEH 289.7
Macau complementary tax SBPIFSRHAER 60.5
Taxation in other jurisdictions HhRAi @ 2 BB 35
1,389.5
(Over)/underprovision in prior years: BAEE (BBEEE) BERE
EIT in Mainland China PR AR ERER 25.7
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERMEH 111.5
Taxation in other jurisdictions HibE AR 2 BHE 2.4
139.6
Deferred tax charge (note 21) EEFHBRL (H3E21) 114.8
Withholding tax* A * 24.1
1,668.0

* Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and
interest income from Mainland China subsidiaries.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law") of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 256% for both years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China,
they are entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the
development of the western part of Mainland China. The
applicable tax rate is 15% for both years.

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum
progressive rate of 12% on the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

Financials
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* BEHREEEEEADERARERA K BAHHE Q[ H
BUWAREMB -

MEFEA - BEFEE IR G EREUE AR
16.5% X E o

REFEARLKNE ((HE ) EEMAETEREE
HEARA - B AR A B B R RIS /R25% o

AR R T B R B R R B B A P
BRHTIAEE - MEFENERNESER15% -

MEFEERN @ BRI EH TR IR R SRR
e RERER12%E -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

FABIESHA]

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or U

loss as follows:

a0 2% HO B B0 A1 ) 1 Bk

2019
HK$ million
BEET
Profit before taxation B B4 Al V4 ) 6,352.0
Tax at the applicable income tax rate: BEAFSHRERTENFE
(Mainland China: 25%; Hong Kong: (FREIAHE - 25% : BB : 16.5% :
16.5%; Macau: 12%) B 12%) 1,309.0
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for T AT RS2
tax purposes 18.1
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAZRHBANB ST E
tax purposes (48.2)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHEGEBNRETE 56.9
Utilisation of tax losses previously AL AR ERNTIEESE
not recognised (28.0)
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives & /1 & ﬁqtﬁﬁﬁ%@aﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁ&
granted to certain subsidiaries in BENONBTE
Mainland China (23.7)
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of /B i} B 2 7] 7k 2 Ik i F FE A B
subsidiaries in Mainland China 202.2
(Over)/underprovision in prior years BATE (BEEE) BETR 139.6
Withholding tax BIOH 241
Others Hit 18.0
Taxation charge for the year FRABEL H 1,668.0

At 31 March 2020, the Group has tax losses of HK$1,142.8
million (2019: HK$1,025.4 million) not recognised as deferred
tax assets. Tax effect of such tax losses as at 31 March 2020
was HK$227.6 million (2019: HK$188.6 million).

The aging of unrecognised tax losses by expiry date is as follows:

202053 A31H  NEBKRBERRELERIE
BEMKEEIEAE1,1428H 85 L (20194 :
1,025 4B EB L) - ZMIBEIER 202063 A
INAMBETE B2768 8B L(2019%F :
1886 EEAIL) °

REIH B S D RFERHIREBEORENT

2019

HK$ million

BEET

0-5 years 0-5%F 209.6
11-15 years 11-154F

16-20 years 16-204F 607.7

Unlimited REFR 208.1

1,025.4

At 31 March 2020, the Group has deductible temporary M2020F3A31H AEBARBERAELEHE

differences of HK$5.1 million (2019: HK$12.9 million) not
recognised as deferred tax assets. Tax effect of such
deductible temporary differences as at 31 March 2020 was

HK$0.8 million (2019: HK$2.1 million).
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Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5% (2019:
5% to 10%) is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
profits earned by subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1
January 2008 onwards. Based on the dividend distribution
plan of the management, retained profits as at 31 March
2020 amounting to HK$7,791.2 million (2019: HK$7,685.9
million) will be distributed as dividend in the foreseeable
future, while the remaining retained profits amounting to
HK$2,991.7 million (2019: HK$5,672.4 million) has been set
aside for reinvestment and will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year and on the number of
10,000,000,000 (2019: 10,000,000,000) shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there was no potential ordinary share dilution during
both years.

BERFBEMSEMEEE - FRAMAMNEARA
BB 20084 1 A 1 B RRFTHRIUE FI7E 5 K AR 2.0
B2 5% (20194 1 5% £10%) 2 FBHF - RIE
EREMNREDIKETE - R202063 A31HK
REBERMA £7,79128 8 & £(2019F :
7,685.9 B BB L) BER RAFRIEAREDIR
MR T REBHFA£2,991.7EEBT(20194F -
5672.4B8BET) EREEBRBKRERE  T81E
A RERDIK ©

FEEREAEFNZENAR B IR EEFAL
EaA - LERFAEEITH 10,000,000,000
A% (20194 : 10,000,000,000 %) 5T & -

A R B 5 E 3 B 1 SRR BUE - S
BERNEASREARZNER -

2019
HK cents per
share HK$ million
BREA HEET
Dividends paid and RERZFRERBD K
recognised as distribution ZRE
during the year
For current year: KEE :
— Interim dividends — FREIR B 15.0 1,500.0
For prior year: FFE:
— Final dividends — RHIKRE 15.0 1,500.0
— Special dividends — BRIE 30.0 3,000.0
6,000.0

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of HK12.0 cents (2019: a final dividend of HK20.0
cents and a special dividend of HK30.0 cents) per share,
totalling HK$1,200.0 million (2019: HK$5,000.0 million) in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2020 have been
proposed by the directors of the Company and are subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Financials
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RIEHRE - NARESEEMEE2020F 3
B31 B IEFERMAABEREFK12.081L(2019
FORER B FR20.08 1L RS E TR
30.0% L)+ A #£1,200.08 & % (20194 :
5,000.0 B&EABTT)  HEGFRERERERREF
KRG EBETEESE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. W&, W b5 Be ik i

Furniture, Leasehold
Land and Plantand fixtures and improve- Motor  Construction
buildings machinery equipment ments vehicles in progress Total
A HE
T REF R R#EE RERRE NEEE RE EEIR @it

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEERL BBER BEER BBEL BBEL HEET BEEL

Cost BA
At 1 April 2018 201854718 41151 503.1 2,547.8 2,7915 53.4 430.7 10,4416
Currency realignment ERAE (236.6) (89.6) (202.4) (173.4) (2.2) (15.8) (720.0)
Additions NE 182.4 54.8 485.0 4352 93 2121 1,378.8
Transfer B 398.0 18.7 19.0 212 - (456.9) -
Disposals HE - (26.1) (236.1) (145.6) (5.0) = (412.8)
At 31 March 2019, R 201943 A31 4,458.9 460.9 2,613.3 2,928.9 55.5 1701 10,687.6

as previously presented (ZRIEEF)
Effect on adoption of IFRS 16 RERE RS

(note 2.2) F165%07 28 (f1£2.2) (551.6) - - - - - (551.6)
At 1 April 2019, as adjusted R2019E4 18 (KA%) 3,907.3 460.9 2,613.3 2,928.9 55.5 1701 10,136.0
Currency realignment BRRE (215.0) (28.6) (69.3) (166.7) (2.6) (6.7) (488.9)
Avising from acquisition AU BB AR

of subsidiaries (note 38) if 2 £ (P71 38) 3.0 0.6 1.2 13.0 0.1 - 179
Additions NE 05 26.1 526.2 309.1 6.9 80.9 949.7
Transfer 343 180.7 9.5 39 20.7 - (214.8) -
Disposals HE (23) (5.2) (207.3) (129.8) (5.1) - (349.7)
At 31 March 2020 R202063A31R 3,874.2 463.3 2,868.0 2,975.2 54.8 29.5 10,265.0

Accumulated depreciation REAEREE
and impairment

At 1 April 2018 20184811 826.7 151.8 1,890.6 2,188.5 433 - 5,100.9
Currency realignment BRI (62.7) (28.0) (209.2) (138.2) (1.6) = (439.7)
Depreciation provided for the year X7 & & & 210.6 437 331.2 294.6 5.0 - 885.1
Eliminated on disposals HEMH - (22.5) (191.4) (128.0) (4.8) - (346.7)
At 31 March 2019, 7201943 A 31

as previously presented (ZBIB25)) 974.6 145.0 1,821.2 2,216.9 419 - 5,199.6
Effect on adoption of IFRS 16 BB B R 8

(note 2.2) F165t 0% 8 (f1:2.2) (80.0) - - - - - (80.0)
At 1 April 2019, as adjusted R201964 518 (KRAR) 894.6 145.0 1,821.2 2,216.9 4.9 - 5,119.6
Currency realignment ERAE (54.5) (9.7) (39.6) (129.2) (1.9) - (234.9)
Depreciation provided for the year R E & & 191.6 473 315 359.0 5.6 - 975.0
Impairment provided for the year 4 R A&/ 0.4 - 12.6 - - - 13.0
Eliminated on disposals HEM (1.9) (3.7) (135.1) (103.4) (4.9) - (249.0)
At 31 March 2020 R®2020%€3 8318 1,030.2 178.9 2,030.6 2,3433 40.7 - 5,623.7
Carrying values IREE
At 31 March 2020 M202063A31H 2,844.0 284.4 837.4 631.9 14.1 295 4,641.3
At 31 March 2019 R®2019€3 8318 3,484.3 315.9 792.1 712.0 136 1701 5,488.0

The carrying values of the Group’s properties (including AEEYE(REEEIR) NERESTET ¢

construction in progress) are analysed as follows:

2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET BEET
In Mainland China AR B A3 2,500.4 2,783.4
In Hong Kong REE 373.1 871.0
2,873.5 3,654.4
Annual Report 2020 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 223
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14. Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liabilities 14. {55 FHRE & i B P65 £ A

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) MEEUBRAREIZHEEHE
statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows AR REATEAERSBNSENT ¢

the following amounts relating to leases:

Leasehold land/
land use rights

) Office,

(note i) warehouse and

BENE/ others
Right-of-use assets EREEE Retail stores BAE BB Total
EREEE (HfaEi) ZER REM @it
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER BEERT BEER

At 31 March 2019, R201963H31H

as previously presented (ZBIE25) = = - -
Effect on adoption of IFRS 16 AN BIPR B 75 3R 5 22 A

(note 2.2) F16%HMTE (H:E2.2) 648.8 2,104.7 114.8 2,868.3
At 1 April 2019, as adjusted R2019F4 A1 8 (£HE) 648.8 2,104.7 114.8 2,868.3
Currency realignment B (10.4) (31.1) (2.2) (43.7)
Additions NE - 1,089.4 41.7 1,131.1
Depreciation provided for the year FRFTERE (i)

(note i) (30.4) (1,256.1) (51.0) (1,337.5)
Impairment provided for the year FRRERE (i)

(note iii) (15.6) (34.8) = (50.4)
Surrender RE - (279.8) - (279.8)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 592.4 1,592.3 103.3 2,288.0
Lease liabilities HK$ million
HESE BEBET
At 31 March 2019, as previously presented K2019%3 A31 B (ZAEZ5) =
Effect on adoption of IFRS 16 (note 2.2) FANBIBR B i 5 2RI 16 R 2 B (Mif7E2.2) 2,331.0
At 1 April 2019, as adjusted R2019%4 A1 R (KHAE) 2,331.0
Currency realignment B (34.0)
Lease payment HEE (1,331.9)
Interest expenses e 68.9
Additions NE 1,121.5
Surrender RE (358.4)
At 31 March 2020 7K 202063 A31H 1,797.1

At 31 March 2020 At 1 April 2019
20203 A31H A2019F481H8
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBRT BEBET
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current M Eh 896.8 1,056.4
Non-current FERE 900.3 1,274.6
1,797 .1 2,331.0
Notes: B -
(i) The Group has land lease arrangement with Mainland China government and () AEEEAEAKFTELAERHE  REBHRS
leasehold land in Hong Kong. FHE L -
(i) The amount was charged to selling and distribution cost and general and (i) SEAAHERDHAARE—RRITHAX -
administrative expenses.
(i)~ The amount was charged to other expenses. (i) MW AHMEAL -
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the
following amounts relating to the leases which are not
capitalised in accordance with IFRS 16:

(b)

REFEHRBEREZHEH

GeEaRBNEBAEAEM AR ZER
MBMELF16RENCHERLT

2019
HK$ million
BBET

Expense relating to short-term leases £ig
(included in selling and distribution costs ﬁ
and general and administrative
expenses)

Expense relating to variable lease
payments not included in lease liabilities
(included in selling and distribution costs)

DIPAR)

HHEFENRX GTAHER
SRR AR A B — R R AT X)

WIFABREBEEFHEENK
BRANFAX GTAHEER

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
March 2020 was HK$3,168.2 million.

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices
and warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of six months to five years, but may
have extension options as described below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a store. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons,
including minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group's operations.
The majority of extension and termination options held
are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. In determining the lease term,
management considers all facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

Annual Report 2020

2020 F R

(c)

(d)

(e)

HZE2020F3A3MHItEFEHENR S
M A3,1682BEHETT -

SEZHEFHRENRGE
Kﬁligﬁg%ﬁi%E WMRAERE

cHEAYNBEERANAEARE ﬂﬁZ.E
/HHEEETTL MR REE A T X ATl 2 i
b

Hmﬁz EREERH  YEESET
ITE’J GR BRARAT o B 1 T hlE T R
\ﬁtlﬂﬁ/\%ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬂiaﬁﬁ‘qﬂ H AR
é[‘%ﬁl\ - HERENMSHEEREMAIELR o

SENFHE R

B MEREE S BEHSHEE RN
Ec@)ﬁ?ﬂb@\ FRZFEA RGN R

m @Tﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]lmﬁkzﬁg
cRHEBEAENZHHEENRRFTE

FEH EI’JIﬂfFZHﬂF'EJE’]TEmWﬁEu IN: R

EERZIETHERIZE

AEEFETHENYERE S NIEH
RIFTHERERE - Ex%i&%?ﬁaﬁ$%

l%i‘%“‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ?iﬁﬁﬁﬁT BRIt
BENTRN - REMI/FAENTEE R L
HERE ?%%1%7332!&‘%.17193 I I E
HBEATTRE - £l EHME - BEEEEE
BREAELERBHAAEERIEN - A
THREERESREREITTRALAER
B AFEHEVSBEERTES (K
TR BT EEEERER
(R IR EBRERAOER)
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15. Investment Properties 15. L&MW
2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEBAET
Cost 5%
At 1 April K418 285.0 285.0
Currency realignment EEAR (0.3) =
Arising from acquisition E U BB B~ |l E
of subsidiaries (note 38) (FI5E38) 17.8 -
At 31 March M3 A31H 302.5 285.0
Accumulated depreciation RBIINE
At 1 April R4 818 65.8 51.5
Depreciation provided for the year FRITEBE 11.3 14.3
At 31 March MR3A31H 771 65.8
Carrying values REE
At 31 March M3A31H 225.4 219.2
(a) Amounts recognised in consolidated (a) MEEPENGEESREDRNE
statement of profit or loss for investment ]
properties
2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEART
Rental income from operating leases KEFHERS WA 15.3 12.4
Direct operating expenses from property ZE4 A4 W A% 2
that generated rental income BEEKERY 15.1 16.9
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

B %

ARBHREEEER QA



(b)

(c)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group's investment
properties at the end of the reporting period have been
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
(note 34). The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique.

Details of the Group's investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy at the end of
each reporting period are as follows:

(b) AREFR
AEERBERRREMENRAENE
ENR=ZEAAEEMR(MEEI4) - DA
AENERANDBRESE[MERMD A
MBABRNABEREREENRETE -

AEERERERRNEENEFBLE
BARESENERNT

Fair value hierarchy Fair value
AREER ARE
2019
HK$ million
BEER
At 31 March W3 A31H
Industrial property units RBEAH I Level 3

located in Hong Kong LE= v F=H 375.8

The Group policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of
the reporting period.

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the period (2019: nil).

Valuation process and techniques used to
determine level 3 fair values

The Group engages external, independent and qualified
valuers to determine the fair value of the Group's
investment properties at the end of every financial
year. As at 31 March 2020, the fair values of the
investment properties have been determined by Knight
Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”).

The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units
of the properties are assessed and capitalised at the
market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units
of the properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar properties in
Hong Kong and adjusted to take into account the
market expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group's investment properties.

Annual Report 2020
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AEENBRENRERRER A EERZHH
BAREL -

HR £ F-_REAF=FELLIEHHR
(20194 : f&) -

EEXE=RLARENKHERFRS
&
REEINEBEY A EREEMEEAEERR
ENMERBEMBFEERBENAAE R
202053 A31H - KB ERTARIDA
(59 ) EEEREMENARE

(c)

ZAREIRBRAEME - ZEWEZ
AR HBEM TSHESRREEMIL
BYMEBEH 2 5 W RFERERE -
MSHE2EZENEATHEELZES
A T #8850 U0 36 B0 EL At th AR 1B R VR RY
e BRMEETISEDM BB BUDEE
EXGMEBZRARMEE  UtWEL
Bz i RHELREARRAEE R
EMEBEZHEE -
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(¢) Valuation process and techniques used to (c) BEEF=ZHRLAAENKERFRES
determine level 3 fair values (continued) i (1)
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the RAEZEMENDIAER  ZEWEZ
highest and best use of the properties is their current use. BEkEERERAREENAR -
Valuation Range of inputs (probability- Relationship of unobservable
Description techniques Unobservable inputs* weighted average) inputs to fair value
it RER*E ENGE-23 PN ¢ A WARBHE(BX — MEFY) FTTERGARBRAARE
2019 =B
Industrial properties Income approach Capitalisation rate 3.8% The higher the
units — Hong Kong capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value
T¥EME WA & BERfpE ERfbEHS  DAE
B —FE MR
Monthly market HK$10.4 p.s.f. The higher the price per
rent square feet, the higher
the fair value
GAMSHES BEFR GERERES AAE
10487 #&
*  There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that * TABRAARBR AL BATREVEALENERNBRE -
materially affect fair values.
(d) Leasing arrangements (d) HE=H
The investment properties are leased to tenants under KREMERKEHEHBATHS - §AF
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. WERA S
Although the Group is exposed to changes in the BEAEBRREHBEREARESRE
residual value at the end of the current leases, the BE) EAEE—REITLAKEHEE
Group typically enters into new operating leases and UL 7 FE B 4 TR R S 2 BB # RR (B AL TR 2
therefore will not immediately realise any reduction in e WARKMBENTBEHRERENDENRD
residual value at the end of these leases. Expectations A~
about the future residual values are reflected in the fair
value of the properties.
For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of BRAREMERENKEERKEENK
investment properties, refer to note 30. B2 BT EE30 ©
2019
HK$ million
BEAET
Cost X AN 257.8
Accumulated impairment Z:EE -
Carrying values BREAE

257.8

The goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hearts On Fire

Company, LLC (“Hearts On Fire”) included amounts in

relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue

growth, future market development and the assembled

workforce of Hearts On Fire.

Financials
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U 8% Hearts On Fire Company, LLC ([Hearts
On Fire]) EAMEEREHETEBRB R - |
R - BEMIS %R K& Hearts On Fire &
BAFHANZEENSRE -
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The recoverable amount of the Hearts On Fire is determined
based on value-in-use calculations which uses discounted
future cash flow projections derived from financial forecasts
covering a five year period with cash flows beyond this
period extrapolated using rates of growth not exceeding
historic levels. Forecast profitability has regard to past
performance and expected future changes in costs and
sales. The combined effect of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the current market situations uplifted the Group's weighted
average cost of capital (“WACC") and therefore reduced the
present value of forecasted cash flows. Future cash flows
are discounted at pre-tax rate of 15.6% to 18.0% (equivalent
to post-tax WACC of 13.0% to 13.5%) (2019: pre-tax: 15.1%
to 17.3%, post-tax of 11.0% to 13.0%).

In Mainland China, sales are expected to grow steadily with
the store expansion plan and cash flow projections are based
on similar gross margin in both years. In the opinion of the
directors, no impairment loss was required for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, sales are expected
to recover slowly in the coming five years, with a perpetual
growth rate of 3.0% thereafter (2019: estimated growth rate
range of 5.0% to 10.0% until 2024 and 3.0% thereafter),
while the gross profit margins are expected to be stable.
Besides, coupled with the higher WACC, the recoverable
amount of goodwill is less than its carrying value, therefore
the Group has recorded an impairment loss of HK$26.3
million during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

Hearts On Fire 8 AU Bl & 58 THAR B2 6 A (BB i
FTRHE (R A 2K B % & 7 5F B 7% 78 R 69 A€ AL 2R
RKEBFERETEA - BBAZHANRES REUTE
BBAKTRIEREMER)METE - BFEND
TR & £ BRI KA R E BB R FEEAARIR
E) 20198 RESRBENRKMRNEE
BRSTAEENNEFHEARBKAR - Eifnkd
AR SRENRE - RRRSWERBIAILL X
15.6% % 18.0% (FHZER B & MM T E R A
#13.0% £13.5%) BF FH (20194 : i Al :
15.1% %E17.3% * #i#% : 11.0% £213.0%) °

KB At - BEEERERT B EE - RAHEE
gRSER  BEREBWHNAMEFEKFEE
MENXSER - BEERR BE20206 %
201943 A31 B IFFEHAEHMERRE -

RES  RFAREMTES  EifHERAREF
CEEMER BROKEEREA3.0%
(20194 : EE2024 E W1 E R X A55.0%
£10.0% * H%53.0%) c MEMRH B S
RIBIEBE - B0 M EESHMNEFHERK
AN HENAKRESEOREREE  BitAE
B # £2020463 831 8 I F E#&E5REEE
26.3E&EBIT(20194F : &) -

2019
HK$ million
BEAT
Cost AR
At 1 April and 31 March R4F1BKR3A31H 472.9
Accumulated amortisation B §
At 1 April n481H 166.5
Amortisation provided for the year FE R 52.7
At 31 March M3 A31H 219.2
Carrying values BRMEE
At 31 March M3 A31H 253.7

The trademarks and patents are amortised with useful life of
6 to 15 years.
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The amounts represent the aggregate cost of gem-set
jewellery collectibles held by the Group which are designated
not for sale. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,

the recoverable amounts of the jewellery collectibles are at

least equivalent to their carrying amounts as at the end of

the reporting period.

ZARIATE AR EFEIEE RIEE MR E B R
BMPEZERA  c ARREZRR
AR ESRESSNRERROKEE -

KEDRE

(a) Investments in associates (a) MEEIZEATIZIRE
2019
HK$ million
BEAT
At 1 April H4A81H -
Currency realignment B -
Acquisition =N -
Share of profits FEAR & A -
Dividends received B U E -
At 31 March M3 A31H =

Details of the associates of the Group are as follows:

REBEMB 2 ABFHBHINNAT

Place of incorporation/

Proportion of

Proportion of

establishment and ownership interest voting rights held
Name of companies principal place of operation held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
EMAL/ BRI BER AEEFAEEER EEBATE
ARER E3:3-£5.4 [ $:3:4']] REELH TEER
2019 2019
Beijing Wolafei Jewellery Mainland China - —  Manufacturing of jewellery
Company Limited FEl A products
T RBEAFEHERRAA REEMEE
CTF Business Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 30.0% 28.6% Operating an online
BABEKERERAF Bk shopping platform
meRrENTA
Group Program Limited British Virgin Islands 40.0% 40.0% Operating a customer
("BVI") loyalty scheme in
REARRES Hong Kong and
Mainland China
REE KA E R
REBHETE
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Mainland China 30.0% 28.6% Operating a shopping
Hong Kong Goods Centre H B 8t complex in Mainland China
Company Limited R E R A BB L

RIFEAXREE R OERAT
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(a)

(b)

Investments in associates (Continued) (a) MREZEATZHE &
Each individual associate does not have a significant & BB ’éﬁ%’/}jlﬂ;ﬁﬂiﬁﬂ’ﬂ%%&ﬁ?f
financial impact on the Group's results and financial BRABKERNTBEZE - JRTBEKR
position. Aggregate financial information of associates RHEtE AR 2 MEEREFTAT ¢
that are individually immaterial is as follows:
2019
HK$ million
BEET
Aggregate carrying amount of ERIRNEEDNE ) NG|

individually immaterial associates ZEEmEBAE
Aggregate amounts of the Group's
share of:

Profit from continuing operations

FRECE TR 5 A

REBFAE TS RWAER

Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk =
Total comprehensive income 2EWE=BRE -

The Group had discontinued recognising its share of
losses of associates because its cumulative share of
losses in the associates had exceeded the investment
cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
The Group will not resume recognition of its share of
any future profits in the associates until its share of
such profits equals the cumulative share of losses not
recognised in past years.

AEECRUEAEEBEBRERRER -
ARHEZAAEAEEAFBRECBBKRE
PRASR E 1 REHRIERE - EASE RIS
B8 R B ER AR SORF SR BEFE AR
REOREEBER - AEEE T2 RE

ﬁ@n?u%%/ﬁnﬂ

The amounts of unrecognised share of losses of the FARRFTHRBERELEHEQREES
associates for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: HOT -
2019
HK$ million
BEET
Unrecognised share of losses REREEEERT
of associates 18.6
Accumulated unrecognised share of Bt RERE(RE SN R EE
losses of associates 52.1
Amounts due from associates (b) FEWEZEATIRIE

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying value of amounts
due from associates of HK$40.0 million (2019: HK$54.7
million) is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms. Other than that, an amount of
HK$17.5 million (2019: nil) which bears interest at 4.2%
per annum will be repaid to the Group by instalments
until 30 September 2024.

Annual Report 2020

2020 F R

7202043 A31 H - FEULHEE A & FRIA
B EREE40.08 & # 7L (20194 : 54.7
BEAET)REER RBRREEEE
BH Btz 1758 8% (2019
FEB)AFA2% FMNELBOHEET
REEE2024F9 301 -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAMTE

‘ 231



232

Loan receivables represent loans to staff and an amount due
from a private entity (the “Issuer”) which is principally
engaged in agriculture and wholesale of pearls in Australia.
Loan receivables are classified as current or non-current
assets based on contractual terms and taking into account
the timing of recovery as expected by the management.
There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any loss allowance
made against the principal amount or interest on these loans
at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

All loan receivables from staff were secured over certain
properties, the fair value of which exceeds the carrying

amount of the related loan on an individual basis.

As at 31 March 2020, loan receivable from the Issuer has a

BUEEFEETERRER-—REZERMEE

DIREEA R BN EER ([HTADMNFIE -
JEREFIRE A IR R E B EEEBEMFIADN

AEEENES BRRDKERDEE - ¥

202053 A31H k20193 A31H - H?)HEE
FBMERNEFIR - TMEERBEERANKRER

REHFHE -

2HEWETERENE TYEERR - MEQ
/Mﬁﬂﬁ s AR E R REE o

R202063 8310 BRETAEFRNASH

principal amount of Australian Dollar (“AUS") 1.6 million A16BEERIT(2019F : 2088 RT) ~ F4
(2019: AUS2.0 million), bears interest at 7.0% (2019: 7.0%) RET0% (20194 : 7.0%) » WD HENF
per annum and will be repaid to the Group by instalments AREBZE2021F8H31H -
until 31 August 2021.
The followings are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities NTARAFERBTFEASEDER i
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the EHRIE(EE) AEARE@EES
current and prior years:
Withholding
tax on Unrealised
undistributed Amortisation ~ Amortisation fair value
profits of and and change of
subsidiaries Unrealised  depreciati preciati gold loans Others Others
in Mainland profiton  (deferredtax  (deferredtax  in Mainland (deferred tax  (deferred tax
China inventories assets) liabilities) China Tax losses assets) liabilities) Total
SERLHE BURNE  ERERFE  SEANES i) Hb
RARAE HEz  (BEWE  (BERE fHEZRER (BE®E  (EESE
RAZEOR  AEREA EE) %) AnEEY HEFS EE) 8% it
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HKS million
BEER BEER BE#T BEAT BEER BE#T BEAT BEAT BEER
At 1 April 2018 R2018%4 518 4138 (236.7) (283) 75 73 (153) (203) - 1280
Currency realignment EHAR (27.3) 8.2 - - (04) - 2.7 (1.3) (18.1)
Charge/(credit) to profit or %/ GtA) B%
loss (note 10) (R=E10) 202.2* (518) 08 (7.5) 7.1) (1.0 (782) 574 11438
Utilised during the year ERER (188.4) - - - - - - - (188.4)
At31 March 2019, R201953A31R
as previously presented (ZRBE5) 4003 280.3) (27.5) - (02) (16.3) (95.8) 56.1 363
Effect on adoption of IFRS 16 SR 41 BB 81 kR 5 228
(note 2.2) F16RHPE
(Pz2.2) - - (234) - - - - - (234)
At1Apri 2019, as adjusted % 20194 A 18
(8% 400.3 (280.3) (50.9) = (0.2) (163 (95.8) 56.1 129
Currency realignment e (25.0 6.4 03 (32) 42 - 58 (19 (134)
Charge/(credit) to profit or %/ GtA)B%
loss (note 10) (RzE10) 208.0* 272 (25.1) 1188 (154.9) 91 04 (54.2) 1493
Utilised during the year FRFEA (2138) - - - - - - - (2138)
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31R 3895 (246.7) (75.7) 115.6 (150.9) (7.2) (89.6) = (65.0)
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* Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to
foreign investors in respect of profits eared by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain
subsidiaries of the Group and reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of these
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend payments.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

* O REBEPBECEMAEHE - 5200851 A1BE - AgthEAKE
RERBEEMRIMTEEBIREE - 9RBUK10% 2 8B -

BRAEEE THEARREGTEAMBANILAEREGRE D

T E BT R SR D B AR 5% BN TS
ZIEMB

AT 78 3451 75 98 45 3 1 H 5 OB A 4
S -

2019
HK$ million
AEE
Deferred tax assets BRERIBEE (420.1)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 456.4
36.3
2019
HK$ million
BEERT

Raw materials for: EENTERBRME
Gem-set jewellery KB EHR A 5,810.6
Gold products ESEM 1,719.0
Platinum/karat gold products e KeEM 391.6
7,921.2

Finished goods: IRk

Gem-set jewellery KB E 15,683.5
Gold products HEEM 11,706.6
Platinum/karat gold products e KEEM 2,443.7
Watches ik 1,672.2
31,406.0
Packaging materials BEYR 158.9
39,486.1

Inventories recognised as cost of goods sold during the year
ended 31 March 2020 amounted to HK$38,333.7 million

(2019: HK$46,723.5 million).

The Group utilised HK$24.1 million of a previous inventory
write-down (2019: HK$113.5 million). These were recognised
in cost of goods sold during the year ended 31 March 2020
and 2019 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2019

HK$ million
BHEAT
Trade receivables g 5 rEWFIE 3,951.8
Less: Loss allowance B iR (68.4)
3,883.4
Prepayments to suppliers ) 4 8 7 B A 5K0E 357.1
Deposits B 441.7
Other tax recoverables H b ] Uy [O] £ 18 1,847.4
Others HAi 109.1

6,638.7

As at 31 March 2020, trade receivables of HK$45.6 million
(2019: HK$53.9 million) are due from entities in which certain
directors of the Company, who are also shareholders of the
Company, have beneficial interests in those entities.

The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly cash sales
and credit card sales. Sales to certain customers are on
credit with credit period up to 6 months. For sales through
concessionaire counters, the Group usually allows 30 days
credit period to these receivables.

R2020F3A31H ' B RKRIELAS.6 BEE
T(2019% : b3.9OBEBET) REARARIETE
E(MRARABRR)FEEGED 2 HEE -

AEEHTERTNHEURSHERERRH
ERET MAETERENHSARELX - &
EMRZR6MEA - AEENHEENS  A%KE
—RUZEERBFTIRLE TI0AMNEES -

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables INTRIBEZEZEARZEY  RRESRNEFHE
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the IWRIEM BRER DA -
reporting period:
2019
HK$ million
BEET
0 to 30 days 0=30H 3,128.3
31 to 90 days 31290H 603.6
91 to 180 days 91&180H 88.1
Over 180 days 180 BLA E 63.4

3,883.4

As at 31 March 2020, included in the trade receivable
balances are receivables of HK$682.3 million (2019:
HK$509.1 million) carrying a fixed interest rate ranging from
7.4% 10 9.4% (2019: 6.4% to 8.5%) per annum.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a loss allowance of
HK$3.2 million is written back (2019: HK$27.5 million was
recognised) based on expected credit loss. Information about
the impairment of trade receivables and the Group's
exposure to credit risk are set out in note 33.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the bank deposits
carry interest at the prevailing market rate ranging from
0.01% to 5.50% (2019: 0.01% to 5.50%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB were HK$3,271.8 million (2019:
HK$1,961.8 million) in which HK$1,192.0 million (2019:
HK$838.2 million) were held by entities in Hong Kong. The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in
Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
authorised banks to conduct business in foreign currency.

BZE202063A31HIEFE  RITIFFRIKER
W5 FEFENF0.01%%E5.50% (20194F :
F0.01% £5.50%) 5T & °

M202063A31H - "REBEZARKIIENSR
e RReEFBYWRI271.8B 8B T(2019F -
1,961 8E &HB L) 9119208 8% T
(20194 : 8382E B BT ) HBEEREA -
ARBI AT ARLBRAEMEY AT - BRI
AR B A 3t B o B SN B R A DI e A B - R EE
NEEERE - AEBEEEBEFFFRITETI
BET BARELBRBINE -

2019

HK$ million

BEAT

Trade payables B S ERMRIE 574.1

Contract liabilities AHEE 1,218.4
Deposits received from franchisees and BEMNEEEBERRBAZES

customers 7,214.0

Other tax payables Eh S B IR 406.3

Accruals fEEtEA 436.6

Accrued staff costs FEET B TR 610.5

Interest payables FERHFIE 8.0

Others Efh 2164

10,684.3

Deposits received from franchisees and customers mainly
represent deposits made by franchisees in Mainland China
for the consigned products. The amounts are unsecured and
interest-free.

Annual Report 2020
2020 5 3§

BINEREEFREE RS T 2EHE AN E
HRERTEEMRAIN2ES - ZFARER
ARRE -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAMTE

235



236 ‘

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of
each reporting period:

AEE-REEHERRSNEERAN TR
£180RTE - U TARBEERRMEIINS W
EHRNE B RN FIRM RRER DT -

2019
HK$ million
BEET
0 to 30 days 0&230H 542.0
31 to 90 days 31&290H 19.2
91 to 180 days 91£180H 3.8
Over 180 days 180 B LA E 9.1
5741
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to AEERERTIERBEESANEE :
contracts with customers:
2019
HK$ million
BEET
Contract liabilities: AHEE
Customer loyalty programme BERBETE 181.0
Receipts in advance TEURIB 1,037.4
1,218.4

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year and the amount relating to
performance obligations that were satisfied in previous years:

TR BFNANABEFBARERREANE
FRSHANNBAFEEERNENEEZ SR

2019

HKS$ million

BEAT

Revenue recognised that was included in AAFUAEHNABEERE XS
the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year:

— Customer loyalty programme — BFEBHEE 66.9

— Receipts in advance — TEURFRIE 656.8

723.7
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25. Trade and Other Payables (continued) 25. ¥ %) B TLAth B A5F R 0 i)
The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied TEREVREXNBNERETEHE :
performance obligations:

%)

2020 2019

HK$ million HK$ million

BEER BEET

Expected to be recognised within one year  JEHRA —F N iER 976.4 986.5
Expected to be recognised after one year JEHIR — B TER 269.1 231.9

1,245.5 1,218.4

26. Amounts Due to Non-controlling Shareholders ~ 26. FE{F Fi i 2 w) F 15 1B 1Bt o 5Kk 3H
of Subsidiaries

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable HAREER AR RIBERKAFEE -
on demand.
27. Bank Borrowings 27. BUTEK
2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Unsecured bank loans EIERBITER
The carrying amounts are repayable* BEEEIL NOIHIREE * -
Within one year —FR 10,533.0 7,460.0
More than one year, but not exceeding —FL L BNBARTE
two years 597.6 1,998.8
More than two years, but not exceeding MEL L BRBRAF
five years 299.9 597.9
11,430.5 10,056.7
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. * BERETAERBEMET XA B AKE -
The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranging WITEFIRZBFAEGTE - FRERABBRIT
from 0.6% to 0.9% (2019: 0.6% to 0.9%) over Hong Kong RZEFEMNNTF0.6% Z£0.9% (20194 : 0.6%
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") per annum. £0.9%) °
As at 31 March 2020, the range of interest rates on the bank M2020F3 A31H - AARITERNFEREN
borrowings were 1.8% to 3.9% (2019: 2.1% to 2.5%) F1.8%%E3.9% (2019F : 2.1% £2.5%) °
per annum.
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are RITEREEENIA TEEE -

denominated in the following currencies:

2020 2019

HK$ million HK$ million

HEBT BEBT

HK$ BT 11,430.5 10,056.7
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Gold loans are borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations EREEEENERAEEEFES R ER
in gold prices on gold inventories. The amounts represent BBNHRE - ZFIBTVIERITER - MENFKIE
borrowing from banks and the amounts payable are pegged MESERES -

to gold prices.

2019
HK$ million
AHER
Financial liabilities at fair value BEARBEFABENESRMAE
through profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUARESEENESEE 3,081.4
Liabilities at fair value through BARBEFABEZNEE
profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold BUABEEESEENESESR 4,930.1
8,011.5
As at 31 March 2020, the gold loans carried fixed interest 202063 A31H 2B ERFFNE07%
rates of 0.7% to 2.3% (2019: 0.8% to 3.0%) per annum, 22.3% (20194 : 0.8% £3.0%) &y & & F| &
with original maturity of 1 to 6 months (2019: 1 week to 7 B REBBAREBRER1IE6MEA(20194F :
months) from date of inception. 1BRZE7@EA) -
The fair value of the gold loans are denominated in the HEEBEAAERNTERIIE :
following currencies:
2019
HK$ million
BEER
uss$ ETT 3,081.4
RMB AR 4,930.1
8,011.5
2019
HK$ million
BEBT
Authorised: SETE
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares 50,000,000,000 iz & & EE
of HK$1 each 1B Tz EBR 50,000.0
Issued and fully paid: EBEITRHE :
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000 M= E &
of HK$1 each 1 BTz EBR 10,000.0
There was no change in the Company's authorised, issued MEFERN - KRB ZEE « BBITRAERA
and fully paid capital in both years. BEmm ot o
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The Group as lessee

The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices and
warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within six months to five years. The leases have varying
terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal,
the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use
assets for these leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases, see note 2.28 and note 14 for further information.

FREEAREA
AEBRETAHHOEERELIZAESRT
&5 WAZREE  BERAEAZAFHE
We REHEFTRMEGER  MEGERKER
& - BHEE - BERREEHER -

o

H2019F4 1B AEBEERZSHERE
REMAREE R HAREEERERI 75
FMEE2.28 KMzt 14 -

2019
HK$ million
BEERT
Minimum lease payments under AR B RRERE B EBYERE
non-cancellable operating leases of A B E L HENRIRBEE M
rented premises not recognised NN
in the financial statements are as follows:
Within one year —F QR 1,246.5
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF(BEEBEMSE) 1,174.2
Over five years hF A& 320.4
2,741.1

Included in above are commitments to entities in which
certain directors* of the Company and their close family
member have beneficial interests:

AL RAAREETES RIRENE
BEA B T2 RdE

2019
HK$ million
BEAT

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZERF(BEEEMSE)
Over five years AFE

125.8
132.1
287.5

545.4

* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.
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The Group as lessor

The investment properties are leased to tenants under leases
with rentals payable monthly. For details of the leasing
arrangements, refer to note 15.

FEEEALEAN
REWMERBEASHLETEP - &8 7 WHAE
T - BERBELHFE - F2HME15 -

2019
HK$ million
BEET
Minimum lease payments receivable HEREMENSERBERHASEAHZAT :
on leases of investment properties
are as follows:
Within one year —FR 12.5
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZERF (BEEEMRF) 24.9
37.4
2019
HK$ million
BEET
Capital expenditure contracted but not TUEEDE - BERBREEETNER
provided for the acquisition of property, BENEARAX
plant and equipment 218.3

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, gold loans and equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital,
reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank borrowings
and gold loans.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods
adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses
are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets
and financial liabilities are disclosed in note 2.
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The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Categories of financial instruments

AEBEFEATSRTA

ST AREH

As 31 March 2020

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss

Amounts due from associates

#2020F3 A31H
SRMEE
RAREFABZHNEREE

JE U gt i 1 B 0R

Loan receivables FEWE K
Prepayment and deposits ENREBEREMN RS
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b UK
Cash and cash equivalents RekBESEED
Total financial assets SHMEELE
Financial liabilities SRas

Trade and other payables
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Bank borrowings
Gold loans to be repaid by cash
Lease liabilities

B 5 KA KA
JE A 2 R JE A A SRR R

RITEK
HARSEENESEER
HE&E

Total financial liabilities

ERAGERE

Financial assets/

Financial assets/

(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
RBHRATTEN RAREEMN
LREE(8F) LREE(BF) st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEET BEET
As 31 March 2019 R2019%F3A31AH
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at fair value RAAEFABZHNEREE
through profit and loss - 11.2 1.2
Amounts due from associates A€ NG E 54.7 - 54.7
Loan receivables FEHE TR 31.0 - 31.0
Trade and other receivables E 5 & E U 08 4,434.2 = 4,434.2
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEED 7,640.6 = 7,640.6
Total financial assets SREEME 12,160.5 11.2 12,171.7
Financial liabilities SHEas
Trade and other payables B 5 I H e 5118 (798.5) - (798.5)
Amounts due to non-controlling FE A B /B A T FE1E AR IR B3R I8
shareholders of subsidiaries (136.7) - (136.7)
Bank borrowings RITEX (10,056.7) - (10,056.7)
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUREEERENEEEE - (3,081.4) (3,081.4)
Total financial liabilities cHMABRE (10,991.9) (3,081.4) (14,073.3)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVPL, amounts due from associates, loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bank
borrowings, gold loans to be repaid by cash and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk,
currency risk and commodity price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate loan receivables, certain trade receivables, gold
loans and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not have
any instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly bank balances and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow
interest rate risk is considered insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Financials
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk

Certain group entities have sales and purchases which are
denominated in currency other than their respective
functional currencies, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the foreign currency risk is insignificant considering the
related sales and purchases to the total sales and purchases
of the Group. The majority of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary items are cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB, which are held by group entities
whose functional currencies are not RMB, with carrying
amounts of HK$1,192.0 million (2019: HK$838.2 million). In
addition, certain group entities whose functional currency is
HK$, have intra-group advances to their subsidiaries,
denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States
dollars (“US$"”) and RMB, which are arising from relevant
group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities for the Group’s operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.
As at 31 March 2020, if the exchange rate of RMB had been
2% appreciated or depreciated against HK$, the Group's
profit after taxation for the year would increase or decrease
by HK$65.8 million (2019: HK$82.3 million) and the Group's
exchange reserve would increase or decrease by HK$289.0
million (2019: HK$351.8 million) for the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency
risk of US$ is considered insignificant.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold
products. The gold market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of gold could adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk,
the Group uses gold loans to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory. Gold loans
are settled at maturity which is usually in 1 to 6 months
(2019: 1 week to 7 months) from date of inception and any
fair value change is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2020, if the market price of gold had been
higher or lower by 10%, the potential effect on gold loans
and the resulting impact on profit after taxation for the year
would decrease or increase approximately by HK$1,077.4
million (2019: HK$750.3 million). Part of the effect will be
offset with future sales in gold products.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivable for sales of inventory and from the
provision of service; and

* debt investments carried at amortised cost, including other
receivables, amounts due from associates and loan receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial as such amounts are placed
in banks with good reputation.

Financials
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 month before 31 March 2020 or 1
April 2019 respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2019 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

LREREEEERBR @

EEEE @)

B 5 RWE

REE R R BRI RS ERF 9% 2 BEIE
AERHEERE  ZRHAEEBEREEHES
ERBERRMARZEKFA -

RAEBEMEERE  EZRIGHRCSRELT
EERBREEREHEBHETOMAE -

HHERETDRE D HR2020F3A31 8 5
20194 A1 8 2511218 B B &9 85 &€ 89 -7 3%
AT RBANEENERELEEFRSH - BE
BREEEEFBRUARRPZER P EN BRI
N RBEEREZZ BRI RIS ER - AEE
EFREAAENREER  REZERAZNRHE
PRPBREEERE -

bt - 720203 H31H k201943 A31H
B SR TR EEEENT

Aging analysis
BRI
0 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total
0Z30A 91Z180H #®iB180H @t
HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BBERT HBE#ER BEER BEER
As of 31 March 2020 R2020F3A31H
Expected loss rate EEEEx
Gross carrying amount FHEE
Loss allowance EERG
As of 31 March 2019 R201963A31H
Expected loss rate ki) 3 opd 0.0% 0.0% 51.9%
Gross carrying amount EEEE 31283 88.1 131.8 3,951.8

Loss allowance EEREE -

= 68.4 68.4

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 March
reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

3A31 RE SRR E R EERTEREE
ESERIATE ¢

2019

HK$ million

BEER

At 1 April Rnag1H 42.4
Currency realignment B (1.5)
Loss allowance (written back)/recognised EiERE 2 (BE), /R 27.5
At 31 March MN3A31H 68.4
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Debt investments

All of the Group's debt investments at amortised cost are
considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12
months, expected losses unless significant increase in credit
risk. Debt investments are considered to be low credit risk
where they have a low risk of default and the counterparty
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
trade and loan receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short and medium-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously
monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the maturity
profiles of its financial liabilities.

Financials
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

SREAGEEEERBEK (@)

RS S E S (&

T§E$E@Z§mﬂﬁ{fﬁ?—rm MBI EHE 2

15 RERBBRBAEEAIRERINEREEZ

EE*EEIHMWEH% AR EREE RBRRE SR
c ARBBEMNERAEGRERE °

Weighted ~ On demand or Total
average less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 1to 5 years Over 5 years cash flows amount
REREH FEBRRS
METHHE 3EAR  3fBRZE1E 1855 5524 FELE REE
% HKS million HKS million HKS$ million HKS million HKS million HKS million
HEAT BEAT HEAT HEAT HEAT HEAT
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31A
Trade and other payables %%&EWEH*”
Amounts due to non-controlling FERI B A RIFEER
shareholders of subsidiaries RRFE
Bank borrowings RITER
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUBSEENESEE
Lease liabilities REAR
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31A
Trade and other payables B REMERNTUE - 798.5 - - - 7985 7985
Amounts due to non-controlling liEINGE 223
shareholders of subsidiaries PREFE - 136.7 - - - 136.7 136.7
Bank borrowings BIER 2.3% 74689 - 2,700.6 - 10,169.5 10,056.7
Goldloans tobe repaid by cash LB S EBHESLEE 0.9% 3,084.2 - - = 3,084.2 30814
11,488.3 - 2,700.6 - 14,1889 14,073.3
Notes: P % :

(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price
of gold traded in active liquid markets.
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(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) AREZELR

The following table presents the Group's financial THRIWRTAEERZAABAERBRE L
instruments measured at the end of the reporting ROARE AR BEERERMERE
period at fair value, categorised into the three-level fair ZRHZEI3R [ AABEHE] AREN=(E
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value AREBRHE - AREFENBRHE
measurement. The level into which a fair value RS ET I E R A& A E R
measurement is classified is determined with MABRERBEEHGRETD

reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in o F—H WMABENERBRITEANE
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that BB ARG HERNEERBE 2L
the entity can access at the measurement date; FARRE

e Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o B IBABBINE-—RI2BEIN -
included within Level 1, that are observable for the AREEEEERREENBERSG
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and AR &

* Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset o B HABURDIWIEAIRBEEE
or liability. ESBEMSL 2@ ASIE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8R gt} E=R @zt
Notes HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
Fff & BHEET HEAT HEAT BEET
Recurring fair value REMARETE
measurement
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value 2 AR B ABRH
through profit or loss SHEE
Liabilities a8
Gold loans to be repaid BARSEENESEE
by cash
Gold loans to be repaid HAERECEEN
by physical gold B5HEE
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value &2 7 ABHH
through profit or loss SREE - - 11.2 11.2
Liabilities =L
Gold loans to be repaid BB SEENEREE
by cash 28 - 3,081.4 - 3,081.4
Gold loans to be repaid HABERECEEN
by physical gold HeEE 28 - 4,930.1 - 4,930.1
248 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no
transfers between level 1 and level 2, and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2019: nil).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.

Valuation techniques used to determine
level 2 fair values

The fair value of gold loans is determined using
discounted cash flow valuation technique reference to
quoted market bid price of gold traded in active liquid
markets as a key input.

Fair value measurement using significant
unobservable input (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
items for the periods ended 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019:

(a)

(b)

(c)

ARAEFR &)
HE202053A3ALFEE  £—RK
RoB/ZEILFEH - I HEARE
HEZRAER (20194 : ) o

AEENBRERREPRERRIANERE
M2 FEONEALE L -

REEERE-RAREHEERD

EefERZAAENBMRAESREEE
EE HP2RESRBTSEEZESD
MEEARBERTIRHARE -

EREXFUBREZGARBZAR
EFTE (E=4)
TREIBEAAETENEE202043
A31BX201943A31 AL HMME=R
HEHE :

2019
HK$ million
BEAET
Unlisted equity securities ELEHRER S

At 1 April K418 -
Currency realignment B —
Acquisitions/transfer - V4= IUN 11.2

Net unrealised gains or losses recognised H A 18 25 T 2 8 K B35 U 25
in profit or loss during the period L E I8 F 5 -
At 31 March M3 A31HE 1.2

The fair value of financial assets that are grouped under
level 3 is determined using valuation technique
including discounted cash flow analysis. In determining
fair value, specific valuation technique are used with
reference to inputs such as profit forecast, dividend
stream and other specific input relevant to those
particular financial assets.

Financial instruments that are not measured
at fair value
The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Annual Report 2020

2020 F R

(d)

RE=ZGHENEREEANEERAMGE
B (BEMBARSRENT)EE - B
ARER - ERAFELERT  2REF
A REREBABE R MEZEE
ELREERBANTEEABIER -

EEUAREFEHEMTE

HtemEERSRABRN AR ERER
RREVENTIEREEARNEERE
B -

ARBEZRE  NEEUBRRILEH
RANGENEREERERABEZREE
EERNRERE °

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAMTE

‘ 249



250

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows from financing activities.

TRAJNAEERETHMELNBEES K
TEERENMIFRSED - BETHELNAE
EEREREEK(IRRASREFE) VA
SENGERERERNERBELTHMERSE
mEZBIE -

Dividends Interest
Amounts payable payables
due to non- (included (included
controlling in trade in trade
Bank shareholders and other and other Lease
borrowings Gold loans  of subsidiaries payables) payabl liabilities Total
EfRE ERRS
EAHEAR [EPN-¥ (FtAEZ
FER REf REf
BARR  ESER  BRRE EMRER) EORER)  EREE it
Note 27 Note 28 Note 26 Note 25 Note 25 Note 14
Ktk 27 fi &k 28 EY] K3t 25 itk 25 Kzt 14
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million ~ HKS$ million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ million  HKS million
BEHEL BEEL BE#T BEHEL BE#ET BEHEL BEBT
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 7,923.0 5,335.4 100.5 - 4.1 - 13,363.0
Financing cash flows RERETE 21334 (2,939.8) 43.0 (6,080.6) (366.1) - (7,210.1)
Interest expenses FEX - - - - 3703 - 370.3
Foreign exchange translation SNEHRE - (246.7) (6.8) - - - (253.5)
Dividends declared TIRRE = = = 6,080.6 = = 6,080.6
Fair value loss of gold loans EEEEAREER - 1172 - - - - 117.2
Other non-cash movements Hiy iR a8 03 5,745.4 - - 0.3) - 5,745.4
At 31 March 2019, R2019E3A31H
as previously presented (ZHIE23)
Effect on adoption of IFRS 16 £ 48 B B2 B 7535 5 2B
(note 2.2) F16RMTE(H13E2.2)
At 1 April 2019, as adjusted R201954 A1 B (EA%)
Financing cash flows BERETE
Arising from acquisition RUERBARIMESE
of subsidiaries (note 38} (FitzE38)
Interest expenses FERE%
Foreign exchange translation INERE
Dividends declared kKRS
Fair value loss of gold loans HEEBEARERE
Other non-cash movements HipkRe g
At 31 March 2020 R20203A31H
Defined contribution scheme 5E &5 G El
The Group participates in defined contribution schemes RNEB DR EBIEE B R 2VIE0 A

which are registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

Financials
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Defined contribution scheme (continued)

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per employee.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Macau are members of pension
schemes operated by local government of Mainland China
and the Macau government, respectively. The subsidiaries in
Mainland China are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of these
employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contribution under the schemes.

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension
benefits to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries
before 1995. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of services. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 25% and 40% of final salary for each year of
pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
the present value of the defined benefit obligations were
carried out in March 2020 by Roma Appraisals Limited
("Roma"), an independent qualified professional valuer, using
the projected unit credit method. The principal place of
business of Roma is 22/F, China Overseas Building, 193
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are discount rate, retirement age, turnover rate,
mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.
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Defined benefit scheme (Continued) EEEEAEHEl (=)

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FrE e EERABRNOT :
2019
Discount rate 817 & 1.4%
Expected rate of salary increase T B & 3 A LL & 3.0%
Turnover rate AR 0.0%
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit HEERMFERNGE BRI EMEERERE
or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the REFIBLOT -
defined benefit scheme are as follows:
2019
HK$ million
BHBT
Current service cost 35 BF AR 7% A A 3.9
Interest on obligation AEEOFE 3.3
Components of defined benefits P18 2 B R E R AR R EB
recognised in profit or loss 7.2
Remeasurement on defined benefit PE 2 U S FERR Y T BE
scheme recognised in other BRI BIEHE -
comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss arising from changes MRS FEENBEER
in financial assumptions 7.5
Total 48EE 14.7
The current service costs and interest on obligation for the HZE2020F3A31H&2019F3 A31 HIEFE
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are included in “selling B3R B AR IS AR AN R A E Y FI B R % B W0 (B B Bkat
and distribution costs” and “general and administrative FTATHE R SRR I R —RITHFAX |E -
expenses” depending on the respective employee’s function.
The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the HZE2020F3A31HK&2019F3 A31HILFE
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is included in other HEREBAGT B ERH 25 AR M2 EKE -
comprehensive income.
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit TERERAEEREZEFSMNT ¢
obligations are as follows:
2019
HK$ million
BEAT
At 1 April n4/18 232.2
Service costs B 7% P 7N 3.9
Interest costs A BB A 3.3
Actuarial loss BEEIE 7.5
Benefits paid B X EH (8.1)
At 31 March MW3A31H 238.8

2 52 ‘ Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November
2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
"Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of attracting skilled
and experienced personnel, to incentivise them to remain
with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the
Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and
the employees of the Group and any other persons (including
consultants or advisers) who the directors of the Company
consider, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 17 November 2011. An
offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a Participant
by a notice of grant requiring the Participant to undertake to
hold the option on the terms on which it is to be granted
(which may include a minimum period for which the option
must be held before it can be exercised and a performance
target that must be reached before the option can be
exercised in whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms
of the Share Option Scheme. An offer of the grant of an
option is deemed to be accepted by the Participant (the
"Grantee”) when the Company receives from the Grantee
the duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee. An
offer may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
respect of less than the number of shares in respect of
which it is offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a
board lot or an integral multiple thereof. No amount is
payable by the Grantee upon acceptance of an offer of an
option. The offer shall remain open for acceptance for such
time to be determined by the directors of the Company,
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after the
termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
its terms or after the Participant to whom the offer is made
has ceased to be a Participant. To the extent that the offer is
not accepted within the time period and in the manner
specified in the offer, the offer will be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of
the Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's share on the date of grant.
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During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no share
options were granted by the Company nor were there any
share options of the Company outstanding.

The Company issued to the directors and certain employees
share appreciation rights (the “SARs"”) that the Company
would pay the intrinsic value of the SARs in cash to the
directors and certain employees as part of the discretionary
bonus. The Group recorded a total expense of HK$8.3
million during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$52.7 million).

(a) Summary of acquisition
In December 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of ENZO Jewelry Inc. (“"ENZQ"),
a luxury coloured gem jeweller. The acquisition has
enriched the Group’s multi-brand portfolio to meet
customer expectations.

Details of the purchase consideration and the net
assets acquired are as follows:

HZE202063A31 A KX2019F3A31HIEFE -
AR B AR AR - IR AR R AT
BV A R RAE o

AARAEERETREREBZETRMDGERE (KR
DEEE])  ARFEUREAEERETES
SRS ERORNERE  (EARIBIEAn—
D o EiE202063 A31 BIEFE - REBES
BHEY A8 IABBIIT(2019%F  52.7THEBTT) °

(a) WeFSHEIE
RN2019612 8 ~&EBKRBEREVEE
AIREEENZO Jewelry Inc. ([ENZO )
#1100% B BITIRA o tLIBWELE T A
EBHNZREES  NWDABEENHE -

WEREFEREEENEEFENT -

Purchase consideration (refer to (b) below): WEERE (2F T (b)) :

Cash paid BEfRE

Total purchase consideration

WEsERE

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the
acquisition are as follows:

WEREERNEERABNAT :

Cash HEe
Inventories FE

Trade receivables B 5 W GKIE
Other receivables H th fE W KT8
Investment properties "EYE
Plant and equipment R R Es
Bank loan IRITE R
Trade payables B 5 e
Other payables e 58

Net identifiable assets acquired
Less: total purchase consideration

BB B EEFE
o B R

Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries
(included in other gains and losses)

W B B 88 2 B e
(FEAE ALYz R B ER)

There were no acquisitions in the year ending 31

March 2019.

Financials
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(a)
(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

Summary of acquisition (Continued)

Acquired receivables
The fair value and gross contractual amount of
acquired trade receivables is HK$18.1 million.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of
HK$37.7 million and net loss of HK$35.0 million to the
Group for the period from 1 December 2019 to 31
March 2020.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2019,
consolidated pro-forma* revenue and profit for the year
ended 31 March 2020 would have been HK$56,928.8
million and HK$2,976.4 million respectively. The
negative impact on the consolidated pro-forma profit
for the year was mainly due to the depreciation impact
arising from the acquired properties which
management decided to dispose subsequently.

These amounts have been calculated using the
subsidiaries’ results and adjusting them for:

e differences in the accounting policies between the
Group and the subsidiaries, and

e the additional depreciation that would have been
charged assuming the fair value adjustments to
investment properties had applied from 1 April
2019, together with the consequential tax effects.

Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries

The gain on acquisition of subsidiaries of HK$18.0
million was recognised in other gains and losses (note
6), which was arising from the difference between (a)
the fair value of the shares in ENZO representing the
aggregate of the consideration transferred of HK$189.3
million; and (b) the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired of HK$207.3 million, comprising the
investment properties at fair value with reference to
valuation performed by an independent valuer with
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant market and the fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities, which approximate to their
carrying amounts.

*  The pro-forma information is for illustrative purposes only
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(b)

(a)

Financials

B 7%

Purchase consideration — cash outflow (b) UK {E — HE&RH
2019
HK$ million
BEAT
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, Ug BB B B A RI AV IR & B
net of cash acquired (MBRERBER)
Cash consideration ReERE -
Less: Balances acquired W B AR
Cash Re =
Net outflow of cash — investing activities Remt F8E — REEH -
Acquisition-related costs W B4R R A A

Acquisition-related costs of HK$4.7 million are
included in general and administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and in
operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

Recurring transactions
Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following related party
transactions during the year:

(a)

WHERRBIR AL 7 A BB ALE
RO—RRITHFAARGARSR
WEEHRLRE -

bi-F
X

EEHT S
BREEMIBREANE M T BENRZH R
HEERON - REBERF NI 5B
R :

/

Relationship Nature of transactions HK$ mﬁltl);:
& RBME BHEBT
Entities in which certain Advertising expenses 5.4
directors* of the Company HERX
have beneficial interests Concessionaire fees in department stores 78.2
RARIETEE*H BERAIEEDK
EmHEE Lease payments 165.1
HE AT
Non-controlling shareholders Concessionaire fees in department stores 5.9
of subsidiaries BEARERED
Bt /8 R B FEERR AR R Franchise sales 8.9
INEASHE
Entities in which a close Engineering services fee 4.2
family member of certain TRER®EE
directors* of the Company Lease payments 24.8
has control MEX
ARBETES *EIHK Purchase of equipment 37.7
REBRAERIENER BERE
Marking fee 58.2
ZLEA
* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company. * BEENEARDRINERSAERS -
Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other B Et T HHN - RNATIRAEE NER B

significant transactions, arrangements and contracts to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest at any time during the year.

H o W xpT,ﬁJﬂlZK AERAERETHEE
IMEZEEANBEZEERS RHR
B8R .
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FREBASNE
SNTEREEABNMNSBEMEIR
BOARREERESTHAR °

(b) Key management compensation (b)
Remuneration paid for key management personnel
includes the directors and the chief executives of the
Company as disclosed in note 9.

ARAEERRHTRAENMERER
FNEESRBEENALTHRERTSB
EMEE -

The remuneration of the directors and the chief
executives of the Company is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of T ARBERRARABEENB AR ZFFE :

the reporting period are set out below:

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

establishment capital/quota capital by the Company
Name of subsidiaries SR S, % 37 1t 2 ERTRBERE RARFEHEERE Principal activities
MEDRAE kKBS FMELR BEEX R LB FTEEK
2019
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100%  Investment holding
BXARRA 20 June 2011 Uss1 REZR
RESEBRES AR
20114$6A20H 1%
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of diamond
BHESERAA 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 EBRES
EE EERA
200841 F10H 10,0008 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 KEEMBE
BARERESTERAR B LRRA
196153 A6H 350,000,000 7T
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%  Sales of watches
AREER (FH)BRAA 7 February 2011 HK$1 BRIHE
B LRBA
2011%2R78 17%7T
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%  Procurement of gemstones,
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 sales of jewellery products
EMERIEARDA B TmiRA and investment holding
2005%5H26H 5,000,000 % 7T KEER KEED
HE N RREER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Watch Macau Quota capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company (Macau) Limited 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 KEEMBEE
BABHREERCRF) ERA A Pl [REEESWN
200943 A178 5,000,000 27T
Hearts On Fire The United States Capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
of America US$74,468,737 KEERHEE
14 May 2001 W
e 35 74,468,737 % T
200145 H14H8
Beijing Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 13 November 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
I RARBKRESTARAR e FRER to franchisees
2006411 A138 30,000,000 T KBEEDINE RIRMH
R F a0 B2
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Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid

share capital/registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

establishment capital/quota capital by the Company
Name of subsidiaries R AR S, R 3L 3t Bk ERTRERKRE KATFEHEERE Principal activities
HEAR AR kB EMELR BEEX 3040 TEEHR
2019
Chongaing Chow Tai Fook Watch PRC- Registered capital 100%  Sales of watches
Marketing Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB10,000,000 BIRIHE
EERAAGEERHERRAR FE- S E A
2008412 A 25H AR®10,000,0007T
Chongging Flamingo Watches PRC~ Registered capital 100%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB1,000,000 BRI E
EEERARERERAA - A& A
2008412 A 25H AR#1,000,0007C
Chongging Meida Watch PRC~ Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 21 May 2013 RMB1,000,000 KEEMHEE
EEXEBRERANH FE - &R
201345HA21H AR#1,000,0007C
Chongging Xinhuang Watch PRC* Registered capital 51%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 2 August 2013 RMB10,000,000 BIRIHE
EEABERERAA e & A
20134 8F2H AR#10,000,0007T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
(Chongaing) Company Limited 23 December 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
AREHREST (ER)ERAR N AR to franchisees
2008412 A23H 30,000,000 7T KEEDRHEER
RAEARTS T h0ER R
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenyang) PRC- Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 2 January 2014 RMB20,000,000 and provision of services
ARE®REST(BG)ERAR - FMER to franchisees
201451 R2H AR#20,000,0007T KEERHER
RAEIRTS TN RE
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen) PRC" Registered capital 100%  Manufacturing and sales of
Company Limited 2 April 2002 US$100,000,000 jewellery products
AREHREST ORI BRAR Ll BaliE=EN FREBEREERKE
200264 A28 100,000,000 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Suzhou) PRC" Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 11 January 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
BAREHEST (BHMN)ERAR Ll & AR to franchisees
20061 R118 30,000,000 37T KBERHER
RELRTS T B2
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Wuhan) PRC" Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 29 January 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
ARBHREST(RE)ERAA " HMER to franchisees
2008F 1 A29H 30,000,000 % 7T HEERHEER
RALARTS T o0 ER R
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture PRC" Registered capital 100%  Manufacturing of jewellery
Industrial Park (Wuhan) 16 August 2012 US$140,000,000 products
Company Limited A HMEAR KEEREE

BAARBHRECEXR (BUF)
BRAT

20124 8H16H

140,000,000 % 7T
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Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

establishment capital/quota capital by the Company
Name of subsidiaries R AR S, R 3L 3t Bk ERTRERKRE KATFEHEERE Principal activities
HEAR AR kB EMELR BEEX 3040 TEEHR
2019
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC~ Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 RMB65,723,500 KEBEERHE
Company Limited e - FHRER
BABHREITRRBRE 2010F4A218 AR#65,723,500 7T
BRRA
Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100%  Manufacturing of jewellery
Manufacturing Company Limited 14 March 2007 US$10,639,400 products
BILTIEERRERE & fiRE R & A KBERLEE
BRAA 2007F3A14H 10,639,400 T
Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and PRC" Registered capital 100%  Manufacturing of jewellery
Diamond Company Limited 9 November 1988 US$18,000,000 products
FILRIEEEHEAFRA A R A& A KBERLEE
1988F 11 A9H 18,000,000 % 7T
Guangdong Chow Tai Fook Jewellery ~ PRC" Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 10 December 2007 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
BEREARBHRESTERAR RN & A to franchisees
20074 12A10R 30,000,000 37T KEEMHEER
RELRTS T B2
Guangdong Shunde Chow Tai PRC- Registered capital 100%  Manufacturing of jewellery
Fook Jewellery Manufacturing 30 July 2014 RMB60,000,000 products
Company Limited E -~ HfEAR KREEMEE
ERIEZEAAEHRERERRDA 2014%7H30AH AR#60,000,0007T
Shanghai Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 26 February 2013 HK$60,000,000 and provision of services
EERAREREEHERAR R FRER to franchisees
2013%2H26H 60,000,000 7T HEBEDRHEER
RERTS T AR
Shanghai Fulong Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered capital 60%  Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 5 January 2000 RMB10,000,000 KEEMBE
FERRAREREERRA B Faii- VN
200041 Ab6H AR¥10,000,0007T
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 31 October 2016 US$10,000,000 KEEMBE
RYAEARERESTERAT e GaliE=
20164 10A 318 10,000,000 37T
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC- Registered capital 100%  Manufacturing of jewellery
Manufacturing Company Limited 5 March 2012 RMB50,000,000 products
AT AR BREREERRA - & A KEBEREE
201243 A5H AR#50,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Online PRC~ Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Media Company Limited 5 January 2017 RMB5,000,000 KEEMBEE
RYBRBEREEERRA - GaliE=eN
201741 A58 AR¥5,000,0007C
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Place and date of Issued and fully paid Proportion of

incorporation/ share capital/registered ownership interest held
establishment capital/quota capital by the Company
Name of subsidiaries R AR S, R 3L 3t Bk ERTRERKRE KATFEHEERE Principal activities
HEAR AR kB EMELR BEEX 3040 TEEHR
2019
Shenzhen CTF Watch PRC" Registered capital 100%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 27 June 2011 HK$300,000,000 ERIHE
R BARBERBERAR RN & A
2011456 R278 300,000,000 7% 7T
Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 50%*  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 19 April 2007 RMB8,000,000 KEEMEE
RITRBRESTERAR 2l & A
200754 F198 AR# 8,000,000 T
Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 70%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 26 November 2003 RMB90,000,000 KEEMHEE
REERKELTARAR e & A
2003411 A 26H AR #90,000,0007T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade Xinfu PRC* Registered capital 50%*  Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 3 December 2010 RMB3,000,000 KEEMEE
REBREE AN EHBKE LT e &R
BRAT 2010612 A3H AR 3,000,000
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC~ Registered capital 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 RMB94,567,500 KBERHE
REXBRBEEBKRBESITARAR  HE- &R
20124 9F 248 AR#94,567,500 7T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu PRC* Registered capital 51%  Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 17 November 2011 RMB70,000,000 KEEMHEE
REXBRVEERARESTAERAR  FE+ A& A

2011 F11 A178 AE#70,000,000 7T

*  Directly held by the Company. *  KAAREEREH -

g Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these entities, g BEZSEEBORR2EICNEBGS  AEEALSEES
the Group has power to direct the relevant activities of these entities since their B W B AR B R EZSEENERES Btk
respective date of establishment/acquisition, and hence these entities are classified as BEEBERADRNMEAR -

subsidiaries of the Company.

+ Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC. & RPBKINEEEIERE -
Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise. i RINEBEDRK -
Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC. - AP NBERE -
Note: P % :
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, FRIHESRAIEVEASENEBEKEENAARMBRA -
principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries which HIEMEBEELEANFRELBROMBAR ZF#E - EF2R

are mainly inactive or engaged in investment holding would, in the opinion of the directors, REEPFHBFBERTR °
result in particulars of excessive length.
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41. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve

Movement of the Company

- A2 w) 5 IR o e B ff A 52 )

2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT

Non-current assets EMBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEMHBARZIRE 15,387.3 15,387.3
Amount due from a subsidiary FE UL — PRI /B8 A R FRIE 897.5 2,596.7
16,284.8 17,984.0

Current assets MENEE
Amount due from a subsidiary e —RIMT B A Bl 518 13,736.0 13,132.0
Taxation recoverable ] Y [a] £ 18 0.6 1.1
Cash and cash equivalents HEMBE2ZEEBY 4.5 1.5
13,7411 13,134.6
Current liabilities mENEE

Other payables H At A 308 24.9 14.4
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 1~ — RS Bt BB A R ZRIA - 2,410.5
Bank borrowings RITER 10,533.0 7,460.0
Gold loans HEEE 3,067.7 3,081.4
13,625.6 12,966.3
Net current assets MENEEFE 115.5 168.3
Total assets less current liabilities BREERTBAE 16,400.3 18,152.3

Non-current liability FERBBE
Bank borrowings RITER 897.5 2,596.7
15,502.8 15,555.6

Capital and reserves BARKEE
Share capital RN 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves 1 5,502.8 5,655.6

15,502.8 15,565.6
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Reserves

1]

Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
B REGRE RERF st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HEET HEET HEABT BEET
At 1 April 2018 7K2018F4A1H 10,000.0 5,498.7 37.1 15,535.8

Profit and total comprehensive 4 &% F1| | 2 T Y 25 48 58

income for the year - - 6,019.8 6,019.8
Dividends fi% & - = (6,000.0) (6,000.0)

At 31 March 2019
Profit and total comprehensive

7201943 A31H
FERHFIR 2 AR EE
income for the year

Dividends fi% 2

At 31 March 2020 202053 A31H

The Group’s business severely suffered in the fourth quarter
ended 31 March 2020 due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in
early 2020. The Group has been closely monitoring the
development and the impact of COVID-19 since then and
taking appropriate responses in a timely manner in order to
mitigate the impact on the Group's business. Majority of the
Group’s POS in Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau
resumed operations in April 2020.

Up to the date on which this set of consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Group has seen
signs of recovery especially in the Mainland China market.
The recent sales performances in both reportable segments
were within the management’s expectations.

For further details, please refer to “Business Outlook and
Strategies” in Managing Director’s Strategic Report on page 40.

Except for the above, there is no subsequent event after
the reporting period which has material impact to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A 765 AR 2

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial
information are extracted from the consolidated financial
statements in the annual reports.

UTRAEEREDEMBRFECREEAREE

HEEHRE - YHERBREFROGEMBEHE -

For the year ended 31 March

BE3ANMBLFE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEET BEET EX-¥ -V BEER
Revenue SR 56,591.5 51,245.5 59,156.4 66,660.9 56,750.8
Gross profit E7 15,641.4 14,962.7 16,213.4 18,601.8 16,096.2
Profit for the year FER A 2,978.9 3,151.1 4,203.3 4,684.0 2,983.1

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
ER-S: % AEET BEET BEAT AEABT
Total assets BEMEE 55,675.4 49,401.9 57,569.9 62,237.1 65,243.4
Total liabilities BEHEE 19,925.5 16,900.4 23,472.3 30,834.1 38,252.6
Net assets BEFHE 35,749.9 32,501.5 34,097.6 31,403.0 26,990.8
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Directors
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ENZO
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Gem-set jewellery

KEBREH

Group
S8/ FT&E

Hearts On Fire

High-end luxury jewellery

ERE

Karat gold
K&

Listing Rules
EmRAl

Mainland China
RlETANp:

Additional Information

B b0

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

MRFEELFF BHEIHA30HIEEHA

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

BBREETHEF  BEIA31BLARER

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
AR FHABE R AR (K TRIEET)

average selling price

FHHEER

the board of directors of the Company

ARAERS

counter-in-shop in POS

REERAIEANERE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
BAXRBHREESEER AR (RHKIR - 1929)

directors of the Company

PN/ =
ENZO Jewelry Inc.

financial year, 1 April of a year to 31 March of the following year
BEREFEE 4R 1BE2EF3HA31H

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

BHEEONEONEMHE®D

the Company and its subsidiaries

RAT REMBAF
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC.

jewellery products with a retail price of above HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEBI0BETULNKEER

jewellery products made from gold alloy

AR & BLAKEY & 8 E M

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEBMARIMERAAES LTHA

the mainland of the People’s Republic of China

hEARAMBE A
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Mass luxury jewellery
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POS
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Retail Sales Value/RSV
TEME

Same Store
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Same Store Sales/SSS
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Same Store Sales Growth/SSSG
REHEER

SFO

& 5 MR D

SIS
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Stock Exchange
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Tier I, 11, I, IV and other cities

—8 - T8 =R IR REMRT
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jewellery products with a retail price ranging from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEENT2TETE10BB TN HREEMD

online-to-offline

RERIRT

points of sale
EmTERH

the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any), in respective functional currencies, of
products sold to customers in the POS network and other channels
RNEEHBEMEMRBAMEREERTERNEPHEERNRRZEE(REEED -
WmE)E

self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have
been operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

B —EAVBRFENEEETNERYBARRKDABTNELTER

for FY2020, the revenue from self-operated POS existing as at 31 March 2020 and which
have been opened prior to 1 April 2018, measured at constant exchange rates. Revenue
from wholesale and other channels are excluded

2020 BFEEMmMS © 7A2018F4 A1 BAIMFEL RN 20203 A31 BIIRABHFNEE
TERNEXE (RBREXRGE) BT EE/BEREAMRENEER

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from comparable
POS in the previous period, measured at constant exchange rates
LARE B BE R L BV F B AV B S SH & B AT —HA M AT L 2 E B E

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BREDIEST1 BB H RPE R

shop-in-shop in POS
REERAMNERE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless otherwise specified

BIEREER  BRIGEEEHARXIMERAQA

for the list of cities, please refer to the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New
first-tier cities were grouped under Tier Il cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking
released on 24 May 2019

BT FBEBL2HCE M) BMHEMTERIES  FT—BETREMODTF DA
BTEHT - 520201965 A24 A AMGHEER

Glossary
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—  Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Website
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Corporate Presentation
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Corporate Video
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Our History
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Our Brands
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"g Our Sustainability Report
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Investor calendar

REERR®

FY2020 annual results announcement
11 June 2020

AGM
30 July 2020

Proposed payment of final dividend
on or about 21 August 2020

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the AGM

27 to 30 July 2020

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend

2020 M FEEFHARE
202046 A11H

BRFBFERE
202047 H30H

BERRBEAYRE
202048 A 21 B Ai%

EEREROBFECFE(ERMABEER)
REEHERRBFEAGLIRNEG LRF

202047 H27B%E30H

FEEREREZZ RS MER

6 August 2020 20208 A6 H
Share information R4 & #
Company name AT

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Listing
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code
1929

Listing date
15 December 2011

Board lot size
200 shares

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2020
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index
Hang Seng High Dividend Yield Index

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index

AXBAREEEBER QA

i)
BB A

B 42 X 5%
1929

i E#
2011412 R 15H

BFEEEMN
200 f%

A2020F3 A31 HE BTRA
10,000,000,000 fi%

AR B

BARAEH
BAFRE(FELT) 10058
BERBREEEH
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A Snapshot of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
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Shareholder services

B SR AR

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares,

change of name or address, and loss of share certificates, please write

to our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1333

Fax: (852) 2810-8185

Shareholders can obtain the annual/interim report of the Company by

writing to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic
version from our corporate website.

BB BTHRRER  WRMHEE  Eidagini &
BRBRE FAEETABALMANTERNDEFLER
DI

SEEHFELARAA
B

EFABR 1835
AP0 6418

&5t ¢ (852) 2980-1333
fHH& : (852) 2810-8185

RETEREEAMARPOEERDBEEENE
BASBER A A RMO A 35,/ BISR S - SN R APIR0 A T8 B
BT -

Investor relations

REERR

For more information about the Group, please visit
www.ctfiewellerygroup.com

or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications at
38/F, New World Tower

16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2524-3166

Fax: (852) 2526-9178

e-mail: ir@chowtaifook.com

FAREEFE  FAE
www.ctfjewellerygroup.com

B R PRI E & R R E A
BERERKNEF 16-185%

R KE3I8E

&5 1 (852) 2524-3166

fH5 : (852) 25626-9178

B : ir@chowtaifook.com

General information —RER

Headquarters and principal place of business in Hong Kong BRREBTEEE MY
33/F, New World Tower BBERFRKEHR 16-185%
16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong it A KE 3312
Registered office MR EE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Additional Information
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This annual report is printed on FSC™ Certified and other controlled material. Pulps used are chlorine-free and acid-free. The FSC™ logo identifies
products which contain wood from well-managed forests certified in accordance with the rules of the Forest Stewardship Council® .
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